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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M=

Annual Report 2007/2008

Year Ended 31st March #E=A=+—HIEFE

Results % 4&

*Turnover =%
*Gross Profit *ERH
EBITDA REtFE B\ E
LEHERAAT
Profit Attributable to Equity KRRREFAA
Shareholders of the Company FE A5 5 A
Basic Earnings per Share (HK cents) BREAAF (BIL)

# Dividends per Share (HK cents) *H AR S (BAL)

2008 2007
HK$ million HK$ million
BEHET BEEET
2,416 2,109 15
1,131 979 16
391 344 14
211 174 21
20.9 17.3 21
21.5 19.5 10

*BIERRIR A

#Including special dividend

At 31st March R = A =+—H

Financial Position Bf 7 k5%

Total Assets mEE

Net Cash Balance ReFE

Total Equity Attributable to Equity RAFREREA
Shareholders of the Company FEEE= BT

2008 2007
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET BB E BT
2,021 1,878 8
444 368 21
1,305 1,254 4

Year Ended 31st March HE=A=+—RH I FE
* Turnover & %%
2,416

1,962 2,109

1,770 1.849

04

05 06 07 08

EBITDA k=782 » HIE - ERBHEEREF)

391

04

05 06 07 08

* In line with the industry practice, the Group began to show its turnover *
figure on net sales basis (i.e. gross sales less return, rebate and discount) in
Fiscal 2007/2008. Comparative figures for previous fiscal years were restated

accordingly.

HK$ million /&% & & 7T
* Gross Profit £l

1,131

979
837 922

789

04 05 06 07 08
Profit Attributable to
Equity Shareholders of the Company
AN F BREHE AR
21

172 174

115 121

04 05 06 07
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)
FAFS 2 (4)

Sales Analysis by Categories
HEROW (RERREHE)
Year Ended 31st March
HEZA=+—HLEE

Sales Analysis by Location of Customers
SHEROW (REZFAER)

Year Ended 31st March

HE=ZRA=+—HLEE

BHPEREEBRAR —TTH/ZTT/N\FFER
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Soymilk 4
Tea 4%

Lunch Boxes and Snacks
TREZak/NR

Tofu /&
Milk 2443
Distilled Water 2% #7K
Juice Drinks ST 8k &

Others EAth

Hong Kong &7
Mainland China 5 Byt

Australia and New Zealand

SN KPR
North America 3t3EiM

Others EAth
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHmES

| am pleased to report that we once again delivered
growth in sales revenue and profit in the last fiscal year.
For the year ended 31st March, 2008, the Group’s profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$211 million, representing an increase of 21%
year-on-year. Total net sales revenue increased by 15%
to HK$2,416 million, versus HK$2,109 million in Fiscal
2006/2007. The Group's gross profit increased to HK$1,131
million, up 16% from the previous year. Earnings per
share were HK20.9 cents. The Group’s EBITDA stood at
HK$391 million, up 14%, while EBITDA margin to net
sales was maintained at 16%.

RATRARESR - AEBR £ —BMBFEEZH
ERARGFIBERSER - XEEEZE
—EENF=ZA=T—HLEEEZXRATR
EEE AELRERAB%211,000,0007T
REFTER21% - BEEWAFBEHR-_ZTT
N ZEZTLHMBEE 2 B%2,109,000,000
JCIBNN15% 278 %2,416,000,0007C ° AR&E
B2 EREEHE%1,131,000,0007T @ #HE
FEFH16% - BREFH20.978(L - &
BzARstFE  HE  HERBHEHERA
ZRI(EBITDA) % %E%391,000,0007T @ £
F14% - MEBITDARE AL HEFREZ
16% °




CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ETRHEE (H)

The Board of Directors of the Company is recommending a final
dividend of HK8.7 cents per ordinary share at the Annual General
Meeting on 28th August, 2008. This, together with the interim
dividend of HK2.8 cents per ordinary share, will mean that the
Group’s total dividend for Fiscal 2007/2008 will be HK11.5 cents per
ordinary share (2006/2007 total dividend: HK9.5 cents per ordinary
share). In addition, the Board is recommending a special dividend of
HK10.0 cents per ordinary share (2006/2007 special dividend: HK10.0
cents per ordinary share). This is the sixth consecutive year that special
dividend is paid. This decision of the Board speaks for our healthy
financial status and is in line with the Company’s dividend policy
which duly reflects our commitment to generate higher value for
shareholders.

GENERAL REVIEW

The Group’s encouraging sales performance last year is an apt
reflection of our effective business strategy, the implementation of
which was aided by the prevalence of a largely favourable operating
environment in nearly all our major markets.

In accordance with our strategies announced at this time last year, we
forged ahead with product innovation by developing and launching
a wide variety of new and trendy products with higher added value,
growing our market presence through brand building, deepening our
market penetration through channel development, and re-focusing
on core competencies where necessary to maximise gain. Naturally
all these efforts have been supported by our innovative marketing
and sales effort that unfailingly delivers superior results and breaks
new ground for us. As a result, we achieved strong sales growth
and expanded our market presence in Mainland China, Australia and
New Zealand and Hong Kong. At the same time, having re-adjusted
our business focus in North America, we attained a single-digit sales
growth and achieved the primary goal of narrowing operating loss
substantially.

I would like to report here that in early April 2008, we have acquired
the entire equity of Unicurd Food Co. (Private) Limited (“Unicurd”),
which is a leading soyfood manufacturer and marketer in Singapore.
This acquisition represents a major step taken by the Group in
enhancing its market presence in Singapore. | will elaborate on this
initiative in a separate part of this Statement.

To stay in line with industry practice, we started to show the turnover
figures on net sales basis by deducting rebates and discounts from
gross sales revenue beginning Fiscal 2007/2008. We believe that this
brings our financial statements to international standard and makes
benchmarking more easily. Prior year numbers have been adjusted
accordingly in the interest of consistency.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FRHES (H)

Annual Report 2007/2008

Hong Kong

In Hong Kong, the growth momentum of the economy remained
vigorous in the past year. Economic growth was driven by active
investment in business, stock and property, exports of merchandise
and services as well as inbound tourism. The retail sector flourished
on the back of greater consumer confidence which was boosted
by improved employment and higher labour income. Benefiting
from such an operating environment, Hong Kong’s non-carbonated
beverage market grew in both volume and value terms. Amid strong
internal demand, inflationary pressure was also increasing. While
adding to operating cost, however, this also helped to some extent in
justifying the increase of retail beverage prices.

I am pleased to announce that we continued to maintain our market
leadership position by growing our net sales revenue by 5%. Under an
aggressive product development programme, we rolled out a record
number of new products and flavours to drive demand growth. As a
result, our core products like Ready-To-Drink Tea, Soymilk and Distilled
Water continued to perform strongly. At the same time, we developed
and launched several new products to ride on the current trend of
healthy dieting and succeeded in significantly reinforcing our market
position in this area. On top of that, we also made considerable
headway in expanding into the dessert and cooking ingredient
segment by launching the organic VITASOY SAN SUI Tofu range of
products and VITASOY Soya Bean Hot Pot Soup during the year, the
former of which in particular has attracted very keen response from
the market since its launch in May 2007.

The Group’s tuck shop business in Hong Kong conducted through its
subsidiary, Vitaland Services Limited (“Vitaland”), grew in sales but
recorded a drop in profit because of higher operating costs. We will
work closely with our business partners to protect our profit margin
while keeping quality service level. The
catering business of Hong Kong Gourmet
Limited (“Hong Kong Gourmet”) showed a
slight decline while its profit was also eroded
by the soaring cost of food ingredients.

The Group’s exports from Hong Kong
improved further, growing by 18% in value
terms year-on-year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FRHES (H)

Mainland China

The Chinese economy as a whole remained robust in 2007. The
increasing awareness of the importance of healthy dieting, especially
among higher-income urban consumers, continued to create higher
demand for nutritional beverages such as soymilk in Mainland China.

This benign operating environment has been conducive to the
continued execution of our “core business, core brand and core city”
strategy in Mainland China. Net sales surged by a strong 59% year-
on-year as we have been in a good position to harvest from our
persistent and systematic investment in brand building and promoting
soy benefits. The expansion of the Group’s distribution channels
in Mainland China has also allowed us to expand and deepen our
market presence, particularly in Southern China. Meanwhile, we
continued to profit from Closer Economic Partnership Agreement
(CEPA) by bringing in from Hong Kong a broader range of products
that have been in keen demand in the major cities. In terms of
channel development, we have already succeeded in entering the
school retail segment.

Australia and New Zealand

The Australian and New Zealand markets as a whole remained a
high-growth market for the Group although the soymilk and rice milk
markets in Australia experienced a slight decline in the early part of
fiscal year while that in New Zealand had shown only modest growth
last year.

Net sales revenue generated in Australia and New Zealand taken
together increased by a strong 28%. Backed by our joint-venture
facility in Wodonga whose production capacity has been substantially
expanded since end-2006, we have been pursuing a more aggressive
business expansion programme to profit from our brand equity and
product innovation capabilities. The large array of new products
launched in Fiscal 2007/2008 has been highly successful in driving the
growth of sales and market share in this important market.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FRHES (H)

Annual Report 2007/2008

North America

I am pleased to report that, notwithstanding the prevailing economic
downturn, Vitasoy USA achieved very encouraging results last year.
While reversing the negative growth trend since Fiscal 2002/2003 by
growing net sales in North America by 8%, we also achieved the main
goal of substantially narrowing our operating loss by 53% versus
Fiscal 2006/2007.

By adjusting our business strategy to re-focus on core competencies,
we have been able to drive the sales of most core products, including
tofu, SAN SUI soymilk, pasta and imported beverages. We have also
extended our presence to alternate distribution channels such as food
service and club store as well as ethnic markets. Meanwhile, effective
financial management and the trimming down of operating costs
allowed us to drastically reduce our operating loss.

Singapore

Through our subsidiary, Vitasoy Investment (Singapore) Pte. Limited,
we have acquired Unicurd for a total consideration of S$14 million
(HK$78.6 million), which was funded entirely from the Group’s
internal cash resources. Upon the completion of this transaction on
2nd April, 2008, Unicurd has become one of the Group’s wholly-
owned subsidiaries. Unicurd is the market leader of packaged tofu
in Singapore with an estimated market share of 60%. Besides tofu,
it also specialises in soy desserts, soymilk, tofu puffs, noodles and
pickles. Aside from domestic sales, it also exports to markets in
Europe, Asia, New Zealand, South Africa and Dubai.

We consider this acquisition an important strategic move in a
business segment that we know thoroughly well. It also speaks for
our commitment to growing the Group’s business in areas that are
complimentary to and compatible with our core competencies. In the
days ahead, we will maintain Unicurd’s excellent manufacturing and
service standards that form a key part of its corporate culture. It goes

without saying that we will actively facilitate its further development
with the Group’s extensive global resources.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ETRHEE (H)

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY

Looking ahead, we are cautiously optimistic that the retail
environment of the majority of our major markets, including Hong
Kong, Mainland China and Australia and New Zealand, is likely to
remain stable as their economies stay on their respective growth track.
On the other hand, operating cost will be an increasingly thorny issue
in view of the escalation of raw material cost, which would likely be
aggravated by fluctuations in supply. Furthermore, the rise of wages
and other operating expenses will accentuate the challenge of cost
management while the profitability of businesses could possibly be
subject to depletion in a volatile foreign exchange market.

In Hong Kong, our key business emphasis in the current year will be
to engage in active product innovation and aggressive marketing to
drive business growth, although sales growth might be at a relatively
slower pace after a buoyant 2007.

In June 2008, we have revamped the VITASOY logo and product
package in Hong Kong and Macau to refresh and rejuvenate the
VITASOY brand. The new package gives a more modern look by
combining the brand’s Chinese and English trademarks and embracing
the bilingual culture of Hong Kong. The colours and graphics are
meant to appeal to the consuming public at large, particularly the
younger generation. In the months ahead, we are launching a series
of marketing and advertising activities to support the revamping
programme and to reinforce the market position of the VITASOY
brand. | will elaborate on this programme in the extended part of this
Statement.

Regarding our tuck shop business in Hong Kong under Vitaland,
we will take a more selective approach in business development
by focusing on the quality instead of quantity of business partners
to ensure better profitability. Steps have been taken to streamline
operation by automating the ordering process to speed up
transactions. Needless to say, we will also strive to manage costs
pragmatically, for example, by adopting a more effective procurement
strategy.

Mainland China is expected to remain a high-growth market for us in
the foreseeable future. Robust domestic consumption is expected to
drive GDP growth and enliven the prospects for the sale of consumer
products. However, rising inflation and thus higher operating cost in
this market should be regarded as a major challenge. Besides, the
promulgation of new labour protection legislation will no doubt have
extra cost implications for business operators.
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With rising affluence especially in the major cities and consumers’
increasing health awareness, our systematic effort in brand building
and soy benefit education should continue to pay off in terms of sales
growth, brand loyalty and market penetration in Mainland China. In
the coming year, we will deepen the execution of our “core business,
core brand and core city” to drive the growth of sales and market
share by expanding our distribution channels and introducing a
broader range of products.

We believe the operating environment in Australia and New Zealand
will be positive in the coming year as their respective economy
continues to grow, although rising costs and intense competition on
price will remain major issues. To spur sales growth, our strategic
focus will be on product innovation and revamping product
packaging. For instance, a new one-litre refrigerated product,
VITASOY Rice Milk, will be launched together with other new one-
litre aseptic varieties. Notwithstanding severe competition, we will
maintain our premium retail shelf price to defend our brand’s premium
market position while adhering to our current promotion strategy to
drive both volume consumption and consumer trial. At the same time,
we will fortify our market position by maintaining superior product
and service quality.

In the North American market, we will drive the sales of existing
products, including tofu and pasta, in traditional business channels,
expand our private-label tofu business, focus on alternate channels
such as food service, club store and so on, and continue to develop
the supermarket and “natural” businesses. New product growth
will be driven by the launch of single-serve Aseptic Soymilk and the
development of innovative seasonal and specialty soymilk products.
With a view to further improving our bottom line, we will focus on
cost management by enhancing trade spending efficiency. In view of
the rise in raw material costs, we might consider to raise the price of
our products where possible during the year.

Globally, the development of the supply situation in the commodity
market over the last twelve months has been challenging. The prices
of oil and key agricultural products such as soyabean, wheat and corn
have seen significant surges and have become volatile, thus making
materials procurement and business planning more important.

Such uncertainty has been caused by a multitude of factors, including
erratic climates (droughts, floods, extreme cold, etc.), bio-fuel
development, increasing demand of food from emerging economies
and, last but not least, speculative activities in the worldwide
commodity market.
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It is therefore imperative for us to ensure a high degree of flexibility
in our pricing policy. We will also step up our effort in materials
procurement in order to mitigate the adverse impact of raw material
price increase.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

On reaching the retirement age, Mr. John Shek-hung LAU resigned
from the Board as Executive Director and from the Group as Senior
Director — Finance and Administration with effect from 1st December,
2007. On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank Mr. Lau for his
loyalty and valuable contribution in an illustrious tenure of 19 years
and to wish him all the best.

Mr. Ambrose Kam-shing CHAN resigned as Executive Director of the
Board and Chief Executive, Asia with effect from 25th July, 2007. We
thank him for his past contribution to the Company and wish him
continued success.

Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER was appointed an Executive Director of
the Board with effect from 20th July, 2007. On 1st August, 2007, Mr.
Eisentrager was promoted from his former position of Chief Executive,
Hong Kong to the newly created position of Group Chief Executive
Officer to take up most of the executive responsibilities for the
Group’s major markets and operating units. This is a major step taken
by the Group to be in line with one of the best practices in corporate
governance by separating the roles of the board chairman and chief
executive officer to ensure more effective checks and balances.

CONCLUSION

In concluding, | wish to thank the Board of Directors for their
wise counsel and guidance. | also wish to thank our shareholders,
customers and business partners for their continued support. Last but
not least, | must extend my heartfelt appreciation to all my colleagues
whose devotion, ingenuity and hard work have been and will remain
crucial to the Company’s good performance.

Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman
3rd July, 2008
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VITASOY REVAMP IN HONG KONG MARKET

Growing up with Hong Kong people, VITASOY has always shared a
sense of friendliness and warmth with us. People — be they children,
teenagers or adults — always feel warm when they see the brand, to
such an extent a strong emotional relationship has been gradually
built up between VITASOY and its consumers. Over the years,
VITASOY has walked hand-in-hand with Hong Kong people and has
become a widely-known brand, a brand that Hong Kong people are
truly proud of.

Upholding the "Vitasoy Spirit”, VITASOY always encourages Hong
Kong people to pursue continuous progression and improvement. For
this reason, VITASQY is staging a major campaign in Fiscal 2008/2009
including a new TV commercial, a new packaging design and various
new products to meet consumers’ diverse needs. This VITASOY
campaign seeks to motivate Hong Kong people in a positive way and
encourages everyone to go for improvement and better things in life.
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ALL-NEW VITASOY PACKAGING

The new VITASOY packaging not only provides a whole new
refreshing look, it also serves to preserve VITASOY's strong connection
with Hong Kong people.

e The designer has skillfully combined VITASOY's Chinese and
English trademarks, making the design look more contemporary
and in line with the bilingual culture of Hong Kong.

e The new packaging highlights the VITASOY brand emphasizing
VITASOY as a successful local brand with a leading position in the
beverage industry.

e Original packaging colours of Regular and Malted flavour of
VITASOY are retained to preserve the familiar feeling with
VITASOY.

e Soymilk is a natural and healthy drink. The designer has brought
out this characteristic by using a pure-white colour background
for flavour range of VITASOY. The special ingredients and colours
for each flavour illustrate the enjoyment of a variety of tastes.

e Targeted at teenage consumers, the new VITASOY packaging
design uses vivid graphics of the ingredients to feature each
flavour, in turn portraying a sense of youthfulness and vitality.
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To stay in line with industry practice, we started to show  A{ISTXER » XEFH-_ZEFL =—F

the turnover figures on net sales basis by deducting EN\BBREERLGE R ITHNEASEERA
rebates and discounts from gross sales revenue beginning 1} @ UEHE BEERE L X5 - AEEEE

Fiscal 2007/2008. We believe that this brings our financial RS R & B 2 B A5 3R 3R MR AR BEEE B PRk
statements to international standard and makes FIRERZEHLREE - BAEEZHF
benchmarking more easily. Prior year numbers have been  ZiEI{EH TR - LUFEFE 2RBFREB L
adjusted accordingly in the interest of consistency. {ELLES ©
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TURNOVER

The Group's net sales revenue in Fiscal 2007/2008 was HK$2,416
million, up 15% from HK$2,109 million in Fiscal 2006/2007. This
growth was attributable mainly to the steady to strong performance
of the Hong Kong, Mainland China and Australian and New Zealand
operations respectively as well as North America’s positive sales
growth.

In Hong Kong, net sales increased steadily by 5% against the
backdrop of a robust retail market as the Group continued to roll
out a large array of new products to drive demand growth and
expand market share. In Mainland China, under the “core business,
core brand and core city” strategy, net sales grew strongly by 59%,
which speaks for the Group’s incessant and strenuous effort in brand
building, distribution network expansion and market penetration.
The Australian and New Zealand operation delivered consistently
impressive results by growing its net sales by 28% year-on-year as
it continued to benefit from the Group’s brand equity and product
innovation capabilities. Notwithstanding a general decline in market
demand, the Group's North American operation resumed its growth
momentum by recording a moderate growth of 8% after re-focusing
on core competencies, developing alternate distribution channels and
penetrating into the ethnic market segment.

GROSS PROFIT

The Group's gross profit for the year was HK$1,131 million, up
HK$152 million or 16%. Owing to stringent control of cost of sales,
gross profit margin was able to be maintained at 46%.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Total operating expenses were up by 14% to HK$892 million,
representing 37% of net sales. Marketing, selling and distribution
expenses stood at HK$541 million, up 16% as a result of more
promotions and marketing activities to reinforce the Group’s brands
as well as investment to expand and strengthen the distribution
capability.

EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST, TAXATION,
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
EXPENSES (“EBITDA")

EBITDA for the year was HK$391 million, up HK$47 million or 14%.
EBITDA margin to net sales was maintained at 16%.
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31st March, 2008, profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$211 million, representing an
increase of 21% from Fiscal 2006/2007.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group's financial position has remained very strong. As at 31st
March, 2008, the Group was in a healthy net cash position of HK$444
million (31st March, 2007: HK$368 million). Banking facilities available
to but not used by the Group amounted to HK$351 million.

As at 31st March, 2008, the Group’s borrowings (including obligations
under finance leases) amounted to HK$105 million (31st March, 2007:
HK$132 million). The gearing ratio (total borrowings/total equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company) was 8% (31st
March, 2007: 10.5%).

The Group incurred capital expenditures totalling HK$88 million in
Fiscal 2007/2008 (Fiscal 2006/2007: HK$135 million), which was
primarily funded by cash generated from various operations.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31st March, 2008, certain assets of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$38 million (31st March, 2007: HK$35
million) were pledged under certain loans and lease agreement.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s financial management focuses on controlled management
of risks, with transactions being directly related to the underlying
businesses of the Group. The Group operates a central cash and
treasury management system for all its subsidiaries. Borrowings
are normally taken out in local currencies by the Group’s operating
subsidiaries to fund and partially hedge their investments.

The financial risks faced by the Group arise mainly from the
fluctuation of interest rates and exchange rates. The Group makes use
of financial instruments, where appropriate, to manage those risks. At
the end of Fiscal 2007/2008, the Group had no significant exposures
under foreign exchange contracts or financial derivatives.

EMPLOYMENT, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group’'s human resources strategy focuses on recruiting,
developing, motivating and retaining the best talent needed for
business growth and development. Under this strategy, the Group
strives to provide a genial as well as safe and healthy working
environment for employees. It also promotes a corporate culture that
encourages excellence and self-actualisation at all levels.

The Group adopts a highly prudent and pragmatic approach in human
resources management. During Fiscal 2007/2008, the number of full-
time staff increased by 8% to 2,649. This increase was necessitated
by business growth and the need to be prepared for the Group’s
long-term development.

In Hong Kong, to attract and retain people, the Group has introduced
the Staff Provident Fund and Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) Top-up
Scheme Benefits Enhancement, the Rental Reimbursement Programme
and the Medical Check-up Scheme.

B
#
o
B

B 75 L B i 2R

AEBZHBRAREREREREZERAR  MA
RGUARREBRZBBAEBEERBR - A&
BAEMEWNBARNETHRES R BEEH
EeoAEEsZEEMBRAR —RAEWERE
I8 EmEhsMohEEXRER -

N P 2 BT B B R RO O
PEH AEBRTERFINAeRIAETEZS
e RZTTL/ ZTT\FREEFER
AEBYTEE@IEANINTEESRTIAZERX
[ B e

BE I RERE

AEBZANBERRBEEEA Bl BB
BREEFATAREEBEERER - RIFUE
B AEBEBORRER®STE w2RERZ
IERE - FEETRABHEBELEXL  HB%
EEREHREESE BHAR -

AEBRANEREE T ERDNEERERE -
REIZZTL /2T \WREE  AEAZ2H
BE ANBIEINB% - EFE2,649A « LRI RE
EEBRRAT UAAEEZREZRMITE

o

Ei

REE  BRESIRBEE AT - AEBEE RN
BRIBMNABESEMHERERGEDEREE
MRS R X AE N AR JE TR BA AT B B B
FRmEstaEREN -




MANAGEMENT REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEBHREE ()

As regards employee motivation, the Group’s performance
management system recognises and rewards those who contribute
their best to the Company. The policies on remuneration aim at
retaining the best people and encouraging them to develop a long-
term career within the Group. The remuneration packages for
the staff (including executive directors) comprise basic salaries,
discretionary bonuses, and other long-term benefits. The variable
elements are pegged to the performance of both individual employees
and the Group as a whole, and are meant to reflect the value
generated by everyone during the year.

In order to facilitate the cultivation of the Group's talent in Hong
Kong, a Talent Management Scheme has been introduced, which
provides staff with a formal channel for career enhancement and
personal development. The Group encourages all staff to further
develop themselves by continuous learning and to enhance their work
performance by attending training programmes. A comprehensive and
up-to-date set of training programmes is available internally to cater
for training needs. During Fiscal 2007/2008, 225 training programmes
were offered in Hong Kong with an average duration of 2.65 hours
each, covering such topics as management, quality control and
production. These were attended by a total 8,071 participants at all
levels. At the Mainland China-based plants in Shenzhen and Shanghai
respectively, a total of 372 training programmes were held with an
average duration of 13.11 hours each, attended by 4,748 participants.
The Group also supports employees’ initiative to attend external
training and education programmes, including MBA and other degree
courses, by offering financial sponsorship in accordance with a set of
criteria.

The Group recognises its role in ensuring and developing a safe
and healthy working environment for employees. The safety and
health committees established in the Group’s various operations
are responsible for constantly improving safety and health in the
workplace. These committees carry out risk assessment of work
sites regularly, establish and update policies and guidelines for
improvement, and take corrective action where necessary. Regular and
intensive training on safety and health is also provided for the staff.

The Group recognises the importance of developing and implementing
a corporate culture that is conducive to its stakeholders, including
shareholders, customers and employees. In support of this, and
in order to enhance internal customer service and teamwork, a
company-wide programme known as “Come Aboard the Service
Excellence” has been launched during the year.

HEHPEREEERAR

[
A
A

L/

NH
A4

TN\FFR

21

ERBEEIE AEEZIERREERGY
ARABEBMRZZREREMUAEERRER - H X
REERBESATEIEBMOANAEEER K
EFRX - -BEIL(BEATES) 2FHRIEER
rHe BHBECAREGEMENES ZEFAE
A=y EENRE ZRR R ASE 2 ZEHHE
MEARBREETIRNFNIEL 2 EH -

BRARNEBZ AT RRGE  AEEREEH
TT7T—BEATERFE  REIRMEXNZEX
REANER AEETEBMEEIEREFES
BE—SEREATE LB B2MFIER
ﬂlﬁ%ﬁoK%lkmfﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂm%F%
ZARMBIRBEUNEAEINETE KT/
ZTEENUBEFE  REBRHE25EFIIRE -
FHEE265/)0E O REER  MERNLEE
EBH SRHNAHSNNBZETIEL2NZER
BefRFREANMZRENREEEHEEEEMRT
372@EBNRE - FHER13.11/ 8 £54,748
FZEIZ2M - AEBENRES TERRHEMBE
B BB TEEENEBR ZEIRBERRE
BEIEEEBEIREMBELFR-

AEBRAEALRRERRIER —EX2RE
BZIHERE AEBEZEBHIHLIREBER
2RRFZES FETHREIFEHEZLE
LigFEEE - ZEe MY TEHMETRRT
e GIERERRERRLES  YEFEBR
THEHMETS AKBETHBRELZ2REBES
RERBIRHEEHRAZEF -

AEBFRBERIDTHEEHAA (BERRE

EPRET)AFZEEXEZEEL - REX

%&%ﬂﬁ%@?%%&l%%ﬁ'iwaﬁﬁ
RE2RAA[ELELEBESR | 258 -



Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd.

22

MANAGEMENT REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEHREE (H)

Annual Report 2007/2008

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to being a financially successful as well
as a socially responsible corporation. From the corporate social
responsibility perspective, it strives to integrate its contribution to
society into its business activities on a day-to-day basis.

Health and Wellness

The Group promotes a healthy diet among consumers by offering
a wide range of high-quality, nutritious and tasty products. One
of the obvious examples is the launch of a whole series of “less
sweet” or “low sugar” products during the year to address the
health consciousness of consumers. The Group, through Hong Kong
Gourmet, actively participated in the ‘EatSmart@school.hk’ campaign
organised by the Department of Health, and conducted seminars to
promote healthy eating at school.

The Group participated in several activities promoting health and
wellness in the community. These included the Care for Your Heart's
charity walk, the Children’s Heart Foundation’s annual exhibition,
and health talks hosted by the Chinese University of Hong Kong. In
Hong Kong, the Group also supported the Hong Kong Breast Cancer
Foundation’s Breast Friends Campaign to help increase the awareness
of its staff and consumers to breast cancer. Meanwhile, Vitasoy USA
supported the nationwide October Breast Health Month by launching
an e-newsletter and organic soymilk, dubbed “Pinkies” in a specially
designed pink 8-ounce package.

Community Support

In Fiscal 2007/2008, the Group continued to make cash and in-kind
contributions to charitable organisations in the communities where it
operates. It is a long-term supporter of the Community Chest of Hong
Kong, World Vision Hong Kong, Oxfam Hong Kong, the Salvation
Army, Outward Bound Hong Kong and ORBIS.

To celebrate the 10th anniversary of the establishment of HKSAR,
we partnered with the Friends of Hong Kong Association and the
government to provide 70,000 VITASQOY coupons with a face value
of HK$10 each to school children born in 1997. The Group also
supported other celebration activities, including events organised by
the Hong Kong Federation of
Women and the Birthday Party
for Children Aged 10 held by
the HKSAR Government.
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In late January 2008, Vitasoy China supported the commuters
stranded at the Guangzhou train station during the blizzards and ice
storms in Mainland China before the Chinese New Year by donating
50,000 VITASOY soymilk drink packs.

Our staff contributed to the
community by volunteering
their time to support various
charitable events, including
Oxfam Trailwalker, the Breast
Cancer Foundation Walkathon
and the Standard Chartered
Hong Kong Marathon.

B0 a “Breast Friond® Wak Aganst Breast Cancer
BRIk 2007

In education, the Group continued to support school activities and
underprivileged university students through its bursary funds while
continuing to be an active supporter of the HKSAR Government'’s
School-Business Partnership Programme that aims to help foster
positive attitudes towards working life among secondary school
students. The Group is also a business partner of the Youth
Employment Start (Y.E.S.) Programme organised by the Labour
Department and provides skill training and mentorship to local young
people.

Relief for Victims of Sichuan Earthquake

In a more recent development, in response to the Sichuan earthquake
that occurred in May 2008, causing widespread hardship to the
people in affected areas, the Group made its donations and called
upon its staff to donate while at the same time pledged to match
staff’'s donations with an equal amount. As a result, a total of over
HK$700,000 was raised to help the victims through the Red Cross.

Environment

To support environmental protection, the Group launched a paperless
office campaign to encourage staff to reduce their paper use by
storing documents in the Document Management System. It continues
to minimise industrial waste generated from production processes,
and uses an increasing number of environmentally friendly delivery
trucks to reduce emissions. All lunch boxes and utensils used in the
Group's catering business are made from recyclable materials.
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RECOGNITION AND AWARDS

In Hong Kong, VITASOY brand was awarded the “Hong
Kong Proud Corporate Brand 2007 — Panel Judge
Award” in the Food Category (Miscellaneous Food & Oil
Category), and “Yahoo! Emotive Brand Awards” in the
Beverage Category. The award was jointly organised by
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and Ming Pao, a
local newspaper. The VITASOY brand was also voted one
of the Top Ten Favourite Brands in a supermarket election
and the “Consumers’ Most Favourable Hong Kong Brands
(Golden Brands) 2008".

The Group was again authorised to display the Caring
Company logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Services (HKCSS), and Vitaland was awarded the
Certificate of Outstanding Performance by the Employees
Retraining Board.
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HONG KONG BB
Production Efficiency M B &
2007/2008 2006/2007
By Location of Assets (Production Plant) HKS$ million HK$ million
REE(EERE) TEM BEEET BEEHET
Revenue PN 1,281 1,099 17
Segment Result DEER 235 222 6
Segment Net Operating Assets DECR L EEE 474 475 (0.2)

The Group’s production plant in Tuen Mun supports both domestic
sales and exports to markets in Europe, Macau, Southeast Asia and
the Americas. For the year ended 31st March, 2008, net sales revenue
generated by this plant and the Group’s catering business reached
HK$1,281 million, increasing by 17% over the previous year. The
segment result for the year was HK$235 million (2006/2007: HK$222
million).

Market Performance

By Location of Customers
REPFTE#

WA—FBBARH
M5
WA—H ATS

Revenue — Hong Kong
Domestic Market
Revenue — Export Markets

2007/2008
HK$ million
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HONG KONG (CONTINUED)

Market Performance (continued)

(1)

Hong Kong Domestic Market

The Hong Kong economy sustained above-trend growth in 2007
with real GDP rising by 6%. The performance of the retail sector
was robust as demand continued to rise with an improved job
market and higher labour income. At the same time, however,
inflationary pressure was intensifying as a result of higher
domestic demand and the volatility of the foreign exchange
market that led to more costly imports.

The non-carbonated beverage sector flourished last year as
consumption grew in both volume and value terms. The obvious
upward trend of the Consumer Price Index helped justify
increment in the retail prices of beverage products. As a result,
the growth in the total value of related beverage consumption
outpaced that of volume, though only by a small margin.

Supported by its strong brand equity, product innovation, and
marketing and sales prowess, the Group’s Hong Kong operation
continued to maintain its leading market position. In terms of
product offerings, the core categories — Ready-To-Drink Tea,
Soymilk and Distilled Water — performed strongly while the
introduction of a record number of new products and tastes also
boosted sales. These new products include VITASOY Jasmine
Soya Bean Milk, reformulated VITASOY Chocolate Soya Bean
Milk, VITA Double Chocolate Milk, VITA Biluochun Tea, VITA
Osmanthus Oolong Tea, VITA Pear Chrysanthemum Tea, VITA
Mango and Orange Juice Drinks and various new flavours under
the GOR YIN HAI, TSING SUM ZHAN and CHA T DIN brands.
A seasonal product, Ginger VITASOY Soya Bean Milk was also
introduced with good response during the last winter season.
More importantly, through product innovation to address
the healthy diet trend, the Group’s market position has been
significantly reinforced by the introduction of such new products
as “Less Sweet” VITA Lemon Tea, “Low Sugar” VITASOY Soya
Bean Milk and the CALCI-PLUS Fresh Soya drink range.

On top of those, the Group also pioneered the organic VITASOY
SAN SUI Tofu range which immediately drew enthusiastic
response from the market when first launched in May 2007 and
has since been capturing a substantial slice of the packaged
tofu market. The range now includes Silken Tofu, Pan-fried Hard
Tofu, and Tofu Dessert with different flavours. Meanwhile, the
Group launched VITASOY Soya Bean Hot Pot Soup in November
2007. These initiatives represent a significant step taken by the
Group to establish a presence in the cooking ingredient and
dessert segments.
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HONG KONG (CONTINUED)

Market Performance (continued)

(1) Hong Kong Domestic Market (continued)

(2)

The Group’s tuck shop and food catering businesses operated
by Vitaland and Hong Kong Gourmet respectively were to some
extent adversely affected by rising raw material costs and wages
that became increasingly evident since the beginning of the
fiscal year. While overall sales increased by 3% due mainly to
the winning of several institutional accounts and being food and
beverage supplier to a number of major events staged at the
Hong Kong Stadium and the Hong Kong Coliseum, which was
partially offset by the “early” Easter holidays in March and the
extension of it due to the outbreak of flu at schools, net profit
was driven down 17% by inflated operating costs. We will work
closely with our business partners to protect our profit margin
while keeping quality service level.

By the end of Fiscal 2007/2008, the number of tuck shops
managed by Vitaland was 312, versus 302 a year ago and the
Group continued to command a major market share of the
business.

Export Markets
The export sales of the Group’s Hong Kong operation grew by

18% year-on-year. Major growth markets include Macau and
Singapore.
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MAINLAND CHINA B A i
Production Efficiency M B &
2007/2008 2006/2007
By Location of Assets (Production Plants) HKS$ million HK$ million
REE(EERE) TEM BEEET BEEHET
Revenue PN 512 474 8
Segment Result DEBHELE 76 77 (1)
Segment Net Operating Assets DEEEELE 233 218 7

The Group’s production plants in Shanghai and Shenzhen support the
Mainland China and Hong Kong markets. In the year under review,
these two HACCP-accredited plants together generated HK$512
million in net sales revenue, representing an increase of 8% year-
on-year. The segment result was HK$76 million (2006/2007: HK$77
million). The flat result was due to the continued investment in
marketing and brand building as described below.

Market Performance

By Location of Customers
REPFTE#

2007/2008
HK$ million
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363 229 59

The Chinese economy continued to witness strong growth in 2007.
General affluence in the major cities and consumers’ increasing
awareness of the importance of a healthy diet helped drive the
demand growth of nutritional beverages such as soymilk.
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MAINLAND CHINA (cONTINUED)

Market Performance (continued)

The implementation of the Group’s “core business, core brand and
core city” strategy continued into Fiscal 2007/2008, proving to be
consistently effective in driving sales and profit growth. The Group’s
systematic investment in brand building and in soy benefit promotion
in Mainland China has been highly rewarding, giving rise to impressive
results. Sales growth in Mainland China was also driven by the
development of the Group's distribution network and the winning of
certain key accounts in Shanghai and Shenzhen respectively. Market
penetration in Southern China was particularly fruitful in the past year.
In the year under review, net sales revenue generated from Mainland
China amounted to HK$363 million, up by a strong 59%.

The Group continued to benefit from business opportunities arising
from the Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement (CEPA) with
Mainland China. New CEPA products imported from Hong Kong
include VITASOY Jasmine Soya Bean Milk and one-litre Organic
VITASOY Creamy Original Soya Drink. These products were in keen
demand in the core cities and they played a key part in driving
sales growth in the past year. Another noteworthy development in
Mainland China is that the Group has been successful in breaking into
the school retail segment.

Meanwhile, the co-packing business in Mainland China continued to
enhance the capacity utilisation of the two plants and contribute to

the Group’s financial performance.
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AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND BN K 7 R
Production Efficiency HEE R
2007/2008 2006/2007
By Location of Assets (Production Plant) HKS$ million HK$ million
REE(EERRE) ER BEAER BEEHET
Revenue PN 280 217 29
Segment Result DEER 57 40 43
Segment Net Operating Assets DEEEELE 246 225 9

The Group’s joint-venture plant in Wodonga, Victoria supports
the Australian and New Zealand markets. In the twelve months to
31st March, 2008, the plant generated HK$280 million in net sales
revenue, representing an impressive increase of 29% despite a flat
market. The segment result was HK$57 million, increasing by HK$17
million or 43% over the previous year.

Market Performance

By Location of Customers

BEERPRER

2007/2008
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The Australian soymilk and rice milk markets recorded a small decline
in the early part of Fiscal 2007/2008. The New Zealand grocery
soymilk and rice milk markets, however, saw a modest growth of 3%.
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AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND (conTINUED)

Market Performance (continued)

In Fiscal 2007/2008, net sales revenue generated in the Australian
and New Zealand markets reached HK$285 million, representing
a strong growth of 28%. The production capacity expansion
plan of the Wodonga plant was completed on schedule in 2006
and, as a result, the Group has been able to pursue a more
aggressive business expansion plan by leveraging its brand equity
and product innovation capabilities. The strong growth in sales
in Australia was supported by the launch of a total of six new
products in the market, including two new one-litre aseptic
packages — VITASOY Organic and VITASOY Heart, and four new
portion packs of 250ml aseptic soymilk, namely, VITASOY Lush
Chocolate, VITASQOY Lush Vanilla, VITASOY SOY MILKY Regular and
VITASQY SOY MILKY Lite. These new products were mostly successful,
accounting for a significant part of the Vitasoy Australia’s volume
growth in the year under review while contributing to the expansion
of the Group’s market share. Besides soymilk products, rice milk also
saw very encouraging growth during the same period.
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NORTH AMERICA b =M
Production Efficiency A R
2007/2008 2006/2007
By Location of Assets (Production Plant) HK$ million HK$ million
REE(EERRE) i EEETERL BEAET
Revenue A 344 319 8
Segment Result D EBEE (23) (49) 53
Segment Net Operating Assets DECEREELE 184 182 1

The Group's production plant in Ayers, Massachusetts supports the
North American market. During the year, the plant generated HK$344
million in net sales revenue, a healthy increase of 8%. Operating
loss narrowed substantially by 53% to HK$23 million (versus HK$49
million in Fiscal 2006/2007).
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Market Performance

By Location of Customers

BEEPRER

2007/2008
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BREAET

BNBEREERFRART 2T/ T N\FFER

\

sl =Sy))

(%8)

MG R

2006/2007
HK$ million
BEBETT

Revenue — North American Market W A—IbEZMTH 5

409 379 8

Despite the prevailing economic downturn, total soy food sales in the
US registered a slight increase from the preceding year. According to
market survey data, consumption of soymilk grew by 7% while tofu
sales dropped by 3%.

The Group’s net sales revenue generated from the North American
market was HK$409 million, up 8%, thus reversing Vitasoy USA's
negative growth situation since 2002/2003. By the re-adjustment of
business strategy to focus on core competencies, the Group was able
to achieve sales growth for the majority of its core products. The
Group's sales performance was also the result of its effort to penetrate
alternate distribution channels such as the food service and club store
channels which account for a substantial portion of soy food sold in
the US. At the same time, focus was diverted to re-packaging, line
item reduction, and launching the first single-serve soymilk in a plastic
bottle. The development of private-label tofu has been underway and
active steps have been taken to expand into other business channels,
including ethnic markets.

Mostly notably, while attaining positive results in business
development, the Group also achieved the important goal of
significantly narrowing its operating loss by 53%.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

We are firmly committed to compliance of statutory
and regulatory corporate governance standards and
adherence to the principles of corporate governance
emphasising transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. The Board of Directors reviews
the corporate governance practices from time to time
to ensure alignment of interests and expectations from
our shareholders, the investing public and the other
stakeholders.

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31st
March, 2008, complied with the code provisions set out in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Listing Rules”) except for the Code Provision A.2.1
for the separation of the roles of Executive Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The general management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board. The Board has established various committees to manage and
oversee the specified affairs of the Company. The Board has delegated
the day-to-day management power of the Company to the Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company.

The Board is committed to the Company’s mission to creating value
for our shareholders. The Board is responsible for developing the
strategic directions for the Company and continuous monitoring
of the performance of the general management of the Company.
Therefore strategic planning has become a very crucial part of the
Board’s function and a lot of focus and attention has been devoted
to such a plan. Strategic planning horizons are generally five years.
The Board has adopted its latest Five Year Strategic Plan in fiscal year
of 2007/2008. It is the practice of the Board to continue to review
and update its Strategic Plan for the Company on a regular basis in
response to changes in the business environment.

A defined schedule of matters reserved for Board decision has been
adopted by the Board. Apart from the strategic planning, certain
important matters involving finance and shareholders’ interests
are reserved for approval by the Board, including, for example,
annual budget, financial statements against budget, dividend policy,
material investments, material acquisitions and disposals; major
financing activities and appointment of Director(s) following the
recommendation(s) by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises five Non-executive Directors and
three Executive Directors. Three of the Non-executive Directors are
independent, from different business and professional fields. The
Independent Non-executive Directors represent over one-third of the
Board. The category, position and brief biographical information of
each Director, together with the relationship amongst each other,
are set out in the "Directors and Senior Management” section in this
Annual Report. The Directors, including the Non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective delivery of the Board functions.
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The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
for the Directors and Officers of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the Listing Rules sets out that the roles of
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Winston Yau-
lai LO is the Executive Chairman of the Company. At the present
stage, the roles of the Chairman of the Board and some roles of the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company are performed by Mr. Winston
Yau-lai LO. However, the Board of the Directors and the Executive
Chairman of the Company fully recognise that the respective roles of
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer should be
separated in the course of time to ensure better checks and balances
and hence better corporate governance.

On 1st August, 2007, we have promoted Mr. Laurence P.
EISENTRAGER, the Chief Executive, Hong Kong to the Group
Chief Executive Officer reporting to the Chairman of the Board.
Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER has assumed most of the executive
responsibilities from the Executive Chairman for the Group’s major
markets and operating units and the transition has been progressing
very smoothly. We are confident that the transition process of
assigning the responsibilities of the Executive Chairman to the Group
Chief Executive Office will be completed in fiscal year of 2009/2010.
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BOARD PROCEEDINGS

The Board met six times in fiscal year of 2007/2008 to mainly discuss
and approve the overall business strategies, to review and monitor the
financial and operating performance of the Group and its business
units respectively, and to consider and approve the annual budget
for the Group. In addition, the members of the Board had attended
a whole-day session to consider and discuss about the Five Year
Strategic Plan for the Group which lays an important road map for the
business development of the Group for the coming five years.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
in relation to the Company. There are established procedures for
Directors to seek independent professional advice for them to
discharge their duties and responsibilities, where appropriate, at the
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Company’s expenses.

Individual attendance of each Board member at these meetings is as =

follows:

8

ERERZEGRACHERRIMAT :

Attendance
HEE
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI THEHT 6/6
Mr. lain F. BRUCE mELTRAE 4/6
Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND Jan P. S. ERLUND %&£ 4 6/6
Non-executive Directors ERITES
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO BRAEXTL 6/6
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO BEK L 5/6
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (Chairman) BRERE(ER) 6/6
Mr. Ambrose Kam-shing CHAN PR 5% B 5t A& 0/2
(resigned on 25th July, 2007) (R—ZZEZELFLtA=-F+HBEET)
Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER RiEExE 4/4
(appointed on 20th July, 2007) (RZZEZLFLA-+HEZE)
Mr. Eric Fat YU REFEE 6/6
Mr. John Shek-hung LAU 2185 & 4/4

(retired on 1st December, 2007)

(R=—ZEZ2LF+-A—HEME)
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of a new Director is made on the recommendation
by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee of the Company or
by shareholders in a general meeting. Any Director who is appointed
by the Board shall retire at the next General Meeting.

The Non-executive Directors of the Company do not have a specific
term of appointment. Under the Company’s current Articles of
Association, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
every three years and one-third (or the number nearest to but not
exceeding one-third) of Directors shall retire from office every year at
the Company’s Annual General Meeting. The term of appointment of
a Director cannot exceed three years.

Induction programmes are arranged for the newly appointed Directors
on the general business of the Company. On appointment, new
Directors will also be given an induction programme kit advising
them of their responsibilities and duties as Directors under various
regulatory requirements and the Board procedures, including the
Terms of Reference of the Board Committees.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Company. Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
Annual Financial Statements for 2007/2008 are prepared on a going-
concern basis. All the new accounting standards and policies adopted
by the Company have been thoroughly discussed and approved at the
Audit Committee before adoption by the Board.
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The Group has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the "Code"”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standards set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code") contained
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. A similar code has also been
adopted by the Group for the specified group of employees who may
possess or have access to price sensitive information. Specific enquiries
was made of all Directors and the specified group of employees and
all Directors and the specified group of employees have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Code for the
year ended 31st March, 2008.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an Executive Committee, a Remuneration
and Nomination Committee and an Audit Committee.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established in 2001. Its current
members include all three Executive Directors, who are:

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (Chairman)
Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER
Mr. Eric Fat YU

The Executive Committee operates as a general management
committee under the direct authority of the Board to deal with certain
operational matters of the Group.

Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The Compensation Committee was established in February 1994 and
was renamed as “"Remuneration and Nomination Committee” on 2nd
February, 2005 with increased scope of authority. This Committee now
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors and two Non-
executive Directors and its current members are:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI (Chairman)
Mr. lain F. BRUCE

Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO
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The Committee was set up to consider and approve the remuneration
packages of Executive Directors and Senior Management of the
Group, including salaries, benefits in kind and bonuses; the bonus
schemes and the other long-term incentive schemes, including share
option and other plans. The Committee also reviews the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board from time to time and recommends to the Board on
appointments of Directors and the succession planning for Directors.
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The Committee met three times in fiscal year of 2007/2008. Individual RZZZE+/ ZTZN\UBREERE E@% =
attendance of each Committee member at these meetings is as SR BERERZEERILEERRIMOT
follows:

Attendance

Mg =

Independent Non-executive Directors BILEBITES
Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI FTHBEELT 3/3
Mr. lain F. BRUCE mBLEAE 3/3
Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND Jan P. S. ERLUND 5t & 3/3
Non-executive Directors EHITES
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO BEALLT 3/3
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO BREZL 2/3
Attendance By Invitation: FEEHE :
Executive Chairman BITER
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO BEREEAE 3/3
Report of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee FHRIEEZEEEZHE
The Committee has reviewed, discussed and approved the ZECEEZ WmkILENSEEK AEES

remuneration policies, remuneration of Senior Management including
the Executive Directors and key executives of the Group by reference
to the individuals’ job responsibilities and performances, industry
benchmarks and prevailing market conditions. The Committee has
also approved the discretionary bonuses and the grant of share
options, having given due consideration to both the Group’s financial
performance and the individuals’ performances during the year
in accordance with the performance-based compensation policy
recommended by an independent consultant. No individual Executive
Director has voted in deciding his own remuneration.

During the year, the Committee nominated Mr. Laurence P.
EISENTRAGER as an Executive Director for approval of appointment
by the Board. Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 20th July, 2007.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1999. Its current members
include three Independent Non-executive Directors, who are:

Mr. lain F. BRUCE (Chairman)
Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI
Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND

The Audit Committee’s terms of reference are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the External Auditors and any questions of resignation
or dismissal, their audit fees, matters relating to the independence of
the External Auditors; to meet with the External Auditors to discuss
the nature and scope of the audit, and matters of concern when
requested to do so by the External Auditors; to review the interim
financial report and annual financial statements before they are
submitted to the Board; to discuss problems and reservations arising
from the interim review and final audit, and any other matters the
External Auditors may wish to discuss, and to review the External
Auditors’ management letter and management’s response; to review
the internal audit programmes and to ensure co-ordination between
the Internal and External Auditors, and ensure that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within
the Group; and to consider any findings of major investigations of
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative, and management’s response.
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The Audit Committee met three times in fiscal year of 2007/2008. N2/ —ZZ N\GBRFEANAERLZES
Individual attendance of each Committee member at these meetings HEAG=IR - %ﬁﬁ?%ﬁ(\‘%ﬁ%@mZﬁfii’% Fl 40
is as follows: N

Attendance

HE=E

Independent Non-executive Directors BAEHTES
Mr. lain F. BRUCE mMBLiE 3/3
Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI THEHT 2/3
Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND Jan P. S. ERLUND %t &£ 3/3
Attendance by Invitation: FEB W FE -
Executive Chairman HITERE 3/3
Group Senior Director — Finance and Administration EESREE -MBRITH 3/3
Group Internal Audit Director SEABEZBE 3/3
External Auditors SNEE A% B AD 3/3



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EXRERREE (H)

Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the revised accounting standards,
the 2007/2008 interim financial report and annual financial
statements with management and the Company’s External Auditors,
and recommended their adoption by the Board. The Committee also
reviewed with the Internal Auditor the Company’s internal control
systems and the periodic audit reports prepared by the Internal
Auditor and approved the 2008/2009 audit plan.

The Committee has met with the External Auditors to discuss the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations prior to the
commencement of the audit. The Audit Committee has also reviewed
and considered the terms of engagement of the External Auditors,
including assessing their independence and objectivity. The Audit
Committee has also reviewed and approved/preapproved the audit
and non-audit services provided by the External Auditors, together
with their respective fees.

SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s system
of internal control includes a defined management structure with
limits of authority, is designed to help the achievement of business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication,
and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. The
system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of
the Group’s objectives.

Directors, through the Audit Committee, have conducted an annual
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Group. The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group Internal Audit Department carries out annual risk
assessment on auditable areas in accordance with a Risk-based
Internal Audit Rolling Plan reviewed and pre-approved by the Audit
Committee. In addition to its scheduled reviews, the Group Internal
Audit Department also conducts other ad hoc reviews whenever
deemed necessary. The results of significant internal audit reviews
(and as applicable, agreed rectification plans) are reported to the
Company'’s senior executives and Audit Committee periodically. The
Group Internal Audit Department also follows up the rectification
actions to ensure that satisfactory controls are maintained.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

KPMG has been appointed as the External Auditors of the Company
by shareholders at the last Annual General Meeting. An amount
of HK$3.2 million (2006/2007 HK$2.8 million) was charged for the
fiscal year of 2007/2008 for statutory audits for the Company and
subsidiaries. The amount for the other non-audit services provided by
KPMG for the Company and subsidiaries during the year was HK$0.6
million (2006/2007 HK$2.6 million). The non-audit services mainly
comprised tax advisory services.

The responsibilities of the External Auditors with respect to the
2007/2008 financial statements are set out in the section of
"Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 63 and 64.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

We believe accountability and transparency are indispensable for
ensuring good corporate governance and, in this regard, timely
communication with our shareholders, including institutional investors,
is crucial. We manage investor relations systematically as a key part of
our operations.

The Company’s Annual General Meeting is one of the important
forums to communicate with its shareholders. During the 2007
Annual General Meeting, the Chairman of the Board briefed
shareholders the business review and the outlook of the Group
and answered questions raised by shareholders. The chairmen of
the Remuneration and Nomination Committee and a member of
Audit Committee were also there to answer questions raised by
shareholders.
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Separate resolutions in respect of each substantial issue, including
the appointment and re-election of Directors were proposed by the
Chairman at the Annual General Meeting. The Company’s Articles of
Association provide the rights of shareholders, and the procedures to
demand a poll vote on resolutions at general meetings. Such rights
and procedures were detailed in the circular relating to the Annual
General Meeting, and were explained by the Chairman of the Board
during the Annual General Meeting before voting on the resolutions.
An independent scrutineer was appointed to count the votes and the
voting results were announced at the Annual General Meeting.

We also maintain a website (www.vitasoy.com) to keep our
shareholders and the investing public posted of our latest business
developments, final and interim results announcements, financial
reports, public announcements, corporate governance policy and
practices, and other relevant shareholder information.

During the year, we continued to follow a policy of maintaining
an open and regular dialogue with institutional shareholders, fund
managers, analysts and the media through different means, including
meetings, presentations, telephone conferences, correspondences,
media briefings and press releases to distribute information on the
Group's latest developments and strategies. We also continued to be
proactive in responding to general enquiries raised by the investing
public, individual and institutional investors and investment analysts.
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EEREEBEEAER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Chairman

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, aged 67, is the Executive Chairman of the
Group. Mr. Lo was appointed a Director of the Company in 1972.
He is principally responsible for the Group's long-term strategic
development. Mr. Lo is @ member of The National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, the Court of Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology, and Cornell University
Council. He is a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, the
vice president of the Council of Outward Bound Trust of Hong Kong
and a director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, a listed company in
Hong Kong, and Ping Ping Investment Company Limited. He is the
brother of Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO and Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI, aged 69, was appointed a
Director of the Company in 1994. Sir David is the chairman and
chief executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited. He is the chairman
of the Chinese Banks’ Association, Limited and the Hong Kong
Management Association. He is a member of the Legislative Council
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He is also a member
of the Banking Advisory Committee and the Council of the Treasury
Markets Association. Sir David is also a director of China Merchants
China Direct Investments Limited, China Overseas Land & Investment
Limited, COSCO Pacific Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited, The
Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, The Hongkong and
Shanghai Hotels, Limited, Hong Kong Interbank Clearing Limited,
The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited, PCCW Limited, San
Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited, SCMP Group Limited, AFFIN
Holdings Berhad and Criteria Caixa Corp., all being companies listed
either in Hong Kong or overseas.

Mr. lain F. BRUCE, aged 67, was appointed a Director of the
Company in 2001. Mr. Bruce joined KPMG Hong Kong in 1964 and
was its senior partner from 1991 to 1996. He is the chairman of KCS
Limited, a director of Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited and is a member
of the Board of Stewards of The Hong Kong Jockey Club. Mr. Bruce is
a director of China Medical Technologies, Inc., Noble Group Limited,
Paul Y Engineering Group Limited, Tencent Holdings Limited, Wing
On Company International Limited and Yingli Green Energy Holding
Company Limited, all being companies listed either in Hong Kong or
overseas.
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Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND, aged 69, was appointed a Director of the
Company in 2006. Mr. Erlund is now a partner in Copenhagen
Chambers focusing on Danish and international arbitration. He
was a partner of Gorrissen Federspiel Kierkegaard, a law firm in
Copenhagen, Denmark. He was the president of the Danish Bar and
Law Association, president of the Danish Maritime Law Association
and chairman of the Maritime and Transport Committee of the
International Bar Association. Mr. Erlund is the chairman of the board
of directors of Dansk Skovselskab A/S and deputy chairman of ERRIA
A/S, both being listed on the Stock Exchange in Denmark.

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO, aged 69, was appointed a Director of the
Company in 1992. Ms. Lo is a member of the Docent Committee and
Bishop White Committee of the Royal Ontario Museum in Toronto,
Canada. She is the sister of Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO and Ms. Yvonne
Mo-ling LO.

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO, aged 60, was appointed a Director of the
Company in 1993. Ms. Lo joined the Group in 1980 and was the
President of Vitasoy USA Group until 2001. Ms. Lo was the president
of the Soyfoods Association of North America which represents 60
soyfoods companies covering the US and Canada. She is the sister of
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO and Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO.

Executive Directors

Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER, aged 56, was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2007. Mr. Eisentrager is the Group Chief Executive
Officer and is currently responsible for the overall strategic planning,
business development and general management of the Group’s
operations in Hong Kong, Australia and New Zealand and North
America. Mr. Eisentrager joined the Group in 2002 and was the
General Manager of the Group’s operation in Australia and New
Zealand until 2005. He then became the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group’s Hong Kong Operation and was promoted to Group
Chief Executive Officer in 2007. He has very extensive experience
in the food and beverage industry in Hong Kong, Australia and
internationally.

Mr. Eric Fat YU, aged 58, was appointed a Director of the Company
in 1989. Mr. Yu is the Group’s Senior Director — Manufacturing
and Project Management. He has experience in engineering works
and project management whilst working previously with a number
of companies overseas. He joined the Group in 1974. He is now
responsible for the formulation of the Group’s manufacturing policy
and strategy and the management of the Group’s new joint venture
project.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Group Senior Directors

Mr. William Chi-chung LO, aged 47, Group Senior Director —
Finance and Administration and also the Qualified Accountant of the
Group. Mr. Lo is responsible for the finance and administration of the
Group. He joined the Group in 2007. Prior to joining the Group, he
served as an Executive Director and Group Finance Director of a listed
property and entertainment conglomerate. He has over twenty years
of experience in the fields of finance, accounting and auditing.

Ms. Rosemary Pik-ling LI, aged 51, Group Senior Director —
Human Resources. Ms. Li is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and development of human resources of the Group. Her
responsibilities include formulating and implementing strategies,
policies and practices for human resources management and talent
development. She joined the Group in 2000. She had over twenty
years of human resources experience gained from multinational and
local organizations before joining the Group.

Hong Kong Operation

Mr. Charles Chung CHYI, aged 53, Chief Executive Officer, Hong
Kong. Mr. Chyi is responsible for the general management and
development of the Group's operations in Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in early 2008 and had held senior management positions with
a couple of prominent multinational companies previously in the food
and beverage industry focusing on Greater China.

Mainland China Operation

Mr. Jack Jie YUAN, aged 39, Managing Director of Vitasoy (China)
Investments Company Limited. Mr. Yuan is responsible for the general
management and development of the Group’s operation in Mainland
China. Mr. Yuan joined the Group in 2004 as the General Manager
of the Group's Shenzhen joint venture operation. He has extensive
experience in the beverage industry and had previously worked with a
number of multinational companies in Mainland China.

Australian and New Zealand Operation

Mr. Scott A. PANNELL, aged 38, General Manager of Vitasoy
Australia Products Pty. Ltd. Mr. Pannell is responsible for the general
management and development of the Group’s operations in Australia
and New Zealand. He joined the Group in 2005. He has very extensive
experience in the fast moving consumer goods (FMCG) industry
within Australia and New Zealand and experience in working in
manufacturing businesses operating within the retail grocery, route
and convenience and food service markets.
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North American Operation

Mr. Walter M. RIGLIAN, aged 54, President and Chief Executive
Officer of Vitasoy USA Inc.. Mr. Riglian is responsible for the general
management and development of the Group's operations in North
America. He joined the Group in 2005. He has extensive experience
in sales, marketing, and new product development. Prior to joining
Vitasoy USA Inc., Mr. Riglian held numerous senior management
positions with several renowned multi-national companies in the
natural products, grocery and produce industries.

Singaporean Operation

Mr. Joe Chui-wah HO, aged 56, Chief Executive Officer of Unicurd
Food Co. (Private) Ltd., the Group’s newly acquired tofu company in
Singapore. Mr. Ho is responsible for the general management and
development of the Group’s operation in Singapore. He joined the
Group in 1996 and was responsible for overseeing the research and
development and technical knowhow of the Group. He had been
seconded to the Group’s North American operation in 2000 and
appointed as the Executive Vice President of Technical Services of the
operation. Before joining the Group, he had worked in several well-
known food and beverage companies.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EREHEE

Annual Report 2007/2008

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March,
2008.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office
and principal place of business at No. 1 Kin Wong Street, Tuen Mun,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and sale
of food and beverages. The principal activities and other particulars of
the subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The analysis of geographical locations of the operations of the
Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the financial year
are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during
the financial year is as follows:

The largest customer TARFE

Five largest customers in aggregate BREABF &G
The largest supplier SN MR

Five largest suppliers in aggregate HAANHERS

EXEeMAREBE_ZTENF=ZA=1+ AL
FEZFRIBERYBHHRE

FTEEXEME

HMNBEBEEEERAB([ARA]) RRINE
BEREBEMELZ AR HEMMHERERE
REXWHURBEMAEFIEEE 5% -

FTEXB

ARRZ T EEBRBEERBEERRRAG < I
BARZ EEERREAMFBEHEN Y B RRME
14

ARABREMBRAR(AEE ) AAHBFEN
BRE D2 EB O MER T B REHIZEI12 -

TEEFREESR

NTHERSAMRFEEEZER RERAED HIE
AEBEFEEHELRBRIER

Percentages of the Group’s total

Sales Purchases
i 7 £ B hAE B
SHELBETI REBRABEEDL
8%
24%
28%
39%

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest
in these major customers and suppliers.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2008 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 65 to 162.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$235,981,000 (2007: HK$201,312,000) has been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

An interim dividend of HK2.8 cents per ordinary share (2007: HK2.8
cents per ordinary share) was paid on 28th December, 2007. The
Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK8.7
cents per ordinary share (2007: HK6.7 cents per ordinary share) and
a special dividend of HK10.0 cents per ordinary share (2007: HK10.0
cents per ordinary share) in respect of the year ended 31st March,
2008.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$121,000 (2007: HK$96,000).

FIXED ASSETS

Movements in fixed assets of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS

Particulars of bank loans of the Group as at 31st March, 2008 are set
out in note 23 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 25 to the financial statements. Shares were
issued during the year on exercise of share options.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company'’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. lain F. BRUCE and Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO retire from
the board by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Non-executive Directors are appointed under the same terms for
rotational retirement as other Directors, pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

The Directors of the Company who held office at 31st March,
2008 had the following interests in the shares of the Company
and subsidiaries (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO")) at that date as recorded in the register of
directors’ interests and short positions required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO:

(1) Interests in issued shares

BNBEREERFRART 2T/ T N\FFER

ESERKRG - HERHD R
BREBCEZERAR

N

BAEFRBEKRI)EI2GRERTF2ESR
HmRARBLMEHME RZBBNF=ZA=
T—HERZAARNEEREAFEARAARARHN
Bom (ERA(EFZRBEGEN)) B HETHRA
ZEBEZOT

(1) REBHTBRHZER

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each
BREEERISTZEERYE

Trusts and Total * % of
Personal ETTY similar number of  total issued
interests interests interests  shares held shares
*h BT
BRER E #5 % BHasz
RiEHE = [ 38 # &= 9 488 B
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (i), (iv) 49,939,800 28,702,500 72,678,300 151,320,600 14.96
BRIBEE
Dr. The Hon. Sir David
Kwok-po LI 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 0.59
FTHEHEELT
Mr. Jan P.S. ERLUND 100,000 - - 100,000 0.01
Jan P.S. ERLUND %¢ &
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO (i), (iv) - - 100,653,000 100,653,000 9.95
BREXTL
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO (iii), (iv) 23,037,990 - 78,806,760 101,844,750 10.07
BERRLLT
Mr. Eric Fat YU 75,000 - - 75,000 0.01

REELE

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

This percentage has been compiled based on the total number of
shares of the Company in issue (i.e. 1,011,575,500 ordinary shares) as
at 31st March, 2008.

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO is deemed to be interested in 28,702,500
shares through interests of his wife.

Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO is interested in 27,974,700 shares held by
Supreme Luck Holdings Limited which in turn holds such shares in
trust for Myrna Lo Trust (formerly known as The Lo Kwee Seong 1987
Trust).

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is interested in 6,128,460 shares held by
Yvonne Lo Charitable Remainder Unitrust. Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO
is a beneficiary of Yvonne Lo Charitable Remainder Unitrust and is
therefore deemed to be interested in such shares.

* BOHERBEARRR-_ZEZENF=ZA=1+
—HEBE #7217 @2 (811,011,575,500 B
LW Mat& -

(i) B RIS R N E = =5 528,702,500 % Bk
B MERAEEZERD 2 -

(ii) 7 5 & %2 £+ ¥ A M Supreme Luck Holdings
Limited ¥ /& 227,974,700 R IR 5 2 &« %
A FIAFEE A & 19 AMyrna Lo Trust( 31 18
The Lo Kwee Seong 1987 Trust) ¥ B #% % %

1/\ o

(i) % F ¥ Z + # B HYvonne Lo Charitable
Remainder Unitrust#§ & 26,128,460 % A% 17
2 o BRI Z £ AYvonne Lo Charitable
Remainder Unitrustz & 5 A @ MU 18 &
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Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd.

54

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EFEEREE (R

Annual Report 2007/2008

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

(1) Interests in issued shares (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv) Each of Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO and Ms.
Yvonne Mo-ling LO is interested in 72,678,300 shares held by The
Bank of East Asia (Nominees) Limited which holds such shares as a
nominee for the K.S. Lo Foundation, a charitable trust. Each of them
is a trustee of the K.S. Lo Foundation and is therefore deemed to be
interested in such shares.

(2) Interests in underlying shares

Certain Directors of the Company have been granted options
under the Company’s share option scheme, details of which are
set out in the section “Share option scheme” below.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company are
long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than certain nominee shares
in subsidiaries held by the Directors in trust for the Company, none
of the Directors of the Company or any of their spouses or children
under eighteen years of age has interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company, any of
its subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 4th September, 2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme
under which the Directors might, at their discretion, grant options to
employees and Directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each in the Company. This
scheme was valid for 10 years ending 3rd September, 2012, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended. The purpose of this scheme was to
provide incentives and rewards to employees for their contribution to the
Group. The principal terms of this scheme were as follows:

- The exercise price of the options is the highest of (a) the closing
price of the shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (b) the average of the closing prices
of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

- The options were exercisable for a period to be notified by the
Directors to each option holder, such period not to exceed 10
years from the date of grant.

- There was no minimum period which an option must be held
before it could be exercised, but the Directors were empowered
to impose at their discretion any such minimum period at the
date of offer.

- The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue on the date of approval and adoption of the
scheme.

- The maximum aggregate number of shares over which options
could be granted to any one participant, when added to the
number of shares issued or issuable to that participant under
the share option scheme must not exceed 25% of the maximum
aggregate number of shares for the time being issued and
issuable under the share option scheme.

- An offer of the grant of an option remained open for
acceptance by an eligible Director or employee for a period of
28 days from the date of offer or such longer or shorter period
as the Directors might in their discretion determine. An eligible
Director or employee had to pay HK$10 on acceptance of the
option as a consideration.

- Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a general
meeting, the total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to any one
participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant.

The total number of ordinary shares available for issue under the
share option scheme as at 31st March, 2008 was 76,763,550 shares
(including options for 20,470,000 ordinary shares that have been
granted but not yet exercised), which represented 7.59% of the
issued share capital of the Company at 31st March, 2008.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) BE RS FEST 2l ()

The Directors of the Company individually and other employees of the REAFERFER  BAHARREERAMAE
Group in aggregate had the following personal interests in options to HryEEEAIRBARRLEBRBRETES
subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company during the year and at ZEAERZWAT :

the end of the year:

Number of
options
forfeited on
Number of termination of
Options Number of Number of employment Number of * Market * Market
Price per Outstanding options options of eligible options value value
Period during share on at the granted exercised participants outstanding per share per share
Date of which options exercise beginning of during the during the during the at the end on grant on exercise
Participants grant are exercisable  of options the year year year year of the year of options of options
RERE
friEERE K REBSEE &R R *fifE
KEfZ HkTEZ EREHZ EnffEz  BRMAKZ Hx{TEZ ERER ERER
ERETES BREMR BRERA EREHE BRERA BRERA EREHE BB <EBRME
HKS HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Directors
%
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO 11412003 11412004 - 31/3/2013 1.688 2,220,000 - - - 2,220,000 1.660 -
BRERE 11412004 11472005 - 3173/2014 1.904 1,700,000 - - - 1,700,000 1920 -
1/6/2005 1/6/2006 - 31/5/2015 2315 1,472,000 = = = 1,472,000 2425 -
5/6/2006 5/6/2007 - 4/6/2016 2.900 976,000 - - - 976,000 2.850 -
18/7/2007 181712008 - 17/7/2017 3.600 - 712,000 - - 712,000 3630 -
Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER 5/6/2006 5/6/2007 - 4/6/2016 2900 224,000 - - - 224,000 2.850 -
BEERE 18/7/2007 181712008 - 17/7/2017 3.600 = 592,000 - - 592,000 3630 -
Mr. Eric Fat YU 11412003 1142004 - 31/3/2013 1.688 738,000 - - - 738,000 1.660 -
P ik 1/412004 11412005 - 31/3/2014 1.904 450,000 - - - 450,000 1.920 -
1/6/2005 11612006 - 31/572015 2375 392,000 - - - 392,000 2425 -
5/6/2006 5/6/2007 - 4/6/2016 2.900 316,000 = = = 316,000 2.850 -
18/7/2007 18/7/2008 - 17712017 3.600 - 304,000 - - 304,000 3.630 -
Mr. Ambrose Kam-shing CHAN* 3/8/2004 3/8/2006 - 2/8/2014 1.910 900,000 = (900,000) = = 1910 3590
REB L 1/6/2005 1/6/2006 - 31/5/2015 2375 1,794,000 - (598,000) (1,196,000) - 2425 3.490
5/6/2006 5/6/2007 - 4/6/2016 2.900 954,000 - (238,000) (716,000) - 2.850 3490
Mr. John Shek-hung LAU® 1/4/2003 1/42004 - 31/3/2013 1688 820,000 - - - 820,000 1660 -
Koyt 11412004 1142005 - 3173/2014 1.904 500,000 - - - 500,000 1920 -
1/6/2005 1/6/2006 - 31/5/2015 2375 392,000 - - - 392,000 2425 -
5/6/2006 5/6/2007 - 4/6/2016 2.900 316,000 - - - 316,000 2.850 -
Eligible employees working 1/4/2003 1/412004 - 31/3/2013 1.688 1,849,000 - (1,186,000) (25,000) 638,000 1.660 3.446
under employment contracts 11412004 11412005 - 31/3/2014 1.904 2,292,000 - (946,000) (34,000 1,312,000 1.920 3418
REBBANIHZALREE 1/6/2005 116/2006 - 31/5/2015 2315 2,534,000 = (530,000) (86,000) 1,918,000 2425 3327
5/6/2006 5/6/2007 - 4/6/2016 2.900 2,476,000 - (142,000 (154,000) 2,180,000 2.850 3352
18/7/2007 181712008 - 17/7/2017 3.600 - 2,298,000 - - 2,298,000 3630 -

23,315,000 3,906,000 (4,540,000) (2,211,000) 20,470,000

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names BRTEECEREBEARARERBBEAZES 2E

of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners. EER -

* being the closing price or the weighted average closing price of the Company’s * AAAREBRAERBRER L SETEN— B
ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the options were granted BRAZETELMETHESE -
or exercised, as applicable.

# Mr. Ambrose Kam-shing CHAN resigned as an Executive Director on 25th July, # BBBAER _TTELFLA -+ RHBBTHNTE
2007. )

@ Mr. John Shek-hung LAU resigned as an Executive Director and retired from @ ZHBAENR _TTLF+ A BBITHTES
service to the company from 1st December, 2007. Pursuant to the share option W B IR IR o RIBFERERT 2R A - 21858 58 £ R
scheme rule, Mr. John Shek-hung LAU is still eligible to exercise his share options WERBERRNDAFEERITELERE -

within six months after his retirement.



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and
the value per option is provided in note 1(n)(iv) and note 26 to the
financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

Note:

Except for the options granted on 3rd August, 2004, all the options are exercisable
progressively and the maximum percentage of the options which may be exercised is
determined in stages as follows:

BDNBERERFRAR —TTL/ T N\FER

BRETE @

EHEEBBREZEIABRRLEEBRIEZE
B2 BB BB R B 7% R 5 1(n)(v) B BT 5E 26

BEXFREREEN EAFEZEAER A2
AREEANEARMESLEMLHE  BER
RAEFAEBARNRAHLEMEAM AR Z D
HEEEMES -

GEE

BR-ZFZNENA=ZARHZBREN A TFITRZ
FAERBBRERE DELIEN  MEERATEEREZ
BOLERMT :

Percentage of
options granted

EEEBREZBESL

On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant
On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant
On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant

On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant

R AR i AFRER
B AMEF = BFRER

i B AT A R AR

R B s — AR ER 25%

another % 25%

another% 25%

another % 25%

o%
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

The Company has been notified of the following interests in the
Company'’s issued shares at 31st March, 2008 amounting to 5% or
more of the ordinary shares in issue. These interests are in addition to
those disclosed above in respect of the Directors.

Substantial shareholders

FTERK
Ms. Irene CHAN (i), (i)
PREF B L+
Mr. Kai-tun LO (ii)
ERBEE
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO (ii)
BIERKHE
Commonwealth Bank of Australia (iii)
B M B FB AR AT
Arisaig Greater China Fund

(" Arisaig”) (iv)
Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Limited

(“Arisaig Mauritius”) (v)
Mr. Lindsay William Ernest

COOPER (“Cooper”) (vi)

COOPER ¢ 4 ([ Cooper ] )
Matthews International Capital
Management LLC (vii)

Personal
interests

8 A &

23,514,700

18,508,950

7,548,000

60,600,000

FTERRREMALIREG K
HERD R RXE

RZBENF=ZA=+—R ARFACEHAET
IMEARFEETEBRZS%HA L ZARF
ERTROES ZERSTEEEXAREZ
EEgEE -

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each
EREEE®STZEERSA

Family
interests

Rk

750,000

Trusts and Total * % of total

Corporate similar  number of issued
interests interests shares held shares
*HEBIT

FRER E #5 % 19 % 1 42 B

[ 48 # & R ZHES

- 72,678,300 96,943,000 9.58

- 72,678,300 91,187,250 9.01

- 72,678,300 80,226,300 7.93
60,763,000 - 60,763,000 6.01
- - 60,600,000 5.99
60,600,000 - 60,600,000 5.99
60,600,000 - 60,600,000 5.99
50,645,000 - 50,645,000 5.01

* This percentage has been compiled based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue (i.e. 1,011,575,500 ordinary shares) as at 31st March, 2008.

* BREREARAR-FENF=A=+-—AEEH
172 B fn 48 # (B11,011,575,500 % & @ AR ) &t 5 »



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EFEEREE (R

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’" AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) Ms. Irene CHAN is interested in 750,000 shares held for her daughter
Alexandra CHAN who is under the age of 18.

(i) Each of Ms. Irene CHAN, Mr. Kai-tun LO and Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO is
interested in 72,678,000 shares held by The Bank of East Asia (Nominees)
Limited which holds such shares as a nominee for the K.S. Lo Foundation, a
charitable trust. Each of them is a trustee of the K.S. Lo Foundation and is
therefore deemed to be interested in such shares.

(iii) Commonwealth Bank of Australia was taken to be interested in these
60,763,000 shares which were held by its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

(iv) These interests are held by Arisaig in the capacity of beneficial owner.

(v) These interests are held by Arisaig Mauritius in the capacity of investment
manager of Arisaig. These interests are duplicated by the interests disclosed in
Note (iv) above.

(vi) These interests represent Cooper’s interests through his indirect 33% interest
in Arisaig Mauritius. These interests are duplicated by the interests disclosed
in Notes (iv) and (v) above.

(vii)  These interests are held by Matthews International Capital Management LLC
in the capacity of investment manager.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company are
long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be recorded
in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO have been notified
to the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

BNBEREERFRART 2T/ T N\FFER

FTER &%ka%%ﬁ&
HERD ZEZRRE @)

BT
(i) fRAEREZLTHAERE XM+ /B R Alexandra
CHAN# A 2 750,000 f& s {5 2 1 25 -

iy BERELLT BHIAXRERBEALEYES
BRGRITEZARERARAAUREABERKS.
Lo Foundation2& & £ € #/5 2 72,678,000 IR A& {5 -
% %19 AK. S. Lo FoundationZ 2 st A » 17 B
BHEZERND 2 -

(i) SRMEHBETERAREZENBRRAMFEEZ
60,763,000 fix i 15 E H #E %5 ©

(iv) ZERFDAAaiglERZEBEASDES -

(v) % 55 25 75 A Arisaig Mauritius A Arisaig 2 1% & £&
BHEMOEE ZEEDEEXHME(ATEE AR
— R o

(vi) 5 % % Ty Cooperif iB H # 4% A Arisaig Mauritius
23BN EEMER 2 - ZFEHA X
(MEWFEESERRE —HE -

(i #% % # zm J5 B Matthews International Capital
Management LLCIAE BB FH#EH -

RARR D RABROT 22 BEHRTER

Ll &S RRARAETNENSHERMALEE
RIBCE 5 M B 15 H) 5336 15 M (R 17 .2 B &0
Wz B o

il

R

>H

D x

RIEFRTMEEL AMENURRARAES
FE - RAFRES  ARR—ERE TR
REZAREBE -

EENEHNZER

NN R e S O N NSRS NG S R S e
FRAEARBETLARREERFEAREZE
BEHK -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEREE(R)

DIRECTORS" AND OFFICERS' LIABILITY INSURANCE

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance was maintained during
the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(1

On 21st March, 2006, the Company entered into a Milk Supply
Agreement with Shenzhen Guang Ming Holdings Limited
("“Guangming”), a substantial shareholder holding 30% of
the registered capital of the Company’s subsidiary, Shenzhen
Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Vitasoy”), under which Guangming would supply
milk products and provide milk processing and packaging
services to the Company for a period of 3 years commencing
1st April, 2006. During the year, HK$2,517,000 (2007:
HK$2,515,000) was charged by Guangming.

The transactions constituted continuing connected transactions
under Rule 14A.34(1) of the Listing Rules, which are only
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
and are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement. An announcement was made by the Company on
21st March, 2006 in this respect.

The Directors,
Directors, considered that the transactions during the year
ended 31st March, 2008:

including the Independent Non-executive

(i) were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company;

(i) were conducted on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favourable than terms available from independent
third parties; and

(iii)  were conducted in accordance with the Milk Supply
Agreement on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

EERTBRAEZEERE

KEERN ARAFCREFRITBRABRREMRE
Rz e

FERXZ
(1) R-BEAF=ZA=+—B ARFDER

NHHBERMAER AR ([XEF])FT L&D
HEwZE - B - LA mAR R R E
MESRREHENNIEBERE A=
%?ﬁimﬂ—atﬁ%%£¢°%%%
FEXRQAIMBRRRIEM(LA) R@
ﬁﬂﬁﬁ@a<mwmmmnﬁﬁﬁ$
230% 2 EBRE - FA - KBHREIEE
2,517,000 T ( = F T £ 5 : 7 #2,515,000
TT) e

BiEETHEEIL4A3MNE BBER S E
W%E%LX%'EmﬁLﬁ$ﬁ& 15
MEMERCBLRRILEZRTE - AR
AER _ZEEZERNFZA_F+—HBHHRMHER

D e

EX(BEBUFATEZ)RREHARS
REE-ZZENF=A=+—RLLFE:
(i) RARFR—RBEBEHBIEPET

(i) BREFHERRRBRTBRBILE=
ERTZIGRFET R

(iii) &ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%mLﬁ~ﬁx%ﬁ
FAE O WAFABRROREEFZ

2
S

E\\
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

In addition, the independent auditors of the Company
confirmed that:

(i) the transactions were approved by the board of directors;

(i) the transactions were entered into in accordance with the
agreed prices as set out in the Milk Supply Agreement;
and

(ili)  the consideration for the transactions had not exceeded
the annual cap of HK$6,000,000 for the year ended 31st
March, 2008.

On 22nd March, 2007, the Company’s subsidiary, Vitasoy
Australia Products Pty. Ltd. (“VAP"), entered into a Services
and Distribution Agreement whereby National Foods Milk
Limited (“NFML"), a fellow subsidiary of National Foods Holding
Limited, a substantial shareholder holding 49% of the issued
share capital of VAP, would provide services to VAP in relation to
soy food and beverage products manufactured, imported and/
or distributed by VAP targeted for mainstream market (“VAP
Products”). As part of the services provided, NFML would be
the exclusive distributor in Australia of the VAP Products. In
return, VAP would pay a management fee equal to 3.5% of
gross sales of VAP Products distributed by NFML in Australia.
The agreement commenced on 1st April, 2007 and will continue
until 31st March, 2010. During the year, HK$8,561,000 (2007:
HK$Nil) was charged by NFML.

The transactions constituted continuing connected transactions
under Rule 14A.34(1) of the Listing Rules, which are only
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
and are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement. An announcement was made by the Company on
22nd March, 2007 in this respect.

The Directors, including the Independent Non-executive
Directors, considered that the transactions during the year
ended 31st March, 2008:

(i)  were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company;

(i) were conducted on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favourable than terms available from independent
third parties; and

(iii)  were conducted in accordance with the Services and
Distribution Agreement on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

HEHPEREEERAR
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BESN - AR B2 S A B TR

i XHEEE=GHE:

iy RSDHRBEEDEEGZEMEZHE
ERET &

(i) RHBZRELEBBEBE ZNF
=A=+— EI&EEZEEJ:KE/%M
6,000,0007T °

R-ZEEL+F=ZF-_+-H AREZ
Mt B X &]Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd.
(IVAPD AT —ERB R D #HE B &
It » National Foods Holding Limited (& VAP
PUEBTRAZEERR) ZRRKBEA
7] National Foods Milk Limited ([ NFMLJ) #5 5t
VAPELE AR D HERT BT E
B &R ([VAPE @ |) mVAPIRR # IR -
TE R PTIR AR 7% 2 — &8 19 - NFMLPAX & VAP
EmERMNZBRDHE o VAPE R It M
NFML sz 1 48 & 70 B A= M 2 86 2 VAPE &
BIHERB ISR IFREREE - Han -
TLFNA—HHAB THER=ZF—FF
ZA=+—BEW- FA  NFMLEEE
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AER-_ZFTELF=A -+t - HRUBER
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) BERXS @)

In addition, the independent auditors of the Company
confirmed that:

BESN - AR B2 A A R

(i)  the transactions were approved by the board of directors; () REHGPEEESHE
(i) the transactions were entered into in accordance with the iy RBDIBERBEDHEBZATHZMR

management fee percentage as set out in the Services and BBADLET &

Distribution Agreement; and

(i) the consideration for the transactions had not exceeded iy REZRETEB/ABEEZE_ZTZTN
the annual cap of AUD2,000,000 for the year ended 31st FZA=+—BHLFEZFELR
March, 2008. 2,000,00038 J¢, ©

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

Particulars of employee retirement plans of the Company and the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 163 and 164 of the
annual report.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

By Order of the Board
Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 3rd July, 2008

8RR G &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders
of Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vitasoy
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 65
to 162, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31st March, 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

HHPEREERRAT T/ _TTN\FFR
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31st March, 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

3rd July, 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
e R MR

for the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
H=E

“EENF=A=+—HIEFE (ABEHE)

Turnover HERH 2(b), 3 & 12 2,416,384 2,109,136
Cost of sales £ 5 BR AN (1,285,562) (1,130,130)
Gross profit EF 1,130,822 979,006
Other revenue E A 4 61,820 51,740
Marketing, selling and HE - HER

distribution expenses i E A (541,301) (468,655)
Administrative expenses TR E B (179,878) (166,104)
Other operating expenses Hih&Ees A (170,786) (145,472)
Profit from operations Pl 300,677 250,515
Finance costs Rl & B AN 5(a) (8,865) (8,068)
Profit before taxation R %t B iz 7 5 291,812 242,447
Income tax FriS %t 6(a) (55,831) (41,135)
Profit for the year REEHRT 235,981 201,312
Attributable to: FE 5
Equity shareholders of the Company RANTIREEE A 9 & 25(a) 211,208 173,901
Minority interests D BRAR RAE 25(a) 24,773 27,411
Profit for the year v | 25(a) 235,981 201,312
Dividends payable to equity fE1F F A 2 8l

shareholders of the Company BREBFEFEAZ

attributable to the year: AEERE: 10(a)
Interim dividend declared FATIRZHEHRKRE

during the year 28,315 28,197
Final dividend proposed after HHEBERRZ

the balance sheet date RERE B 88,216 67,669
Special dividend proposed after “EH fﬁ?%i/ﬂi

the balance sheet date 5 Bl i 101,398 100,999

217,929 196,865

Earnings per share BREF 1
Basic AR 20.9 cents 17.3 cents{ll
Diluted e 20.8 cents 17.2 cents{ll

The notes on pages 74 to 162 form part of these financial statements.

FIAEZ1QBEZME RSB REK Z — 31D -
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At 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REZFENF=A=+—HNEBTE)

Annual Report 2007/2008

Non-current assets EREBEE
Fixed assets EE&E 13(a)
— Property, plant —M¥E - BE
and equipment A 757,086 749,306
— Investment property —BEYE 9,352 9,878
— Interests in leasehold —BELEHEERS
land held for own use EERCEE
under operating leases + b HE = 7,505 5,388
773,943 764,572
Employee retirement EERKREBAEE
benefit assets 15(b) 3,327 2,220
Deferred tax assets EIEFIBE E 16(b) 4,249 6,374
Other financial asset HitemEE 17 - 14,347
781,519 787,513
Current assets mBEE
Inventories T8 18 268,417 212,298
Trade and other FEUR BR R & E A
receivables JE U 3% 19 421,295 392,910
Current tax recoverable & g [B] 25, HA A5 18 16(a) 675 =
Bank deposits RITF K 20 18,962 23,984
Cash and cash equivalents IR& NKIRESEHEHEHE 20 529,799 461,726
1,239,148 1,090,918
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables R R EAM
JEF TR 22 458,677 379,533
Bank loans (unsecured) WITER (EIEKF) 23 47,190 27,005
Obligations under MEMREZ BB
finance leases 24(a) 6,873 7,533
Current tax payable JiE -1 35 HA 7 18 16(a) 19,443 7,361
532,183 421,432
Net current assets EREBEE 706,965 669,486
Total assets less BB ERRE
current liabilities aEEH
carried forward 1,488,484 1,456,999
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
REEEARER ()

At 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REZFENF=A=+—HNEBTE)

2008 2007
—EFENE —ETLHF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Fr Fr
Total assets less BE E R
current liabilities REAaERE
brought forward 1,488,484 1,456,999
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank loans (unsecured) RITER (EEF) 23 21,419 69,960
Obligations under BMEREZEH
finance leases 24(a) 29,146 27,773
Employee retirement BB RIKER A E
benefit liabilities 15(b) 2,034 2,418
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIBEE 16(b) 12,036 11,360
64,635 111,511
NET ASSETS BEE 1,423,849 1,345,488
CAPITAL AND RESERVES & A R 25(a)
Share capital R& A 252,894 251,759
Reserves & 1,052,490 1,002,602
Total equity A A B
attributable to HAEAE
equity shareholders BEAE
of the Company 1,305,384 1,254,361
Minority interests VB EER 118,465 91,127
TOTAL EQUITY AR 1,423,849 1,345,488

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on R-DZEENE+tA=-BEEES=E B HItE

3rd July, 2008 ELgii
Winston Yau-lai LO Laurence P. EISENTRAGER BRE RIZE
Director Director - 2

The notes on pages 74 to 162 form part of these financial statements. FIAZR2EZME DI ABBHRERZ —HH -
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BALANCE SHEET
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BERRE

At 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REZFENF=A=+—HNEBTE)

Non-current assets ¥RBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 13(b)
— Property, plant and Mm% BERRE
equipment 179,351 178,659
— Investment property —REME 9,352 9,878
188,703 188,537
Interest in subsidiaries M8 2Rl 14 271,800 286,763
Employee retirement benefit B2 RKBHEE
assets 15(b) 3,629 2,436
Other financial asset HithemEE 17 - 14,347
464,132 492,083
Current assets MENEE
Inventories TE 18 100,457 84,963
Trade and other receivables JE Ui BR 2 K2 L i jE U3k 19 247,588 259,335
Amounts due from JiE W B B A Rl 7R A
subsidiaries 21 220,063 210,496
Bank deposits RITER 20 9,963 11,532
Cash and cash equivalents BekRE&FEER 20 387,329 311,624
965,400 877,950
Current liabilities ik B=N
Trade and other payables JE A BR 20 R E i FE A R 22 204,383 189,521
Obligations under finance MEHE 2 &
leases 24(b) 1,082 936
Current tax payable FE R BRI IR 16(a) 12,919 4,658
218,384 195,115
Net current assets BRBEE 747,016 682,835
Total assets less current BMEERTDEBESE
liabilities carried
forward 1,211,148 1,174,918
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BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
BEAER ()

At 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REZFENF=A=+—HNEBTE)

2008 2007
—EFN\E “EELHE
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
Total assets less current BEERRHEGER
liabilities brought
forward 1,211,148 1,174,918
Non-current liabilities ErBaE
Obligations under finance REMEZER
leases 24(b) 4,533 5,637
Employee retirement benefit B ERKEBH EE
liabilities 15(b) 1,914 2,283
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEEE 16(b) 11,066 10,591
17,513 18,511
NET ASSETS BEE 1,193,635 1,156,407
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEREE 25(b)
Share capital A% 7R 252,894 251,759
Reserves i 940,741 904,648
TOTAL EQUITY B HE 1,193,635 1,156,407

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on RZZEZNFLtA=ZHAEEETRBLHE
3rd July, 2008 i

Laurence P. EISENTRAGER
Director

Winston Yau-lai LO
Director

REEE
EF

BB
EF

The notes on pages 74 to 162 form part of these financial statements. FIAZREZME DI ABBHRERZ —HH -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A EmEER

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZTT \F=A=+—HIEFE (CVBEFTEH)

2008
—E3)\E
$000 $000
Fr Fr
Total equity at 1st April WMA- A2k EAE 1,345,488 1,308,934
Net income recognised ERERARERZR
directly in equity: ANEFR:
Exchange differences on BEIN KB A BB
translation of the financial BERAEEZ
statements of foreign ERES
subsidiaries 25(a) 37,308 23,351
Net profit for the year AEERFBE 235,981 201,312
Total recognised income AEEBEDBZIBANR
and expense for the year B 273,289 224,663
Attributable to: FEfh
— equity shareholders of the —AARREFAEA
Company 237,470 190,345
— minority interests —LER AR 35,819 34,318
273,289 224,663
Dividends g5 25(a)
Final dividend approved in RE—FEREZ
respect of the previous year RERE (67,706) (67,404)
Special dividend approved in ME—FEMEZ
respect of the previous year 1 BB 2, (101,054) (100,603)
Interim dividend declared in BRAFEEIRLZ
respect of the current year hHER B (28,315) (28,197)
Dividend paid to minority 17 8RR B
shareholder iz 8 (8,481) (1,757)
(205,556) (197,961)
Movements in equity HEARGMELEZ
arising from capital BEED :
transactions:
Shares issued on exercise of 1T 6 BB AR
share options i & 17AR (7 25(a) 9,295 7,077
Equity settled share-based Nk BERZ
transactions TRHZR5 25(a) 1,333 2,775
10,628 9,852
Total equity at 31st March R=A=+—-Hz
EHEE 1,423,849 1,345,488

The notes on pages 74 to 162 form part of these financial statements.

FIAZQBEZME D ARMBREK Z — 81D -
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
an = | fﬁﬁl)lbi%‘%

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZTT \F=A=+—HIEFE (CVBEFTEH)

Operating activities BEFEY
Profit before taxation B B AT 3 R 291,812 242,447
Adjustments for: HE
- Depreciation of property,  — %% - BiE &iRE
plant and equipment ZiE 106,851 109,118
— Depreciation of investment —#&&ME 2 HE
property 526 527
- Amortisation of interests - RELEHEFFIE
in leasehold land held ERzZHEELH
for own use under R X
operating leases 279 227
- Interest expenses —FlEXH 5,671 6,899
— Finance charges on -—REMEEKZ
obligations under %8R
finance leases 3,194 1,169
— Interest income —F BB A (17,204) (16,674)
— Net loss on disposal of - HEWE BENM
property, plant and BECEREE
equipment 1,086 38
— Equity settled share-based —UARHAERZ
payment expenses IHZER 1,333 2,775
- Change in fair value of - SRMEEARE
financial asset 228 (1,294) (324)
— Foreign exchange loss —HNEE B 9,186 6,498
Operating profit before AEtEEEEETHL
changes in working BEHER
capital 401,440 352,700
Increase in inventories FEEM (56,119) (4,187)
Increase in trade and P W BR 3R % L At B
other receivables e 3% 42 o (28,385) (40,779)
Increase in trade and & 51 BR 3R I HL fth 8
other payables it 3032 4 76,083 30,690
Decrease in net employee BERKBHEE
retirement benefit liabilities % %85 > (1,491) (1,286)
Cash generated from BEEBHBERE
operations 391,528 337,138
Tax paid EHBE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid — B 1% & # 5 5t (30,771) (35,332)
— Overseas tax paid — BB UMY E T IE (10,292) (6,409)
Net cash generated from RKEFEHHEREFHE
operating activities 350,465 295,397



o %

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd.

/2

Annual Report 2007/2008

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

HERERER (8)

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZTT \F=A=+—HIEFE (CVBEFTEH)

Investing activities REEH
Payment for purchase of BERBCEHERSE

interests in leasehold land EERZHE LM

held for own use under 22 RE

operating leases (1,863) -
Payment for purchase of BEWE BEK

property, plant and Rz RE

equipment (76,357) (98,372)
Proceeds from disposal of HEVE  BER

property, plant and REMERIE

equipment 2,013 1,418
Placement of bank deposits %7 i 48 1717 3% (70,267) (442,732)
Maturity of bank deposits BB ITER 76,521 521,318
Proceeds from maturity of NHemMEEMBRA

financial asset 15,641 -
Interest received B U F & 17,204 16,674
Net cash used in RETHRAREER

investing activities (37,108) (1,694)
Financing activities MEFH
Capital element of finance  EfMNEEHAER S

lease rentals paid &R D (9,623) (4,112)
Proceeds from new bank LRI E RS RIE

loans 4,354 20,645
Repayment of bank loans EEFTER (39,725) (56,925)
Interest element of finance BN AAHREMRS

lease rentals paid 2B 15 (3,194) (1,169)
Interest paid BAFE (5,671) (6,899)
Proceeds from shares issued [ 17 8 A% 1% 3% 17

on exercise of share & 17 P75 SR IE

options 9,295 7,077
Dividends paid to equity RMARRKRERFEA

shareholders of the 3 AR S

Company (197,075) (196,204)
Dividend paid to minority PR G ERE &5

shareholder (8,481) (1,757)
Net cash used in financing FEFHFRARE IR

activities (250,120) (239,344)




WHMEREBMBERAT TS/

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
HERERER (#)

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-_ZZN\F=ZA=1+—BHIEFE (CUBETHE)

2008
=L LI

$000
Fr

Net increase in cash and RERREEEER

cash equivalents iR 63,237 54,359
Cash and cash equivalents MBE—HZzR&RR&

at 1st April ZEEHH 461,726 402,540
Effect of foreign exchange EX## > &%

rate changes 4,836 4,827
Cash and cash equivalents ZA=+—-HzZzH& R

at 31st March R&EEER 20 529,799 461,726

The notes on pages 74 to 162 form part of these financial statements. FTAEN62E 2 W TR S mzk 2 — 21D -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BrEHEHAIN - LABKEFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collectively include all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March, 2008 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are stated at their fair values
as explained in the accounting policy set out in note 1(d).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

EBEH B
38 1 2 B

AU BREERBAAERZ(EBY B R
SEA)MRE (BEAEWBREER) —F
BREBERGHMAGSEMZMABERZE
AKE BB REER) (BB EFER)
k2B BEARSFRAIREFB(RA K
PIVZHRE  AUBBRERTFTEERZES
BEXZMBRARESZ EMARA (T LW
RADZEERE AKBRAZEES
TR AT o

BEGMAGERME T H REEF]
ZAEEMBHRSESER) IRAEERA
RAZAHEARHERERLATHER
Ry - BERERAUETERRAEER Z AT
ARSI BREHRAE S HARZ EM@
B RRE2FEN AU BTHRERARR - A
FERBENRE2

MBHRRZBBESE

BE-_ZZNF=ZA=+—BItFEZHK
EUMBBRREBFARAREME A E (5H
[REE]) -

BRAREFEAHEIRNESHRRAZE
BEEZADAERR(FER M 1(d) AT &

B BRZHB) I B BHREIEE
VARE SR X AN E Rt B R o

EEEFTERUTA(EBMBHREER)
ZHBREAKELEZ B BERER
UREE - B WMARIHZHESHE
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BRERBUAELRNEREERESERBR
REaBEZZHAMRAREL  HE&ERE
BXE B IE A K B H iR 1B B 1S A1
& BB E 2 BRI (B BTV T 2 B o
ERAERTEA BT8R o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Hong Komq doHar% unless otherwise indicated)
KRB FEAI - A f ;

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the
next year are discussed in note 33.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence
of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to equity interests that are not
owned by the Company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, and in respect of which the Group has not agreed
any additional terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. Minority interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Minority
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement as an allocation of the
total profit or loss for the year between minority interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

[xpr@%%@d in Hong Komq doHar% unless otherwise indicated)
(Br S BRI J@ﬁ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any
further losses applicable to the minority, are charged against
the Group’s interest except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently
reports profits, the Group’s interest is allocated all such profits
until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the
Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(h)).

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at cost. Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value at each balance sheet date,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(h)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
properties, less their estimated residual values, if any, using the
straight-line method over the shorter of the unexpired term of
lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion.

Both the useful life and the residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

()

(d)

(e)

FTESHHE
()
FEAR R BRRER (8

MO BREREEERBLMBE AR EmT
ZOEBBRRER IO ZREBEREMRND

BRREGEZE-—TER BRAKEZ
Bap ik BELPBERZORTARME

KEe NEH FEIMR B LA TR 75 A RS B RR Hb o
B AREREFSEN  FEEFNE 2
BORTAEE BEEZAAKEMDE
ZOBBRREHERERMESL -

ARAZEBEERBRATZHBRARZR
& RERAREREESRE (RHEE1N) &
58k -

EARBEFEEEEFHNIER
H/L\Zﬂiﬂﬂﬁg

ﬁ

BRARBHELAEDNARER L G0
BEZMERKARR YREEHEA:
EEARE  EAMGRBRASZNER -
BEME

BAMEREARBASKAR L BE
AMETMEEINAERERE 2 LR
JSREF

BREWERRAERZRFITERREESR
(R REAEBEBER °

FEDEREMERANRBE MG RIEREE
(WE)  FEAREWMESH R HE M0 E B
FH(ENERK B B T EB50F) - ME
R4S HA ] A B AR 5T S T MU o

ARAEEFRIREVEZAERFH
REFSGEE(ME) -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BrEHEHAIN - LABKEFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(h)):

- freehold land and buildings;

- land held under operating leases and buildings thereon,
where the fair values of the leasehold interest in the
land and buildings cannot be measured separately at the
inception of the lease and the building is not held under
an operating lease;

- buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease; and

- other items of plant and equipment.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

(i) Leasehold land and buildings over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of completion.

No depreciation is provided for freehold land.

(i) Other plant and equipment at the following rates:

Factory machinery and equipment 6-25%
Fixtures, furniture and office equipment 9-33%
Motor vehicles 18-25%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BrEHEHAIN - LABKEFE)

BrE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

However, land held for own use under an operating lease,
where the fair value of the land cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted for
as being held under a finance lease, unless the building
is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(iif)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased assets, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments of such assets are included in
property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost of the assets over the
term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset,
as set out in note 1(f). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in
note 1(h). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases
so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease term. Impairment losses are recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(h).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of receivables

Receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or more

of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency

in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse

effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

- For receivables carried at cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses are
reversed if in a subsequent period the amount of

the impairment loss decreases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(Br S A FEAI - LA
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1T EFESEEBR
(CONTINUED) (#&)
(h) Impairment of assets (continued) (hy BEERME@®
(i) Impairment of receivables (continued) () BEWFZzZHE &)
- For receivables carried at amortised cost, the — BERBHEKAYERZE KK

impairment loss is measured as the difference s MR FEBEKLN
between the asset’s carrying amount and the WEBEAREE 2KRHEE R
present value of estimated future cash flows, FREEZRFITEERFE(H
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest HBREREERBFEZERHN
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at K )MEBR Z2EstAKRBEE R E
initial recognition of the asset), where the effect ZBHBEz2EZZ8HFTE - R
of discounting is material. This assessment is BHERAEZEMEERE
made collectively where financial assets carried at BUzRBEE  fIWELNZ
amortised cost share similar risk characteristics, FaI = Z I = S 2 N | A R =
such as similar past due status, and have not been HE BEBEzTReLRE
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash T-2RMEEZAKXRBERE
flows for financial assets which are assessed for CREHEZSEEEAEFHUE
impairment collectively are based on historical loss ERREHEEZBEEIRE
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics = X v K = )
similar to the collective group.
If in a subsequent period the amount of an MEBEBEE BN T %S
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be R A - ™A B A Al i
linked objectively to an event occurring after the HERREBEEEEEZEH
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment BHE  AREEBEERERR
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal M - BEREBETESHE
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s E2EAEaRBRENGEFE
carrying amount exceeding that which would have TEBERREERERREETE
been determined had no impairment loss been 7 HEE o
recognised in prior years.
Impairment losses are written off against the BE B 18 B AR E L E M
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment RN EREREE M
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and FE U SR A 2 e UWBR 3R K R =
bills receivable included within trade and other ERERNRERE > Hik-
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful ERBFERMmM AR TEE - BlE
but not remote. In this case, the impairment Blam e EUEBRT @ REZR
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an BEERBESBBEERDTEE - 8K
allowance account. When the group is satisfied SEEMKRE#SBTE  ®E
that recovery is remote, the amount considered AELZKRBENEESTHEEAE
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors & U BR 2% % e U ZE B RO 8
and bills receivable directly and any amounts held MmEMRI ABEEGERLEES
in the allowance account relating to that debt R cHESHER - HEEK
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts EBlzREERERFNBRN
previously charged to the allowance account are BHASAEBRERPERD &
reversed against the allowance account. Other BERAZEMES K H %K E
changes in the allowance account and subsequent ZHAEEEMENSERER
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly NHER o

are recognised in profit or loss.



Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd.

82

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Annual Report 2007/2008

([xprm%@d in Hong Komq doHars unless otherwise indicated)

(B B 54

PAS i

B

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- investment property;

- interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases; and

interest in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.
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(i)

BrE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of
an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and conditions.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(h)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

Defined benefit retirement plan obligation

The Group’s net obligation in respect of a defined benefit
retirement plan is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine
the present value and the fair value of any plan assets is
deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the balance
sheet date on high quality corporate bonds that have
maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group's
obligations. The calculation is performed by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method.

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion
of the increased benefit relating to past service by
employees is recognised as an expense in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the average period until the
benefits become vested. If the benefits vest immediately,
the expense is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In calculating the Group’s obligation in respect of a plan,
if any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or loss
exceeds ten percent of the greater of the present value
of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets, that portion is recognised in profit or loss
over the expected average remaining working lives of
the employees participating in the plan. Otherwise, the
actuarial gain or loss is not recognised.

Where the calculation of the Group’s net obligation results
in a negative amount, the asset recognised is limited to
the net total of any cumulative unrecognised net actuarial
losses and past service costs and the present value of
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Long service payments obligation

(iv)

The Group's net obligation in respect of lump sum long
service amounts payable on cessation of employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine
the present value and reduced by entitlements accrued
under the Group's retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The discount rate is the
yield at the balance sheet date on high quality corporate
bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms
of the Group’s obligation. The obligation is calculated by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share-based compensation reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using the
binomial lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year
of the review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based compensation reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the share-
based compensation reserve). The equity amount is
recognised in the share-based compensation reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax

()

(i)

(iii)

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

(iv) Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as
follows:

(i)  Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of returns, rebates and discounts.

(i)  Service fees
Service fees are recognised when the related services are
provided.

(ili) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term.

(iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(v) Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
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(Expressed in Hong Komq doHar% unless otherwise indicated)
KRB FEAI - A f ;

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised directly in a separate
component of equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences recognised in equity which relate to
that foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)  the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over
the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii)  the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in
which the Group is a venturer;

(iv)  the party is a member of key management personnel of
the Group, or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, or significant influence
of such individuals;

(v)  the party is a close family member of a party referred to in
(i) or is an entity under the control or significant influence
of such individuals; or

(vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties (continued)

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject
to risks and rewards that are different from those of other
segments.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.
For example, segment assets may include inventories, trade
receivables and property, plant and equipment. Segment
revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined before
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are eliminated
as part of the consolidation process, except to the extent that
such intra-group balances and transactions are between group
entities within a single segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the
year to acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible)
that are expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax balances,

corporate and financing expenses.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B BB HBAN - LB ETE)

2

(a)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs and
Interpretations that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company.

There have been no significant changes to the accounting
policies applied in these financial statements for the years
presented as a result of these developments. However, as
a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures and the amendment to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements: Capital disclosures, there have been some
additional disclosures provided as follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial statements
include expanded disclosure about the significance of the
Group’s financial instruments and the nature and extent of risks
arising from those instruments, compared with the information
previously required to be disclosed by HKAS 32, Financial
instruments: Disclosure and presentation. These disclosures are
provided throughout these financial statements, in particular in
note 27.

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional disclosure
requirements to provide information about the level of capital
and the Group’s and the Company’s objectives, policies and
processes for managing capital. These new disclosures are set
out in note 25(f).

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 do not have
any material impact on the classification, recognition and
measurement of the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 34).

In prior years, the Group’s turnover represented the gross sales
value less returns. During the year, the Group has changed its
turnover policy by netting off rebates and discounts against
turnover so as to follow industry practice. Under the new
policy, turnover represented the invoiced value of products
sold, net of returns, rebates and discounts. As a result of such
change, the Group’s turnover for the year has been reduced by
$622,274,000 (2007: $584,325,000). This new policy does not
have impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEHRAI - LUBEEETE)

3 TURNOVER 3 &

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and
sale of food and beverages. B o

Turnover represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of

returns, rebates and discounts. BRI e

4 OTHER REVENUE 4 Huyg A

AEBEZEIBXEBRAARERHEERD N

EXBEHEEEEMZEZERDIKREE -

Interest income T B W A 17,204 16,674
Service fee R & 37,453 28,965
Rental income LA 2,091 2,090

Change in fair value of financial BARBEFEEEEZHR

asset at fair value through EnRZeMmEEZ
profit or loss NREZEH 1,294 324
Sundry income FIE WA 3,778 3,687
61,820 51,740

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5  BRBADRF

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BREAEMNE MR (FTA)

(a) Finance costs: (a) BHERA :
Interest on bank loans RITERF B 5,671 6,899
Finance charges on obligations BEHEEH 2
under finance leases W% E A 3,194 1,169
8,865 8,068
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRZAERBAI - ABKEE)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 5  BRBEADE R )
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BEREAMEIG,(GTA) :
(continued) (&)

(b) Staff costs: (b) EBImA:
Contributions to defined FEH- TR KRG 2
contribution retirement plans Z 21,513 19,763
Income recognised in respect of: LTIEEZEBREA
— retirement gratuities —RKE
(note 15(c)(v)) (Bft 53 15(c)(v) ) (579) (243)
— long service payments —KHR®E ®
(note 15(d)iii)) (Bt 5% 15(d)Gii) ) (195) (426)
Retirement costs AR A 20,739 19,094
Equity settled share-based ARR D R Bl 2 2 +F
payment expenses ZEHR 1,333 2,775
Salaries, wages and other benefits M- TE RE MR 448,733 442,689
470,805 464,558

(c) Other items: (9 HHEHA:

Amortisation of interests in leasehold BELEHERE

land held for own use EERZHEE TR

under operating leases ZHH 279 227
Depreciation e

— assets leased out under operating leases —NEEHEL R EE 526 527

- assets acquired under finance leases —NREHEBACEE 7,343 4,884

— other assets —HiEE 99,508 104,234
Impairment losses on trade and JFE U R R T L At e R

other receivables HEEE 3,400 4
Auditors’ remuneration ZE B &

— audit services - BZRH 3,174 2,767

~ tax services — BB R 623 612

— other services — H i PR % - 2,037
Operating lease charges: KEHEER

minimum lease payments REEEMNR

— hire of properties — A 42,807 40,438

~ hire of factory machinery — B IR es

and equipment SET 588 2,931

Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEREZHE

plant and equipment ZBEFEE 1,086 38
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss INE () /BB T8 (3,366) 1,694
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=ABHA - ABERE)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

INCOME STATEMENT

(a) Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents:

BNBERERFRART 2T/ T N\FER

(a)

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits AHBE-FTEMNEH
Tax
Provision for the year FREE 38,016 32,831
Under/(over)-provision in respect of NEEEZRETE
prior years (ERFERHE) 294 (539)
38,310 32,292
Current tax — Outside Hong Kong  ZAHIFIIE — &F# L4t [E
Provision for the year FREE 14,062 6,199
Under-provision in respect of NEFEZBETR
prior years 98 50
14,160 6,249
Deferred tax IE & i 18]
Origination and reversal of REREOERER
temporary differences 4,590 2,594
Effect of change in tax rate on Tt 3 4 B) ¥ FE B I8 45 2R
deferred tax balance =2 (B EEG) R (i)
(notes (i) and (ii) (1,229) =
3,361 2,594
55,831 41,135

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5%
(2007: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant tax

jurisdictions.

Notes:

(i) On 27th February, 2008, the Financial Secretary of the Hong Kong SAR
Government announced his annual Budget which proposes a cut in
the profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% with effect from the fiscal
year 2008-09 and a one-off reduction of 75% of the tax payable for
the 2007-08 assessment subject to a ceiling of $25,000. As a result of
the above change, current tax payable of the Group and the Company
decreased by $75,000 and $25,000 respectively; and the deferred tax
liabilities of the Group and the Company decreased by $697,000 and

$671,000 respectively.

EREFCHREBEEREZEE ZHAERHR
mAA175% (ZTTLF : 17.5%) ZFH =R
ATE - BRI E /N B A F 2 FE Al
REBHRBRAAEEREAR ZBITHR KT
ﬁo

B &t

(i) R-ZZNE-_RA_++H8 FBEERT
BERRYRARRAGHREER 2
HEMEBHERBE175%HKE165% @ B
—EENETAVREFEEAR MR-
BER_ZTTLET \FETEZEHR
MH75% LR A25,000 T ° B k&
FAEBERAQARNANAEAT XS B
% /75,000 7t & 25,000 70 1M A & E Rk A
AR ZEERE A &5 5l 4697,000 7T &
671,000 °
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6
INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(a) Income tax in the consolidated income statement (a)
represents: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i) On 16th March, 2007, the National People’s Congress passed the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “new tax law"”). Under the
new tax law, the statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company’s
subsidiary in Shenzhen is changed from 15% to 25% progressively
within five years from 1st January, 2008 (2008: 18%; 2009: 20%;
2010: 22%; 2011: 25%). For the subsidiary located in Shanghai, the
statutory income tax rate is changed from 27% to 25% from 1st
January, 2008 and that subsidiary starts its two years’ tax holiday from
1st January, 2008 and thereafter enjoys a tax relief of 50% reduction
in the income tax rate for a period of 3 years commencing 1st January,
2010.

The new tax law has been applied when measuring the Group's
current tax payable and deferred tax assets as at 31st March, 2008.
The balance of current tax payable and deferred tax assets increased
by $394,000 and $532,000 respectively as a result of the change of
tax rate.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b)
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

MEBaMRANIAMEHRE

(%)

BE ()

iy R-ZET+F=A+~B 2BARRE
REBBCFEAREFE D ZEFBHIE)

(T#FFED - BEFHR L BRAREARA
2RV B R E 2 AERE m$§,77
NE—A—B#£ RAFAHISHESEE
B25%(ZZFZT)\F : 18% : :Egnir
20%: —E—FTF:0N%: —_T——F:
25%) e MR EBHHMBARIME * 8=
TTNF—A— AR EATEMBRERBH%
BEE5%  MHBARIE-ZTN\E—A
—HERBREMFERBES  kEe T —
TFE—A—BREB0%ZAIEHERBEE
W BE=F .

RZBZBENF=ZA=+—0 &FELE
B AHENBAREERREER B
RATHHE ARBREE - KHEN
T4 I8 e I S 7 1R B E 48 BR 0 Bl A1394,000
JT }2532,0007T °

M8 78 32 B & s A DA E A TR R
AEZHER

Profit before taxation R A% Al A 291,812 242,447
Notional tax on profit before taxation, REAMBRIAEER

calculated at the rates i R IS A =

applicable to profits in ETEBRFB AR R 2

the tax jurisdictions concerned 1B 53,841 37,568
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR S 2 B R & 4,542 1,846
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue FERTRWAZ IS & (4,073) (5,059)
Tax effect of unused tax losses ABELEF ERR AR

not recognised for FRZ ﬁﬁ%)ﬁﬁ Bz

deferred tax purposes B 3,038 18,807
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BRABRZHEER

not previously recognised for VEIR IE 7 18 2 B 75

deferred tax purposes wa (605) -
Tax effect of recognising tax losses TERAE R AERZ

and deductible temporary MIEEE XA /JEKZ

differences not ERNEEIBBETE

previously recognised - (11,538)
Effect of change in tax rate on THEE B IR ETRIE

deferred tax balance R (1,229) -
One-off tax reduction — IR MR IE R (75) =
Under/(over)-provision in respect of LA 45 2 B0 18 B 5

prior years TR/ (HBEEE) 392 (489)
Actual tax expense ERFIEZ H 55,831 41,135
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(BB HAS

7

LAOBEEHE)

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules is as
follows:

HEHPEREEERAR

~

ESME

RiFEBCR ARG F161 K £ #E Al

REZEEZMENOT :

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme Share-based
fees in kind bonuses contributions Sub-total payments
il A= 4: ) 15 3% i B A 58 L Rg 1 B
ExWE REYER Z {4 X hEt EREGR
$'000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr T Fr Fr
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO EREELE 157 3,737 2,041 147 6,082 491 6,573
Mr. Laurence REELE

P. EISENTRAGER (PR REG))

(note (i) 54 2,296 1,222 97 3,669 - 3,669
Mr. Eric Fat YU REEE 79 1,648 467 107 2,301 165 2,466
Mr. Ambrose B5R 58 % 45 A

Kam-shing CHAN GEAD)

(note (ii)) 12 1,815 2,710 50 4,587 152 4,739
Mr. John Shek-hung LAU 2185 75 5k £

(note (iii)) B & Giii) ) 52 1,902 498 78 2,530 101 2,631
Non-executive Directors JFEHITEE
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO BREZT 87 - - - 87 - 87
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO BRRIZ T 77 - - - 77 - 77
Independent BAEWITES

Non-executive

Directors
Dr. The Hon. Sir David THEESE L

Kwok-po LI 256 - - - 256 - 256
Mr. lain F. BRUCE mELEE 227 - - - 227 - 227
Mr. Jan P.S. ERLUND Jan PS. Erlund %t &

(note (iv)) (PR £ (iv)) 258 - - - 258 - 258

1,259 11,398 6,938 479 20,074 909 20,983
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7

LAOBEEHE)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules is as
follows: (continued)

BEEME @

RipEBCR ARG F161 K £ Al
REZ2EEMEWT : (&)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme Share-based
fees in kind bonuses contributions  Sub-total payments
e 2H [3RE97 RIRGE LU 13 %
EEZHe REYEF ZIEAL HE N BEEMMGR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
F3 i Fi . Fx Fi
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO BRETE 157 3,237 2,489 116 5,999 624 6,623
Mr. Ambrose Kam-shing BRER RS T4
CHAN (note (ii)) GEADY 79 3,736 2,139 155 6,109 687 6,796
Mr. Eric Fat YU RELE 72 1,459 342 94 1,967 183 2,150
Mr. John Shek-hung LAU 2HBEE
(note (i) (it 5 iii) ) 79 1,984 429 109 2,601 187 2,788
Non-executive Directors I HITES
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO BRELT 78 - - - 78 - 78
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO BRRLT 87 - - - 87 - 87
Independent BAFHRTES
Non-executive
Directors
Dr. The Hon. Sir David FTHEET
Kwok-po LI 245 = = = 245 = 245
Mr. lain F. BRUCE mELEE 216 = = = 216 - 216
Mr. Jan P.S. ERLUND Jan PS. Erlund %t 4
(note (iv)) (Bt =E(iv)) 156 - - - 156 - 156
Mr. Chi-kian SHIU (note (v)) BB 22 5 A4 (i 7 (v)) 120 - - - 120 - 120
1,289 10,416 5,399 474 17,578 1,681 19,259

Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share
options granted to the Directors under the Company’s share
option scheme. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group's accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 1(n)(iv).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under the
paragraph “Share option scheme” in the Report of the Directors
and note 26.

IR BT ISR BAD A2 B
L EEESS S FY LY TR
5 08 R 2 {8 L7 4 3 Y B 1)) 7 L 25 2
91 DA R 15 78 2T 2 4 3R 5% 5 5 PR £ T
e
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7

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER was appointed as an Executive Director
on 20th July, 2007. The emoluments reported above represented
emoluments received after his appointment as an Executive Director.

(i) Mr. Ambrose Kam-shing CHAN resigned as an Executive Director on
25th July, 2007.

(iii) Mr. John Shek-hung LAU retired as an Executive Director on 1st
December, 2007.

(iv) Mr. Jan P.S. ERLUND was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 6th July, 2006.

(v) Mr. Chi-kian SHIU retired as an Independent Non-executive Director on
11th September, 2006.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2007:
three) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note
7. The emoluments in respect of the one individual (2007: two
individuals) are as follows:

BNBERERFRART 2T/ T N\FER

7

BEEME @)

@i REEAER-_TTLFLA-_THEZ
ERATEE - LAZHEREEZER
HOTEFRAMEDZBE -

(i) BREBLEER-_ZTTLFLA-+HAH
ERITES -

(i) BHBREER-_FTTLF+_A—BRE
WITES -

(iv)  JanPS. ErlundE AR =TT A~F+t AAH
BETABIIFRATES -

(v) BEBEER-_ZTERNFAAT+-—HRE
BYERTES -

ReME AL

ERRSBMEALH ME(ZFFL
FZR)REFE REZMENKETP
BE-HB-R(CFTLE  MB) RS
MeAtzBemT :

Salaries and other emoluments He REMEE 1,875 4,595
Retirement scheme contributions RRET 2 74 194
Discretionary bonuses WMIBE Mz TEA 509 669
Share-based payments VAR 7 /5 2L B B9 15 3Rk 158 234

2,616 5,692

Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share
options granted to the individuals under the Company’s share
option scheme. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 1(n)(iv). The principal
terms of the share option scheme are disclosed under the
paragraph “Share option scheme” in the Report of the Directors
and note 26.

ARG BERENRIEREAR R ZER
R EIE T ERIA L 2 BREN GHEE -
1t 5 B AR HE 2 (B (B TS 1R 38 BT 5 1(n)(v) BT 88 A
EEBUABRDAER IR ZHEANE
SHEMmTE - BREABZEZKRKRE
REZSHREEERESE | —BREWE
26 B FE o

o %
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 955 30 2R Y A (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(k5

8

BHA - ABERE)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8
(CONTINUED)

The emoluments of the one individual (2007: two individuals)
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

$2,000,001 to $2,500,000
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000
$3,000,001 to $3,500,000

2,000,001 7t £ 2,500,000 7T
2,500,001 7T % 3,000,000 7T
3,000,001 7T % 3,500,000 7T

ReME AL
(%)

—HZ(ZEZTLF  MB)REHEALZ

B 1 F AT A B

2008
= 1%

2007
—E2EELHE
Number

N

Number

A8

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 9
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a profit of $204,463,000 (2007:
$133,779,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit for
the year:

AR REFE A
FE 1 % R

ARNBBREFBEABRGEAEZN2EES
AR A B 7 3] & 2 &% F)204,463,000 7T
(=TT 4 : 133,779,0007T) ©

bt R B R R R AN A 2 BB

Amount of consolidated profit BIARRBHBERE 2

attributable to equity shareholders RATREZE AEMN

dealt with in the Company’s 4R & m A e '

financial statements 204,463 133,779
Dividends from subsidiaries RKEWBAR E—EAMBFE

attributable to the profits of wm A WRAFEE I E R

the previous financial year, XA R R

approved and paid during the year 19,212 4,088
Company’s profit for the year AR A ZANFEE m A

(note 25(b)) (Bt 5E25(b)) 223,675 137,867
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEHRAI - LUBEEETE)

10 DIVIDENDS 10 BRE

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (@ ENFTARAGBREERBEAZ
Company attributable to the year NG R SN

Interim dividend declared and BEEREREXZNHAKRESR
paid of 2.8 cents per ordinary share TREBR28L(ZZEZTLF -
(2007: 2.8 cents per ordinary share) R EBAR2.810) (M 5E25)
(note 25) 28,315 28,197
Final dividend proposed after REEE AR KRR E SR
the balance sheet date of TBERB T (=TT £ F
8.7 cents per ordinary share TR E R R6.71L)
(2007: 6.7 cents per ordinary share) 88,216 67,669
Special dividend proposed after REE BB ERET IR B SR
the balance sheet date of LBA10.0L (—EZT L4 :
10.0 cents per ordinary share TR L @AZ10.010L)
(2007: 10.0 cents per ordinary share) 101,398 100,999
217,929 196,865
The final and special dividends proposed after the balance sheet R4 E B & # R 2 R E R BIRR B T
date have not been recognised as liabilities at the balance sheet RAENREERAZAE -
date.

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (b)) BRE—HEREE YR AFE
Company attributable to the previous financial BERINTARRARERE A
year, approved and paid during the year Z IR

Final dividend in respect of BRE-—HMEREE  UHRAFE

the previous financial year, HERIZMNZREREGR

approved and paid during the year, TERTIIN(ZTELF

of 6.7 cents per ordinary share Bl ERR6.7M)

(2007: 6.7 cents per ordinary share) (HMf7E25)

(note 25) 67,706 67,404
Special dividend in respect of BRE—HMBFE WREKAFE

the previous financial year, BUE R A 2 5 RS B R

approved and paid during the year, LTAERI100ML(ZET L5 -

of 10.0 cents per ordinary share TR @AZ10.010L)

(2007: 10.0 cents per ordinary share) (B 5E25)

(note 25) 101,054 100,603

168,760 168,007
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 BREAEF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BFBREXRAF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the BREAXBFNDEBEARAQARBKEREE A
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company JE 15 5% F1211,208,000 7T ( — B & + £ :
of $211,208,000 (2007: $173,901,000) and the weighted 173,901,00070) R A FE AN B 17 L @K
average number of 1,010,332,000 ordinary shares (2007: 2 INAE ¥ 8% £01,010,332,000 1k (=TTt
1,006,101,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year, £ 1 1,006,101,000 E @A) T E - LTERK
calculated as follows: ZINEFEHRBEZEFERNT ¢
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 3 A% 2 N AE T 15 A% X
2008 2007
ZEE)N\E —EELF
Number of Number of
shares shares
B e E B3 & B
‘000 ‘000
T B T B&
Issued ordinary shares at 1st April NN A—H 2B 3TE@s
(note 25(c)) (M 7E25(0)) 1,007,036 1,003,288
Effect of share options exercised BT zERENTE 3,296 2,813
Weighted average number of AR [ B M 2 I 19 B8R
ordinary shares for the year (note (b)) (K 5% (b)) 1,010,332 1,006,101
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$211,208,000 (2007: $173,901,000) and the weighted average
number of 1,016,659,000 ordinary shares (2007: 1,012,797,000
ordinary shares) after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

BMNBERERFRART —TTL/ T N\FFER

103 —ve

11 BEREF @

(b) BREERTN

BEREFTRANDIREBEAARKRERTE A
JE 16 % #/211,208,000 7t ( = T T £ F :
173,901,0007C ) RSt Fr B A B E#E R F
ZEBR 2V EEDARR 2L BRMNE
SF 15 A% #01,016,659,000 & ( — B T + £ :
1,012,797,000 1 EBAR) st E W T ¢

ERR N ()

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
Number of Number of
T shares
BE#HEE g g=|
'000 ‘000
T T B
Weighted average number of REE L @R 2 InAE IR &
ordinary shares for the year (note (a)) (B zE(@)) 1,010,332 1,006,101
Effect of deemed issue of BREREADR Y ERED 2
ordinary shares under the Company’s TR R ERR s e
share option scheme for
nil consideration 6,327 6,696
Weighted average number of IR 6E @ A% 2 0 AE 1 PR
ordinary shares (diluted) for the year (##) 1,016,659 1,012,797
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's
geographical segments. Information relating to geographical
segments based on the location of assets is chosen because this
is in line with the Group’s internal management information
reporting system.

No business segment analysis of the Group is presented as all
the Group’s turnover and trading result are generated from the
manufacture and sale of food and beverages.

12

Australia and

DHWEMDHRAEB ZWED A 25 o A
REEEMELRSBERZEHATRES
AEBEZABEREIE RS > RUER I
RAREREM TR o

MAAEE S EER G EERERE
EERWEARRRE HEE2EHH
B2 AR

Hong Kong Mainland China New Zealand North America Unallocated Consolidated
EiE E i AW RHEW LEM *HEZER &E
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZER\E [SERLE  CRT\F [SBRLFE CFT)N\E SEBLE | CFT\E SRBLE  “TFN\Ef SERLE "FT/\E SERLE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000
Fr Tr Fr Tr Fr i Fr i Fr i T i
Revenue from RESHEE
external customers 2B 1,280,705 1,099,407 511,572 473,819 279,752 217,374 344,355 318,536 - - | 2,416,384 | 2,109,136
Other revenue from RESNRAL
external parties ZEMBMA 3,861 5,955 37,112 28,632 - = - 54 20,847 17,099 61,820 51,740
Total revenue F-LON 1,284,566 1,105,362 548,684 502,451 279,752 217,374 344,355 318,590 20,847 17,099 | 2,478,204 | 2,160,876
Segment result EES 235,027 221,620 75,752 76,766 57,468 40,337 (22,547) (49,357) 345,700 289,366
Unallocated operating KAREEMA
income and expenses L&A (45,023 (38,851)
Profit from operations BT 300,677 250,515
Finance costs BARK (8,865) (8,068)
Income tax mEH (55,831) (41,135)
Profit for the year AEREF 235,981 201,312
Depreciation and KEEZHE
amortisation for the year ~ F#8 49,925 47,122 24,197 31,252 19,651 15,767 13,883 15,131 107,656 109,872
Impairment losses ERERRE
on trade and R ERE
other receivables 16 (1,168) 180 (206) 3,079 451 125 927 : 3,400 4
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 12 D EPIHE (@)
Australia and
Hong Kong Mainland China New Zealand North America Consolidated
EE HE Py i ANRHER EEM &8
2008 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008
“E3\& B\ [ZETEE "FTN\E (SETEFE “TR\E SETEE "3TN\E
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fr T T T Fr T T
Segment assets SPEE 694,910 661,632 393,484 349,247 288,233 253,593 213,698 210421 | 1590325 | 1,474893
Unallocated assets FORZEE 430,342 403,538
Total assets BRE 2,020,667 1,878,431
Segment liabilities AHEE 220,610 186,304 160,001 131373 41,908 28,562 29,340 28,224 451,859 374,463
Unallocated liabilities *PRZER 144,959 158,480
Total liabilities BEE 596,818 532,943
Capital expenditure AEREEZERYH
incurred during
the year 44,136 63,762 38,020 18,795 1,863 47,554 3,959 4,828 87,978 134,939
Revenue from external customers by location of customers is as LEEMEME S 32 KB INEEF A
follows: /(i N

Hong Kong BB 1,259,376 1,195,114
Mainland China AR A b 363,131 228,554
Australia and New Zealand SN K 5 78 S 285,208 221,987
North America 1k M 409,030 379,177
Others H A 99,639 84,304

2,416,384 2,109,136
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(BR5=ABHAS

LABEEHE)

13 FIXED ASSETS

(a)

Annual Report 2007/2008

13 BEEE

The Group (@) ~EHEH
Interests in
Property, plant and equipment leasehold
0% RERR land held
Factory Fixtures, for own
Land and machinery furniture use under Total
buildings held and and office Motor Investment operating fixed
for own use equipment equipment vehicles Sub-total property leases E
RIELE
#8 %8 AEHAE
fEE FH Ik R R BRAZHEE
THRET R BRERE it REYE TihER
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000
T Fr i Fr Fr T
Cost: HAE :
At 1st April, 2006 RZZEAEMA—R 534,039 940,256 140,008 69,366 1,683,669 22,698 7,337 1,713,704
Exchange adjustments EHAZE 13,538 30,732 1,134 367 45,771 - 341 46,112
Additions RE 5,067 104,216 9,903 15,753 134,939 - - 134,939
Disposals He (294) (31,440) (4,580) (6,679) (42,993) - - (42,993)
At 31st March, 2007 RZBE+tE=A=1+-H 552,350 1,043,764 146,465 78,807 1,821,386 22,698 7,678 1,851,762
Accumulated amortisation, Rit## - % RHE
depreciation and B
impairment losses:
At 1st April, 2006 RZZEREMA—H 164,442 655,354 109,269 53,741 982,806 12,293 1,973 997,072
Exchange adjustments EHAE 3,066 17,477 902 248 21,693 - 90 21,783
Charge for the year REERE 17,955 70314 12,3% 8,455 109,118 527 27 109,872
Written back on disposals i EF & (112) (30,649) (4,143) (6633) (41,537) = = (41,537)
At 31st March, 2007 R=ZZ+tF=A=+-AH 185,351 712,496 118,422 55,811 1,072,080 12,820 2,290 1,087,190
Net book value: REFE:
At 31st March, 2007 RZEE+F=f=1-H 366,999 331,268 28,043 22,996 749,306 9,878 5,388 764,572
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13 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(a)

The Group (continued)

(a)

HEHPEREEFRAR
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Interests in
Property, plant and equipment el
0E BERR land held
Factory Fixtures, for own
Land and machinery furniture use under Total
buildings held and and office Motor Investment operating fixed
for own use equipment equipment vehicles Sub-total property leases assets
RELE
5 %E- AEHEHE
fEBAH IRk& R R BRZzHAE
T REF REE  BAERE BENE TiEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fr T Tr T
Cost: HAE:
At 1st April, 2007 RZZZtEMA-A 552,350 1,043,764 146,465 78,807 1,821,386 22,698 7,678 1,851,762
Exchange adjustments EiAR 18,297 54,227 1,983 1,209 75716 = 759 76,475
Additions AE 21 69,082 9,949 6,857 86,115 - 1,863 87,978
Disposals ek - (12,365) (7,59) (7.282) (27,245) - - (27,245)
At 31st March, 2008 R=ZZNE=A=+-H 570,874 1,154,708 150,799 79,591 1,955,972 22,698 10,300 1,988,970
Accumulated amortisation, Rit## - 1% RHE
depreciation and B
impairment losses:
At 1st April, 2007 RZZZtEMA-A 185,351 712,49 118,422 55,811 1,072,080 12,820 2,290 1,087,190
Exchange adjustments EHAE 6,193 35,385 1,624 899 44,101 - 226 44327
Charge for the year REEHE 18,289 69,963 10,460 8,139 106,851 526 279 107,656
Written back on disposals  H £ & - (9,727) (7,247) (1.172) (24,146) - - (24,146)
At 31st March, 2008 R=ZENE=A=+-AH 209,833 808,117 123,259 51,671 1,198,886 13,346 2,795 1,215,027
Net book value: REFE:
At 31st March, 2008 RZZEFNF=A=+-H 361,041 346,591 27,540 21914 757,086 9,352 7,505 773,983
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13 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13 BIEEE @

(b) The Company (b) AR A]

Property, plant and equipment
ME - BERRE

Land and Factory Fixtures,
buildings machinery furniture Total
held for ELL and office Motor Investment fixed
own use equipment equipment vehicles Sub-total property assets
#H RE-
L=RER: IR iR EE
Tt REF RBE WRAERE BEEA
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
SPoE Fr Fr SPoE
Cost: BAE -
At 1st April, 2006 R-ZTTXREMA—H 141,773 354,890 63,618 57,506 617,787 22,698 640,485
Additions NE = 41,122 2,825 11,094 55,041 = 55,041
Disposals & - (24,993) (845) (6,793) (32,631) - (32,631)
At 31st March, 2007 RZTET+LF=A=+—H 141,773 371,019 65,598 61,807 640,197 22,698 662,895
Accumulated REtIE -
depreciation:
At 1st April, 2006 R-ZTTRNFMNA—H 51,258 309,660 56,604 44,805 462,327 12,293 474,620
Charge for the year REFZHE 4,214 19,581 3,008 4,951 31,754 527 32,281
Written back on disposals  H! & B # [5] - (24,906) (844) (6,793) (32,543) - (32,543)
At 31st March, 2007 R-ZTT+LF=A=+—8 55,472 304,335 58,768 42,963 461,538 12,820 474,358
Net book value: FREEME :

At 31st March, 2007 R-ZBT+F=A=+—H 86,301 66,684 6,830 18,844 178,659 9,878 188,537
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13 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(b) The Company (continued)
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13 BIEEE @

(Y WNEINE 3!

Property, plant and equipment

ME - BERRE
Land and Factory Fixtures,
buildings machinery furniture Total
held for ELL and office Motor Investment fixed
own use equipment equipment vehicles Sub-total property assets
#A RE-
LR IR#H iR Bl E
T RiEF REE BWRERE EEREF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Cost: BAE :
At 1st April, 2007 R-ZZT+FNHA—H 141,773 371,019 65,598 61,807 640,197 22,698 662,895
Additions = - 24,485 5,616 4,949 35,050 - 35,050
Disposals & - (6,563) (4,360) (6,807) (17,730) - (17,730)
At 31st March, 2008 141,773 388,941 66,854 59,949 657,517 22,698 680,215
Accumulated REtif &
depreciation:
At st April, 2007 R-ZZTLFMNA—B 55,472 304,335 58,768 42,963 461,538 12,820 474,358
Charge for the year AEFHE 4,213 19,788 3,144 7,000 34,145 526 34,671
Written back on disposals ;& &5 # 6] - (6,531) (4,199) (6,787) (17,517) - (17,517)
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZEENE=ZA=+—8 59,685 317,592 57,713 43,176 478,166 13,346 491,512
Net book value: REFE
At 31st March, 2008 RZETNF=ZA=+—H 82,088 71,349 9,141 16,773 179,351 9,352 188,703
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13 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13 EEEE @

MEZEBFEZOTET -

(c) The analysis of net book value of properties is as (c)
follows:

The Group The Company
A& AR
2008 2007 2008
ZEZ\fE | D22 L Z—FT)\E
$'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T
In Hong Kong EEB
— medium-term leases — R EAEY 202,606 211,518 91,440 96,179
Outside Hong Kong B AN [
— freehold — KA ERE 117,232 114,701 - =
— medium-term leases — ALY 33,896 33,348 - -
— short-term leases —REHEY 24,164 22,698 - -
377,898 382,265 91,440 96,179
Representing: RE& -
Land and buildings held for ~ #HEBER 2+ RIEF
own use 361,041 366,999 82,088 86,301
Investment property REYE 9,352 9,878 9,352 9,878
Interests in leasehold land BELEHERFESR
held for own use under ZHE LR
operating leases 7,505 5,388 - -
377,898 382,265 91,440 96,179
(d) Fixed assets held under finance leases d NREHERBECEEEE

In addition to the leasehold land classified as being held under
finance leases, the Group and the Company have factory
machinery and equipment held under finance leases expiring
from 1 to 10 years. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

During the year, additions to the factory machinery and
equipment of the Group and the Company financed by finance
leases amounted to $6,697,000 (2007: $33,710,000) and $Nil
(2007: $6,573,000) respectively.

At the balance sheet date, the net book value of the factory
machinery and equipment held under finance leases of the
Group and the Company amounted to $38,077,000 (2007:
$35,292,000) and $5,505,000 (2007: $6,573,000) respectively.
The Group’s and the Company’s obligations under finance leases
are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

BRIELMEBERAZEE LI K
SEEARARAEBN —E+TFRNIH 2/
EHE BEIREERRHB BHEHE
TEBEHERE

FAR AEERARADHNEB ALK
6,697,000 7T (=T =+ 4F : 33,710,0007T) &
T (=TT F:6573,000T) A M
ERBELIMMEEREE -

REER AEBERAAFRNBERE
REZIBESREREZEEFED 5
#$38,077,000 7T ( = & & + 4 : 35,292,000
Jt) 5,505,000 ¢ ( = Z T + F : 6,573,000
L) c AEBERARARERE ZEH T A
ZMEEEFERER -
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13 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(e) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

The Group and the Company lease out an investment property
under an operating lease. The lease runs for an initial period of
three years, with an option to renew the lease after that date
at which time all terms are renegotiated. The lease does not
include contingent rentals.

The total future minimum lease payments under the non-
cancellable operating lease are receivable as follows:

BNBERERFRART 2T/ T N\FER

13 BIEEE @
(e) BEKEHEHL B TETEE

AEBERARAFAU-—BRLZHERHKE
WE-ZRHENTIRE=F L EARE
ERBEINHAREN ERMAGREGA
BEYEE mRBETEEEXEES -

RETABRGBZEEHEERRBRZ &
EREMR@ENT :

The Group and the Company

AEBRAERF
2008 2007
—EEN\E

$'000 $'000

Fr F

Within 1 year —FR 870 2,090
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA - 870
870 2,960

(f) The fair value of investment property f) BEWMEZARE

The fair value of investment property at 31st March, 2008
is $31,200,000 (2007: $25,800,000) which is estimated on
the basis of capitalisation of the net rental income with due
allowance for reversionary income potential. The valuation was
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors, Jones Lang
LaSalle Sallmanns Limited (2007: Sallmanns (Far East) Limited),
who have among their staff members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued.

14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

HEMER-_ZTENF=ZA=+—HBZ
N 7 {8 A&31,200,000 T( = T T + F:
25,800,000t ) bt T3 #F A @ WA B Ak
I EF AT A E & B LR F A S I A KN
MAGE M AERETEFTAE2 - HEDA
BYAEMTHEBRTAMAERAR(ZZ
TEF:AMERR)BRAA)#ET - HI
PTHREATBINEMEBEEeNEFEETE -
EFEEREMNME RIER A BT HEE

14 ME QR ERE

The Company

PN
2008 2007
—EZ)\EF —ZTELHF
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Unlisted investments, at cost EEMRE  RAAE 93,072 93,072
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U BB A B 5 IE 847,638 855,602
940,710 948,674
Less: Impairment losses o R E ETiE (668,910) (661,911)

271,800 286,763

o %
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(k5

14

BHA - ABERE)

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

At 31st March, 2008 and 2007, amounts due from subsidiaries
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

Impairment losses on interest in subsidiaries represent the
write down of the carrying values of the investment cost
and receivables from certain subsidiaries to their recoverable
amounts.

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise
stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note
1(c) and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial
statements.

Place of Particulars
incorporation
and operation

Name of company

of

issued and
paid-up capital

BEETR
BREBRAE
Vitasoy Holdings N.V. Netherlands US$6,100
Antilles 6,100% 7T

127 18 %2 Y 51 A
Vitasoy International Netherlands EUR22,500
B.V. fa7 %8 22,5008 7T
Vitasoy (UK) Investments United Kingdom GBP2
Company Limited 3 2EEE

Vitasoy USA Inc. United States

Common stock:

of America US$12,061,000
EH L@
12,061,000 7T

Convertible series A
preferred stock:
US$38,400,000

AJRRRA

L

BEK

38,400,000

T

14

ownership interest

held by the
Company
b AN
"E

b /8 2 B R ad o
KR-BE\FR-BELF=A=t+—H
UK B DR RAEEER 28R EE
B -

MTE“ﬂ%%ﬁZﬁZEEﬂE?EH%HEQ“:FFH
A A Z BB R T AR GR 2 B T (B OR
EETHKIEIﬁ%E g

TRRAAEEMBAAZHEN - B2A
ERS ARERAZHBAARG YA
HB -

bW B2 T AK E M RE 2 S
MBAR LEAEEZHBEREASE
S -

Proportion of
Principal activities
BAEREELE

held by a
subsidiary

Bt S

PEAHEHE
% %

100 - Investment holding

REZER

= 100 Investment holding

REZR

100 - Investment holding

REEK

Manufacture and sale
of soy related products

FERHESREM

= 100
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14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MYE A Bl G

Place of Particulars of
issued and

paid-up capital

Proportion of
ownership interest

HEREBSILE

incorporation

and operation Principal activities

Name of company

BETR
BRBRARE

held by the
Company
V. /N
#E
%

held by a
subsidiary
W 1
NEFHE
%

Shenzhen Vitasoy People’s Republic Registered capital: 70 - Manufacture and sale
(Guang Ming) Foods of China RMB80,000,000 of beverages
and Beverage HEARAME HREA : EERIEER M
Company Limited AR
(note (i) 80,000,0007T

R e (e B3
RmAE AR A A
(B 3E@)

Vitasoy (China) Hong Kong $20 100 - Investment holding
Investments B 207C BEERK
Company Limited

Hfoin ()

REBRRAA

Vitasoy (Shanghai) People’s Republic Registered capital: - 100 Manufacture and sale
Company Limited of China RMB191,476,367 of beverages
(note (ii)) AR ARME AR : FERHEESR S

H g (L&) BRAR AREE
DY 191,476,367 7T

Vita International Hong Kong $20 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited B8 207T REERK

HHEREBFRAA

Vitasoy Australia Australia V class shares: - 51  Manufacture and sale
Products Pty. Ltd. BN A$8,925,000 of beverages

ViR FERHEESR S

8,925,000 7T

N class shares:
A$8,575,000
NEERR :
8,575,00038 7T
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14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MYE A Bl G

Place of Particulars of
incorporation issued and Proportion of
Name of company and operation paid-up capital ownership interest Principal activities
BAEERLER
held by the  held by a

Company subsidiary

BHITRE ARH i 8
HRBAFEE #E ACIECE:]
% %

Vitasoy Australia Food Australia A$175 - 100 Dormant
Products Pty. Ltd. M 1758 7T Emex
(note (iii)

(Bt =E (i) )

Vitasoja (Macau) Macau MOP100,000 100 - Distribution of
Limitada R P S8 P9 % 100,000 7T beverages

Hth g ORPI) BR AR 7 H R m

Produtos De Soja Macau MOP10,000 - 100 Dormant
Hong Kong (Macau) R P P9 #510,000 7T Emax
Limitada

BERESmORPA)

BRAAE

Vitaland Services Hong Kong $3,000,000 100 - Operation of
Limited B5 3,000,000 7T tuck shops

Kt R AR5 B R A A BER Y

Hong Kong Gourmet Hong Kong $20 - 100 Provision of
Limited BB 207T catering services

BEERARAF REUEERRS

The Hong Kong Hong Kong $20 100 = Property investment
Soya Bean Products B 2070 MERE
Company, Limited

BEBESmBERRAR

Vitasoy Distributors Singapore $$2,500,000 100 - Dormant
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. ¥TANSK %N 2,500,000 7T EmeEs

Vitasoy Investment Hong Kong $1 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited BB 17T REERK
(note (iv))

B R E R
BRAA

(Bt & (iv))
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14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (cONTINUED)

Name of company

Place of
incorporation
and operation

Particulars of
issued and
paid-up capital

BETR
BRBRARE

Vitasoy Holdings Malta Ordinary shares:
(Malta) Limited BERfh A$2,999
(note (v)) TR
(M W) 2,99938 T

Deferred shares:
A$1

EERD
18T

Vitasoy International Hong Kong $1
Investment Limited B 17T
(note (vi))

BRA A
(PRt 5 (vi))

Vitasoy Investment Singapore S$10,000
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. N 3703 B
(note (vii)) 10,000 7T
(B &E (vii))

Notes:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage Company Limited
is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the People’s
Republic of China and is to be operated for 20 years up to 2011.

Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned
subsidiary established in the People’s Republic of China and is to be
operated for 50 years up to 2045.

The Group has an effective interest in 51% of the equity of Vitasoy
Australia Food Products Pty. Ltd..

Vitasoy Investment Holdings Limited was incorporated on 17th July,
2007.

Vitasoy Holdings (Malta) Limited was incorporated on 24th September,
2007.

Vitasoy International Investment Limited was incorporated on 5th
December, 2007.

Vitasoy Investment (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. was incorporated on 10th
March, 2008.

BNBERERFRART 2T/ T N\FER

Proportion of

ownership interest

Principal activities

HEREBSILE

held by the
Company
V. /N
#E
%

100

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

held by a
subsidiary
W 1
NEFHE
%
100 Investment holding
REER

- Investment holding

REEK

100 Investment holding
REZER

A (KR RmARB AR AR R T
EANRENBEFMERIZPIIEERED
¥ OREBA_TF ZE_T——F|k-
HHIM(EB)ERDARRPEARKLMN
BRI E2ERBRAR - &£ &H
AREt+E E_TEOAFL -

7K £ E +F A Vitasoy Australia Food Products
Pty. Ltd. 51% 2 BB # 5 -

HHMBREERERARNR_TZLF+
A+t HEFMKL -

Vitasoy Holdings (Malta) Limited ® = & & +
FNAZ+MBEFZMRKL -
HUDBREREGRAAR T LF+
—AREHEMKTL -

Vitasoy Investment (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. /X =
ZTNF=RA+BFMEKIL -

o%
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B

15 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates and participates in a number of defined

contribution and defined benefit retirement plans in Hong Kong

and outside Hong Kong.

Defined contribution retirement plans

(i)

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
plan, Vitasoy International Holdings Limited Staff
Provident Fund, which is available for all eligible staff
employed by the Group in Hong Kong and Macau before
1st August, 2000. The plan is funded by contributions
from employees and the Group, both of which contribute
sums representing 5%-7.5% of basic salaries. Forfeited
contributions are credited to members’ accounts in
accordance with the rules of the plan. The plan is
administered by trustees with the assets held separately
from those of the Group. The employees are entitled to
100% of the employer’s contributions after 10 complete
membership years, or at an increasing scale of between
50% to 90% after completion of 5 to 9 membership
years.

Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong not joining
the defined contribution retirement plan are required to
join the Group's mandatory provident fund plan under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The mandatory provident fund plan is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by
an independent corporate trustee. Under the plan, the
Group and the employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $20,000. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

15 & &R IKE 2l

AEBEBTERBEBAIMREL K2 M
Z IR R K R E R AR ARG B

(@) FEMFRIKETE

(@)

NEBARER_-_ZEEENA—H
ZHAIERABRRBMZEAAEEBZA
BB THRY —ERTEHKRKTE
(M PBEREBEERARBERE
®)c ZtEIzESREEBERAE
BzHR EHHASBAEST Z25%
E7.5% o R E KA IRIE B 2 45 Bl
BAGTEIKE ZRE - %t 8l AE
AABRE  FIREENEASEEZE
ENHRERE -T2 T EmI0F% -
EERZEZHEEHER M2 Fat
EESEIOFRIZAZEEHKAD L
A R 50% & 1 £ 90% ©

TERAEEMIL &S MR EHK
RAGEZEBEER  MWEABRESRHS
CREIER B EEN )2 MRS R
ZRHIMATESE - REMAES
FrE A —BERAEEIENREE - BB
MEBRTEAER o BREBEZETE A
SEEEEESKEEERHAKA(H
BB AZE A ERA200007T) Z5%
M T B 4K o mEr & 2 KB E
HER o
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15 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Defined contribution retirement plans (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") are members of the central pension
scheme operated by the PRC government. The Group is
required to contribute a certain percentage of employees’
remuneration to the central pension scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation for the Group with
respect to the central pension scheme is the associated
required contributions under the central pension scheme.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

For employees in Australia, contributions are made by
the Group to a registered superannuation fund for its
employees, at 9% of the employees’ salaries. The assets
of the scheme are held separately by an independent
administered fund. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

Eligible employees in the United States of America are
covered by a defined contribution retirement plan under
section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan
provides for voluntary employee contributions, which
represent a salary deferral for U.S. income tax purposes, of
up to 100% of each employee’s annual salary, subject to a
cap of US$15,000. The Group also contributes an annual
amount in respect of each employee’s self contribution.
The amount of the Group’s annual contribution is limited
by the lesser of (i) 50% of each employee’s annual
contribution, and (ii) 6% of each employee’s gross
annual salary. The employees are entitled to 100% of the
employer’s contributions after 4 complete years' service,
or at an increasing scale of between 25% to 75% after
completion of 1 to 3 years’ service.

Where there are employees who leave prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the forfeited employer’s
contributions shall be used to reduce the future
contributions of the employer. During the year, forfeited
contributions of $202,000 (2007: $51,000) were
utilised. At the balance sheet date, the total amount of
forfeited contributions which are available to reduce the
contributions payable in the future years was $Nil (2007:
$72,000).

HEHPEREEERAR

15

(a)

—BTL /BT )N\FER

117

SR K& &

REH-FERNRE S (@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

RNPEARKERE ([FE]) 2B
AAZEEHS MbHEKFRYLZ
MRARKEETE - AEBEARIES M
SR -—AALRPRERSFEH
R AKERPRRAKESFEMAR
TzH—BERABRERESEIH
K e M At IS 2 BN B AE 2K o

RNESHE - A% EERESHH
2 9% — B A K8 B R R
RESHR - HBEEABUERY
EeHREAE o MBS HRD
B A -

X B 2z A &% E E R Einternal
Revenue Code & 401(k) 1§ & —H R &
MR ARETEIRIE - ZETEI R TEE
BAREFSELIBEBRHER(REBRA
EFRMEBREEZRZEF &) &
= A {8 B F % 2 100% - LA 15,000
ELARLER AEENREREEZ
HRERFERR - AEE 2 BFHR
BUTIHMEFRZERESEAR -
WEEEBZE2FHRZ50% : Kii)
BEEBZEFH BT 26% ° R
BEEAFEIAFHNRENEZEZMEE
HH - MREFEFEIE3IFAZA
ZEEEFBE DA A255%ZEHIEE
75% ©

MR B £ R =B 2 36 4% 5K AT BB
ARz EEEZXEARNARB
BREREERR -FR - AKEEHHA
202,000 7t ( = T & + 4 : 51,000 7T )
2T REER HBEZT T
(ZZZT £ :72,0007T) 22 WM HK
A ARIRE R EMER -
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(B2EHI - BT E)

15 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 15
(CONTINUED)

(b) Defined benefit retirement plans (b)

At 31st March, 2008, the Group and the Company recognised
employee retirement benefit assets/(liabilities) in respect of the
following employee retirement benefits:

1B &R KRGS
(&

~—

TE R K48 A 5 2

RZZEZNF=ZA=+—0 A£ERXK
RAHTIEBRAKBHERESRIKE

MEE/ (AK) :

The Group The Company
AEEH AR
2008 2008
—ETN\E —EE)\&
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Employee retirement benefit B ERKBFEE
assets
— retirement gratuities N
(note (c)) (H () 3,327 2,220 3,629 2,436
Employee retirement benefit & ERKBH EE
liabilities
- long service payments - RERB
(note (d)) (PH E(d)) (2,034) (2,418) (1,914) (2,283)
Retirement gratuities (0 EBHEK®

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau, who have
completed a prescribed minimum period of services and joined
the Group before a specific date, are entitled to retirement
gratuities upon retirement age. The gratuity is based on the last
month’s salary and the number of years of service.

A funded defined benefit retirement plan, Vitasoy International
Holdings Limited Defined Benefit Scheme, was established for
the retirement gratuities. The defined benefit retirement plan
is administered by an independent corporate trustee, with
assets held separately from those of the Group. The plan is
funded by contributions from the Group in accordance with an
independent actuary’s recommendation.

The latest actuarial valuation of the plan was at 31st March,
2008 and was prepared by qualified staff of HSBC Life
(International) Limited, who are members of the Society of
Actuaries of the United States of America, using the projected
unit credit method. The valuation indicates that the Group’s
obligation under this defined benefit retirement plan is 123%
(2007: 150%) covered by the plan assets held by the trustee.

AEBEEFTERAMIZERERBFEZE
A-—BREEZRESRRNEEAHZA
AR &L B - 5] JE R K F & R RIUR
e SHEATFHERRAEBAFERBFE
i °

AEBERERES KL —HEBRERNR
Ketd - PBEEEBEERQARER
FEte ZERATREANERARGBHBILIA
AERAER  HREERAKEZEES
FEIE - At B M AKEIZRBBILEEM
ZREFERHK -

=113

Z 5 %JZE’*E*EJ§1E@75 _‘g‘g/\iz
TZAQ%H%E(E%@%:%EW g2g
B)RBEEEMNFEERET BHRMGER
TAEERBEZACRBMERFTEMER
TZEEEABI123% (=T L F : 150%)
RETAFEZAEAEERE -
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15 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 15 EERKETE
(CONTINUED) (&)
(c) Retirement gratuities (continued) (0 BT
(i)  The amounts recognised in the balance sheets are as (i) REEABERERZESHBLOT :
follows:

The Group The Company
AEEH AR
2008 2008
—EBFN\E —EFN\E
$'000 $'000
P P
Present value of wholly 2HENEEZHE
funded obligations (79,545) (60,610) (76,108) (58,314)
Fair value of plan assets HEBEZARE 97,684 91,089 95,090 88,842
Net unrecognised actuarial RERZEE K& FE
gains (14,812) (28,259) (15,353) (28,092)
Employee retirement EERAKBHNEE
benefit assets 3,327 2,220 3,629 2,436

A portion of the above asset is expected to be recovered
after more than one year. However, it is not practicable to
segregate this amount from the amounts receivable in the
next twelve months, as future contributions will also relate
to future services rendered and future changes in actuarial
assumptions and market conditions. The Group expects
to pay $563,000 in contributions to the defined benefit
retirement plan during the year ending 31st March, 2009.

(i)  Plan assets consist of the following: (ii)

B EMEERD IREE - FERE
Bl AW BRARRERITS KRB R®R
REZRERBREBEBRRETR

KA —EA NPT EAEZ & 8P B
WAHT  AEERPBRE_FTTN
FZA=+"BLEFESRRAERAM
RAREH &I R 32 9 563,0007T °

FrEIEERRE

The Group The Company
r& AR

2008 2008

—ETN\E —EBF)N\E

$'000 $'000

Fr Fr
Equity securities N 71,505 61,030 69,606 59,524
Bonds B % 14,751 15,485 14,359 15,103
Cash Be 11,428 14,574 11,125 14,215
97,684 91,089 95,090 88,842
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15 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 15 EERIK
(CONTINUED) (#8)

(c) Retirement gratuities (continued) (0 BT
(i)  Movements in the present value of the defined benefit (iii)

obligations are as follows:

REBNEEZREZHOT :

The Group The Company
A& V. /N

2008 2008

—EFN\E —EFN\E

$'000 $'000

Fr Fr
At 1st April RIEA—H (60,610) (52,659) (58,314) (50,977)
Benefits paid by the plan &2 2 1 7& 7 5,470 2,474 5,412 2,474
Current service cost 35 A IR 18 A AR (3,947) (3,519) (3,719) (3,336)
Interest cost A Bk 2N (2,458) (2,338) (2,362) (2,263)
Actuarial losses BEEE (18,000) (4,568) (17,125) (4,212)
At 31st March R=RA=+—H (79,545) (60,610) (76,108) (58,314)

Movements in fair value of plan assets are as follows:

(iv)

AEEEZARBEHOT

The Group The Company
rE V. /N
2008 2008
—BE)N\E
$'000
Fr
At 1st April REA—H 91,089 78,181 88,842 76,400
Group's contributions AEBE MG EE A EHR
paid to the plan 528 510 420 406
Benefits paid by the plan &t &2 (38 F (5.,470) (2,474) (5.412) (2,474)
Actuarial expected return T E|EE 2 B E BT
on plan assets @ 4,872 4,278 4,748 4176
Actuarial gains e 8 = 6,665 10,594 6,492 10,334
At 31st March R=ZB=+—H 97,684 91,089 95,090 88,842
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15 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 15 8 RINETE
(CONTINUED) (&)
(c) Retirement gratuities (continued) (0 BT
(v)  Net income recognised in consolidated profit or loss is as (v) REEGERBRZFHART :
follows:

Current service cost IR A AR 75 B 2< (3,947) (3,519)
Interest cost BB A (2,458) (2,338)

Actuarial expected return on TR B EZ BEE AR
plan assets 4,872 4,278
Net actuarial gains recognised ERABE NS T 2,112 1,822
579 243

The net income is recognised in the following line items in
the consolidated income statement:

EiFRATIAGZAERRER P 2H

BT :

Cost of sales $HE B AR 193 93

Marketing, selling and distribution HE HELSHEHER
expenses 98 19
Administrative expenses THEHR 266 74
Other operating expenses Hihig = & 22 57
579 243

The actual return on plan assets of the

Group (taking into

account all changes in the fair value of the plan assets
excluding contributions paid and received) was net income

of $11,537,000 (2007: $14,870,000).

AEBZEEEZERER(G

Mit8lEEARBZMAE#
ERABREEMEE KH
W A11,537,000 & ( = &

14,870,0007T ) ©

)
%) A%
TL4

i

R-ZBENE=A=+—BHMRAZ
ETEREBROT :

(vi)  The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31st March, (vi)
2008 are as follows:

The Group and the Company
AEEBRAQA

2008 2007
=L LI S il

Discount rate BE IR R 2.45% 4.25%
Expected rate of return on plan assets &t £| & & 2 7B &t [ 3k X 5.50% 5.50%
Future salary increases 2R 2R B 1 1R 4.50% 3.50%

FrEIEEZ R MBmETAREES

The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the IR
B R AR B 2 B 52 O S A R o

portfolio as a whole and exclusively on historical returns,
without adjustments.

o %
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(BR=ABHA - ABERE)

15 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(CONTINUED)

(c) Retirement gratuities (continued)

Historical information

(vii)

15 {&

(¢ Bk @

(vii)

£ & ¥

The Group
2008 2007 2004
—E3)0\% ZERLE “ZEME
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T Fr
Present value of the defined RERFEEZEE
benefit obligations (79,545) (60,610) (52,659) (53,917) (54,248)
Fair value of plan assets HENEEZRNAE 97,684 91,089 78,181 72,192 74,154
Surplus in the plan AERHR 18,139 30,479 25,522 18,275 19,906
Experience adjustments REFEARZERAE
arising on plan liabilities 2 (1,932) 3,506 3177 (3,086)
Experience adjustments REFEEEZBRBE
arising on plan assets 6,665 10,594 5,280 (4,957) 25,101

The Company
2008 2007 2004
ZEEN\E “ETtR “ZIME
$'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tx Tx
Present value of the defined REEHEEZEE
benefit obligations (76,108) (58,314) (50,977) (52,463) (52,919
Fair value of plan assets SEBEZNALE 95,090 88,842 76,400 70,740 72,704
Surplus in the plan B A% 18,982 30,528 25,423 18,277 19,785
Experience adjustments REFEBRZERAE
arising on plan liabilities (23) (1,687) 3,495 3,145 (2,929)
Experience adjustments REFEEELERAR
arising on plan assets 6,492 10,334 5,160 (4,851) 24,610
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15 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 15 B ERIKETE
(CONTINUED) (#&)

(d) Long service payments (d EKHERB=2
Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group BEFE(ERBEN)Y REBEES TIB
is obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of RTRIEERARAAEERBELRAFZE
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees who ERMEEYN—ZBREB -FALNZ
have completed at least five years of service with the Group. CHERTEEREBMEBETHEIREEE M
The amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary TE I A FE EIDRR 3R AR & EUR KRG8 R &
and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements accrued MBARAAEBEFREEZI X - AEEY
under the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable to AEBEEARBBITEMAAEEHMT
contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set aside ZEE o

any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

An actuarial valuation of long service payments was also RHABRB TR _ZTEEN\F=A=+—H
carried out at 31st March, 2008, by qualified staff of HSBC HEZASRB(HB)ABRARZEER
Life (International) Limited, who are members of the Society of BE(AXHEEmMEe ye8 ) KAREE
Actuaries of the United States of America, using the projected BNEERETHEEME-

unit credit method.

(i)  The amounts recognised in the balance sheets are as (i) REEABRERZEBLT :
follows:

The Group The Company
i& Y. /N
2008 2008
—EF/N\& z —EF/N\E
$'000 $'000
P P
Present value of EEPEEZHRE
unfunded obligations (368) (121) (37) (10)
Net unrecognised KAERBERZFHE
actuarial gains (1,666) (2,297) (1,877) (2,273)
Employee retirement EERKBHNERE
benefit liabilities (2,034) (2,418) (1,914) (2,283)

o %
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(BREBEHRAI - LUBEEETE)

15 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 15 fE &R IKFT2
(CONTINUED) (4)

(d) Long service payments (continued) dy REHR%< @wm
(i)  Movements in the present value of the defined benefit (i) RAERANEBEEZREZSH T :

obligations are as follows:

The Group The Company
& Y /N

2008 2008

—EFFN\E = ZEEN\E

$'000 $'000

T T
At 1st April RMEA—H (121) (602) (10) (437)
Benefits paid BT EF 189 107 139 107
Current service cost 35 A R A AR (40) (13) (5) (8)
Interest cost T B AR AR (5) (26) - (19)
Actuarial (losses)/gains B8 (E1B) lkx (391) 413 (161) 347
At 31st March R=ZA=+—8 (368) (121) (37) (10)

(i) Net income recognised in consolidated profit or loss is as iy MEEEZBRZFVRADT :
follows:

=t ¥
$'000
T
Current service cost IR A R 75 B AN (40) (13)
Interest cost F BB A (5) (26)
Net actuarial gains recognised ERRBE NS FEE 240 465
195 426
The net income is recognised in the following line items in PR AT AGEBERRRZ
the consolidated income statement: HEWMT :

Cost of sales $H & B A 58 111

Marketing, selling and distribution  # /& - #§& &5 #HE A
expenses 31 92
Administrative expenses THEHR 73 153
Other operating expenses HgesEA 33 70
195 426
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B3R R M5 (48)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(RBEHBAIN - UBKEFTE)
15 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 15 &8RRGS

(CONTINUED) (#&)
(d) Long service payments (continued) (d) FRHRBE #)

(iv)  The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31st March, vy RZZEZNF=ZA=+—HAKRZ

2008 are as follows: FEBERIZLOT :

The Group and the Company
AEEBRAAA

2008 2007
ZEENE —ETLE

Discount rate B I & 2.45% 4.25%
Future salary increases R K 357 B 1 g 4.50% 3.50%

(vii)  Historical information (i FEERER

The Group
& E
2008
—EFENE
$'000
Fx

Present value of unfunded BEPEEZ2HE
obligations (368) 121)

Experience adjustments arising on REFEEBEZERFAE
plan liabilities (180) (437)

The Company
KRR
2008

== 135
$'000
Fi

Present value of unfunded EENETZHE
obligations (37) (10)

Experience adjustments arising on REFEEBEZERAE
plan liabilities (137) (351)
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(BREBEHRAI - LUBEEETE)

16 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 16 EEBBRZAEH
(@) Current tax recoverable and payable in the (@) BEBEBERXRZEWE K FETIHE
balance sheets represents: HIBBRE
The Group The Company
& V. /N
2008 2008
ZEE)N\E = ZEE)N\E
$'000 $'000
T T
Provision for Hong Kong REEBBNEH
Profits Tax for the year B (38,016) (32,831) (35,105) (29,633)
Provisional Profits Tax paid BHMN 2 EHFEH 25,773 28,127 22,186 24,975
(12,243) (4,704) (12,919) (4,658)
Taxation outside Hong Kong Z 78 DASM 1R B 0B (6,525) (2,657) - =
(18,768) (7,361) (12,919) (4,658)
Summary e
The Group The Company
& b N
2008 2008
ZEE)N\E = ZEE)N\E
$'000 $'000
T T
Current tax recoverable JE U [a] 25 EA & 18 675 - - -
Current tax payable JE 1 3R EA i TE (19,443) (7,361) (12,919) (4,658)

(18,768) (7,361) (12,919) (4,658)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 955 30 2R Y A (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=ABHA - ABERE)

16

(b)

INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

HEHPEREEERAR

6 EERERZIMEHR

(b)

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
in the balance sheets and the movements during the year are as

follows:

The Group

Depreciation

(%)

ERRECHBEEERRAIE
REAERARBRZECHAAERAE

RERZEEHMT :

REE

allowances
in excess Future Employee
of related benefit of retirement
depreciation tax losses benefits Provisions
BHE
HEZ BBEBERZ B8
MEEHE RRFH BRIAER
$'000 $'000 $'000
Fx Fr Fr
Deferred tax arising XEZEZIET
from: BIE :
At 1st April, 2006 RZZEZERFMA—H (31,685) 17,336 1,880 9,870 (2,599)
Exchange adjustments & i, 7§ % (189) 149 - 247 207
(Charged)/credited to RNigx (k) 5 A
profit or loss (2,906) (533) (1,799) 2,644 (2,594)
At 31st March, 2007 R-TT+4
=A=+—8H (34,780) 16,952 81 12,761 (4,986)
At 1st April, 2007 RZZEZLFMA—H (34,780) 16,952 81 12,761 (4,986)
Exchange adjustments & & 3 % (180) 76 - 664 560
Charged to profit or loss 1B 25301 % (757) (1,474) (86) (1,044) (3,361)
At 31st March, 2008 R=ZTZ\4
=A=+—H (35,717) 15,554 (5) 12,381 (7,787)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=ABHA - ABERE)

16 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(CONTINUED)

(%)

6 EERERZIMEHR

ERRBELCHREEREE :

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b)
(continued) (&)
The Company AAT

Depreciation
allowances
in excess

of related
depreciation

BHAR
HEZ
MEZHE
$'000

T

Employee
retirement
benefits

B8
Rk &7
$'000
T

Provisions

Deferred tax arising from: KEAREZETZHIE :
At 1st April, 2006 RZZTZT FHA—H (9,155) 1,763 2,342 (5,050)
Charged to profit or loss RIE % Mk (3,647) (1,790) (104) (5,541)
At 31st March, 2007 R-_ZT+F=A=1+—8 (12,802) (27) 2,238 (10,591)
At 1st April, 2007 RZZET+FMA—H (12,802) (27) 2,238 (10,591)
(Charged)/credited to profit RiEzE (FNBR) /& A

or loss (265) 2 (212) (475)
At 31st March, 2008 RZTZENF=A=+—H (13,067) (25) 2,026 (11,066)

Summary =

The Group
r&E
2008

= 2%
$000
T

The Company
V. AN
2008
—EFN\E
$'000
Fr

Net deferred tax assets REEBBRERZ

recognised on the EEREEEFB
balance sheets 4,249 6,374 - -

Net deferred tax liabilites HREAEEGBEXRERZ

recognised on the EERBEREFE
balance sheets (12,036) (11,360) (11,066) (10,591)
(7,787) (4,986) (11,066) (10,591)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEHRAI - LUBEEETE)

16

(@)

17

INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET
(CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(0),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
tax losses of $478,953,000 (2007: $462,120,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the losses can
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and
entities.

Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of
$17,728,000 (2007: $57,245,000) and $450,803,000 (2007:
$395,365,000) which can be carried forward for up to five
years and twenty years respectively from the year in which the
loss originated. The remaining balance of $10,422,000 (2007:
$9,510,000) does not expire under current tax legislation.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSET

HEHPEREEERAR

ZETL /T \FER

129

6 EERERZIMEHR

(0

17

Financial asset at fair value through BEAREFEEEEZFHNES
profit or loss BRZEREE

(%)

AERZELEHAEE

BIEM 1) 2 @K - NEBE W&
HRA BN E8478,953,000L (=T F
+ £ 1 462,120,0007T) 2 BEFHIEEE @ R
AEEBABEAEZEEREREE AN
EERKRERT A AEEEBES -

WERAITHA ABERABVEEE+RAE
17,728,0007C (= Z & + F : 57,245,000 ¢ )
%450,803,0007T (=2 Z £ F : 395,365,000
T)EASAELEBRAER -+ &
fE W o H $10,422,000 T( =Z B & + & :
9,510,0007T) B E B T R IZERITH LD
HA JEm o

Htt e mMEE

The Group and the Company
KEB KA QA

2008 2007
—EERLE
$'000

=t LI
$'000
Fi T

- 14,347

The 2007 balance represented a long-term structured deposit
contract with a bank with principal amount of US$2,000,000
and maturity date in September 2008.

During the year, the contract has been early terminated.

RS AHEE—FMRTITLIZE
HEBMEGTEREL - EA S % A2,000,000
ETCR-ZZEZTNFNAFH -

FAZANERERLE -

o %
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B 955 30 2R Y A (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEHRAI - LUBEEETE)

18 INVENTORIES 18 78
(a) Inventories in the balance sheets comprise: () EERBERPNEERE
The Group The Company
e¥ Y | N
2008 2008
= 28 z = 2%
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Raw materials B 155,283 112,959 68,932 51,029
Finished goods 2R 113,134 99,339 31,525 33,934
268,417 212,298 100,457 84,963
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories b) EERRAIZGEEESESN
recognised as an expense is as follows: mE
The Group
AE
2008
“EENE
$°000
T
Carrying amounts of inventories sold EERFEZREE 1,365,757 1,212,754
Write down of inventories Wk FE 3,788 13,366

1,369,545 1,226,120
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(BREBEHRAI - LUBEEETE)

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 FEURBR R I H ft & WK
The Group The Company
A£H Y. NG|
2008 2008
—EFN\E = —EFN\E
$'000 $'000
T T
Trade debtors and bills B B 0 P M R IR
receivable 383,309 352,145 237,910 250,805
Less: Allowance for W REREE
doubtful debts (KtzE19(b))
(note 19(b)) (4,637) (2,111) (370) (534)
378,672 350,034 237,540 250,271
Other debtors, deposits HpERR Bk
and prepayments B HE 42,623 42,876 10,048 9,064
421,295 392,910 247,588 259,335
The amount of the Group'’s and the Company'’s other debtors, AEBRAARERR —FEKEHER
deposits and prepayments expected to be recovered or RXEZEMERZE  ReRBNRIES
recognised as expense after more than one year is $6,595,000 Bl 46,595,000 7t ( — & F + 4 : 5,937,000
(2007: $5,937,000) and $1,755,000 (2007: $740,000) JC ) }% 1,755,000 7t ( — & = + 4 : 740,000
respectively. All of the other trade and other receivables are TC) o BT/ E fib & W BR 3R K EL i fE W 3K 78 AR
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one R—FARESKERASZ L -

year.
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 EWIRM K H b FE U X
(CONTINUED) (48)
(a) Ageing analysis (@) BREC DT

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors and
bills receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with the
following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date:

REER  ERKERRREMERRT
ERERRERER (BHBRERE) 2
BRI DT

The Group The Company
r& Y. NG|
2008 2008
—EE)\& ZEEN\E
$'000 $'000
Fx Fx
Current KB H 284,660 257,196 173,643 178,360
Less than 1 month past due BHLR—@EAR 83,341 83,514 63,203 69,149
1 to 3 months past due BH—Z=A 9,714 7,777 694 2,762
More than 3 months but BHBA=@AEDIR
less than 12 months past +=@A
due 865 1,364 - -
More than 12 months past BEBAT @A
due 92 183 - -
Amounts past due papsiieag-cl 94,012 92,838 63,897 71,911
378,672 350,034 237,540 250,271
The Group'’s credit policies are set out in note 27(a). NEE 2 EE R HRMFE27@) ©
(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable (b) EWEREREEKEE 2 BE

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills receivable
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case
the impairment loss is written off against trade debtors and bills

receivable directly (see note 1(h)(i)).

BrIE AR S B (= 4 B 1R U B 5% 3R IA #9 7T B
HERSE BRERREBRERZREESRE
ERABBRLDE - B R YR A AT AL MRS
B PR B S 1R B A R R SRR g (R

ZE1(h)0)) °
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(BREBEHRAI - LUBEEETE)

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(b)

(CONTINUED)

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable
(continued)

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year is as follows:

HEHPEREEERAR

19

(b)

ZETL /T \FER

133

FE UK B TR 2 EL At BB WK

(%)

(%)

RERERFAZESHNOT :

The Group The Company
r£H Y. NG|
2008 2008
—E3)\f ZEEN\E
$'000 $'000
Fx Fx
At 1st April REA—H 2,111 6,432 534 5,584
Exchange adjustments & 5 A% 163 7 - -
Impairment loss recognised/ REEEZER,/ (FE)
(reversed) 3,400 4 (5 (1,183)
Uncollectible amounts written 7~ 8] 4z [E & 8 2 #f 8%
off (1,037) (4,332) (159) (3,867)
At 31st March R=A=+—8H 4,637 2,111 370 534
At 31st March, 2008, the Group’s and the Company’s trade R=ZZFENFE=ZA=+—8 ' A5EEX
debtors and bills receivable of $4,637,000 (2007: $2,111,000) Nl BRARSR R ZEE 5 54,637,000 (=
and $370,000 (2007: $534,000) respectively were individually T T4 ¢ 2,111,000t ) &370,0007C (=&
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables = + 4 : 534,000t ) Jh A B & E & T AR
related to customers that were in financial difficulties. The B ZEEAEEATUREZEKKE
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. EMBREEP AR - A& B &R
EREBTEEMERS -
Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not (o) 1B 2 FE AR 3k &% JE I 1%

impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
are set out in note 19(a).

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

I 48 18 ) =% 5% B8 1 AR 73 R (B 2 B U BR R
JE U B2 4 Bk e 0 AT B DI R BT RE 19(a)

5 36 5 7R OB (B B FE U ROR 0 ELOE H R
BREFLCENELREFHRM -

BMMETYEREZEBKRKEZZBIEP
Bl ZRERPUHAKENEELERI
REBELSR BTEERR BREEZ
RWEEAEE  BABRDERIEATZH
e Atz SREnEARERRB ~&
B Ep i EEBRTEEMERR -

o %
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RS RREEE

20 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

20 SRITHFRE
15 H

The Group The Company
A& AR
2008 2008
—BT)N\E —EBF)N\E
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Cash at bank and in hand RITEFREFRS 127,076 106,629 11,253 8,160
Bank deposits maturing ERBHIR=@AZ
within 3 months when RITER
placed 402,723 355,097 376,076 303,464
Cash and cash equivalents HekEL2ZEER 529,799 461,726 387,329 311,624
Bank deposits maturing GRENTER=ZEAZE
after 3 months but within —FEZHRITER
1 year when placed 18,962 23,984 9,963 11,532
548,761 485,710 397,292 323,156

21 AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The entire balance

is expected to be recovered within one year.

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

21 FEUHK B A B IE

& W B /B A A

22 BERNERAK

REOREEARAERE

BEEEEERY 2HMERTER—FR

H fth F& 4 3K

The Group The Company
r& AR
2008 2008
—ETN\E —ET)\E
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Trade creditors and bills BERERRENEE
payable 221,094 179,693 126,105 119,908
Accrued expenses and FE=t B R H A AT
other payables 237,583 199,840 78,278 69,613
458,677 379,533 204,383 189,521
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSEHIBEI - LUBKERTE)

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 22 FEAY BRFRR E Ath FEAY K a0
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be AEBEHAMEEMNERREMENK
settled within one year, except customer deposits amounting B —F RNEE X% E15406,000 T
to $15,406,000 (2007: $15,145,000) for the Group and (ZZFZT £ F 15,145,000 7t ) & &N A 7]
$14,421,000 (2007: $14,268,000) for the Company which are 14,421,000 7 ( = Z + 4F : 14,268,000 7T )
expected to be settled after more than one year. 2EFPHSAUTEIHR —FREE -
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors and bills REER  ERNERREMERNTF -
payable with the following ageing analysis as of the balance ENERARENZEZERE>TOT :
sheet date:

The Group The Company
AEH A7
2008 2008
—EE)\& = —EE)N\&
$'000 $'000
T Fx
By due date EH A E
Due within 1 month or on  FHE R —E A5
demand REK 193,596 163,583 111,892 113,240
Due after 1 month but NBMBEA—MEAZ
within 3 months =f@A 21,955 12,424 9,431 3,479
Due after 3 months but AMAA=EAZ
within 6 months ~ME A 2,527 977 1,813 487
Due over 6 months ZEEBB/NEA 3,016 2,709 2,969 2,702
221,094 179,693 126,105 119,908
23 BANK LOANS (UNSECURED) 23 RITER (EEKHF)
At 31st March, 2008, the bank loans were repayable as follows: R—_ZEENF=ZA=+—H RITERA
5 EARR (E 5%
The Group
AEHE
2008
—EENE
$'000
Fx
Within 1 year —F A 47,190 27,005
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFERN 21,419 69,960

68,609 96,965
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(k5

23

24

(a)

BEESN - LB H)

BANK LOANS (UNSECURED) (CONTINUED) 23

One of the Group’s banking facilities is subject to the fulfilment
of a covenant relating to a balance sheet ratio of the Group,
as is commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenant, the
drawn down facility would become payable on demand. The
Group regularly monitors its compliance with the covenant.
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are
set out in note 27(b). As at 31st March, 2008, the Group had
complied with the covenant.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 24

At 31st March, 2008, the Group and the Company had

BITER(EER) @

AEBEF-BARTEEATAS —BHEAR
SEZEEEBRIEERAHZRR  ER
HUPBEEBILERLFERNTERRE -
MEAREERBHARG  MARERE
BORBZEER AEBEEHEELRSY
BTERRANEL  FEAKEEER
HERBRZFBHNRME270) - R=F
ZENF=ZA=+—RH AEEEHETZH

Tt
ah °

MEHEZEH

R-_EENE=A=+—H A&£BEEAXK
AT

Gl

obligations under finance leases repayable as follows: BERMEHEBEEZEHEMOT
The Group (@) AKHE
2008 2007
—EF)N\EF —ZETtHE
Present Present
value of the Total | value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
RIEEE RIEEE REHE REHE
HRZzHRE E$ L1 TRz RE T B %8
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Within 1 year —F R 6,873 9,560 7,533 10,311
After 1 year but within —FREMER
2 years 9,209 11,321 5,317 7,464
After 2 years but within MERERFR
5 years 17,237 20,689 14,068 18,037
After 5 years L&k 2,700 3,288 8,388 9,504
29,146 35,298 27,773 35,005
36,019 44,858 35,306 45,316
Less: Total future interest W RRAEEREE
expenses (8,839) (10,010)
Present value of lease HEBK2HE
obligations 36,019 35,306
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24 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 24 MEHEEZE®
(CONTINUED) (&)
(b) The Company (b) AR A]
2008 2007
—EF)N\E “EELHE
Present Present
value of the Total | value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
RIEEE RIEEE REHE REHE
HHRZHE R Et FTRZBE T8 %8
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
Within 1 year —FR 1,082 1,533 936 1,539
After 1 year but within —FREMERN
2 years 1,170 1,533 1,087 1,539
After 2 years but within MERERFER
5 years 3,363 3,858 3,813 4616
After 5 years hFk - - 737 796
4,533 5,391 5,637 6,951
5,615 6,924 6,573 8,490
Less: Total future interest B AKRFSERAESH
expenses (1,309) (1,917)
Present value of lease HEBKZHE
obligations 5,615 6,573
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 25 EXRK#E

(a) The Group (@) ~EHEH

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ALAREHEARR

Capital Share-based
Share Share  redemption Capital Legal General Exchange  compensation Retained Minority

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests
&k RHE# YURR

K% fhiE L EEL AR EERE —-REH EiGE HHAE RERH EE Ex
§'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 §'000
T T T T T T r r r r T

At 1t Apri, 2006 R-FEAERA-R 250,822 298,455 1,101 87,828 6,830 2,261 (23,658) 5919 620,810 1,250,368 58,566 1,308,934
Exchange differenceson ~ BENIRAT

translation of the HEaRfEE

financial statements JBHER

of foreign subsidiaries - - - - - - 16,444 - - 16,444 6,907 23351
Transfer from retained ~ §REEH(HAE

profits to legal reserve £ EE o = - - 662 - - - (662) - - -
Transfer from capital BELfREAT

reserve to retained profits B - - - (4,087) - - - - 4,087 - - -
Shares issued on exercise i EERER

of share options Bkt 937 6,140 - - - - - - - 7017 - 7077

Transfer from share-based ~ #AFERERE
compensation resene K EREERE
H

W

to share premium on EEE Gl

exercise of share options - 1358 - - - = = (1,358) o = = =
Equity setfled share-based  J\itfAZR 2
transactions 5 = = = - - - - 2115 - 2715 - 2775

Final dvidend approved in B [ -5

respect of the previous 2 K& &

year (note 10(b) (K10b) - - - - - - - - (67,404) (67,404) = (67,404)
Special dividend approved in 81 [ 5§

respect of the previous  Z&fIRE

year (note 10(b) (B 1001) - - - - - - - - (100,603) (100,603) - (100,603)
Interim dividend declared ~ EfFEEE %8RS

in respect of the curent (K10

year (note 10(a)) - - - - - - - - (28,197) (28,197) - (28,197)
Dividend paid to minority ) #REEERS

shareholder - - - - - - - - - - (1,757) (1,757)
Profit for the year TEERT - - o = = = = = 173,901 173,901 2741 201,312

At 315t March, 2007 ji a3
=f=t-R 251,759 305,953 1,101 83,741 749 2,261 (1,214 73% 601,932 1,254,361 9,127 1,345,488
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CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

The Group (continued)

EHPEREREERA

Al

—TTL /T N\EFER

25 EXRKF#E @

(@) A&EHE @)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

139

FAAREREAER
Capital Share-based
Share Share redemption Capital Legal General Exchange  compensation Retained Minority Total
capital premium Teserve Teserve Teserve reserve Teserve Teserve profits interests equity
#% R E# YERE
k% RBER REERE #AEE EEHE -hik i3 1] HREE BiEd L3 [t 1
§1000 $1000 $/000 $/000 $000 $000 $000 $/000 $1000 $1000
fn fn n fn i i 1 i n fn n
At 1st April, 2007 R-B2LEMA-R 251,759 305,953 1,101 8,4 749 2,61 (7.214) 7,336 601,932 1,254,361 91,127 1,345,488
Exchange differences on BENNELE
translation of the HHERAEL
financial statements LELER
of foreign subsidiaries - - - - - - 2,262 - - 2,262 11,04 37308
Transfer from retained HREEHER
profits to legal reserve EHERE o - - - 3318 - - " (318 . : .
Transfer from capital HEREEER
reserve to retained profits 5 R@EH - - - (4,087) - - - - 4087 - - -
Sharesissued on exercise ~~ RTFERER
of share options EIR6 1,135 8,160 - - - - - - - 9,295 - 9,295
Transfer from sharebased R EBRERE
compensation reserve REERER
to share premium on HEBRZRG
exercise of share options BE = 1,990 - - - - - (1390) - . . .
Equity settled share-based ~ HURHEEEZ
transactions SLrA Y] - - - - - - - 133 : 1333 . 3
Final dividend approved i~ #EBR L-FE
respect of the previous ZRBRE
year note 10()) (H&106) = = = = - - - - (67708~ (67.706) - (67,706)
Special dividend approved in ~ HEBR E-FE
respect of the previous ZBHRE
year (note 10(b)) (B&E10(6)) - - - - - - - - (101,054) (101,054) - (101,054)
Interim dividend decared i~ ERAEEZHE
respect of the current K& (HF106)
year (note 10(a)) - - - - - - - - (28315) (28315) - (28,315)
Dividend paid tominority ~ MABRERERE
shareholder - - - - - - - - - - (8481) (8481)
Profit for the year REERA - - - - - - - - 211,208 211,208 u1m 235,981
At 315t March, 2008 RZBENE
ZR=t-A 252,894 316,103 1,101 79,654 10810 2,261 19,048 6,679 616,834 1,305,384 118,465 1,423,849

o%
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 25 BERNHE @
(b) The Company (b) AT
Capital Share-based
Share Share  redemption Capital General compensation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits
BF et 2 5
& Fth i B E ik EXRH — s TR REEF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
3 7 i 7 i 3 7
At 1st April, 2006 RZZEXEMA-H 250,822 298,455 1,101 87,828 2,261 5,919 558,506 1,204,892
Transfer from capital reserve  HEAHEEEERE
to retained profits gl = = - (4,087) - - 4,087 -
Shares issued on exercise ROEBREMRTRA
of share options 937 6,140 - - - - - 7,077

Transfer from share-based BTGB RAET & R
compensation reserve to ERRRRREERE

share premium on exercise ~ R{AEE

of share options - 1,358 - - - (1,358) - -
Equity settled share-based ~ MRHBEBZ X
transactions 2% = - - - - 2,775 - 2,775

Final dividend approved in ~ #EBRE—FE2

respect of the previous year  KER 2 (K zE10(b))

(note 10(b)) - - - - - - (67,404) (67,404)
Special dividend approved in  H#tEBRE—FE2

respect of the previous year 45 Bl & (K3 10(b))

(note 10(b)) - = = - - - (100,603) (100,603)
Interim dividend declared in ~ ENFREE 2 HERE

respect of the current year  (Hi3£10(a))

(note 10(a)) - - - - - - (28,197) (28,197)
Profit for the year (note 9)  AEE R (Ki39) - - - - - - 137,867 137,867
At 31st March, 2007 R-EZE+E=H=1-H 251,759 305,953 1,101 83,741 2,261 7,336 504,256 1,156,407
At 1st April, 2007 RZZZtEMA-R 251,759 305,953 1,101 83,74 2,261 7336 504,256 1,156,407
Transfer from capital reserve  HEAREEEZRE

to retained profits ekl - - - (4,087) - - 4,087 -
Shares issued on exercise ROEBEREMBTREG

of share options 1,135 8,160 - - - - - 9,295

Transfer from share-based ~ HTEBREMER S
compensation reserve to ERRERGBERE

share premium on exercise R EE

of share options - 1,990 - - - (1,990) - -
Equity settled share-based ~ URBAERZZR2X5
transactions - - - - - 1,333 - 1,333

Final dividend approved in ~ #tEBR E—EE 2K

respect of the previous year R 8 (Hiz£10(b))

(note 10(b) = = = - - - (67.708)  (67.706)
Special dividend approved in  #tEBR L —FE 245

respect of the previous year B & (HiE10(b))

(note 10(t) - - - - - - (0108 (101,050)
Interim dividend declared in =~ ERAEE 2 FHRE

respect of the current year  ([ftz10(a))

(note 10(a)) - - - = = = (28315) (28,315)
Profit for the year (note 9) ~ REEREF (KizH9) - = = = o = 223,675 223,675

At 31st March, 2008 RZBENFZA=+-H 252,89 316,103 1,101 79,654 2,261 6,679 534,943 1,193,635
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(c) Share capital

(i)  Authorised and issued share capital

®HTEABREEARAT —TTL/ _TTN\FEER
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25 EXRKF#E @

(@ MR
() ZERBEITERE

2008 2007
—EFN\E —EEtHE
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
B% & ) B -]
‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
F T ¥ Tr
Authorised: EERAE
Ordinary shares of FREE025TZ
$0.25 each =R 3,200,000 800,000 3,200,000 800,000
Ordinary shares, issued EZFTREHE
and fully paid: EAER
At 1st April WU A—H 1,007,036 251,759 1,003,288 250,822
Shares issued on exercise L 171 & IR A i 31T
of share options Z B n 4,540 1,135 3,748 937
At 31st March SNEH == 1,011,576 252,894 1,007,036 251,759

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive

ERARZFAATEDRTIRE IR Z

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled &g - jt—ffﬁ’\\$’“ﬂ27(ﬁ’t?¢t§ﬁ§

to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s

residual assets.

HXT/\nﬁ 7KX7K /TJEZ’S/A\jZTIJ
HREEMS MEEBREZAREHE
A e

(ii)

Shares issued under share option schemes

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe
for 4,540,000 (2007: 3,748,000) ordinary shares in the
Company. The net consideration was $9,295,000 (2007:
$7,077,000) of which $1,135,000 (2007: $937,000) was
credited to share capital and the balance of $8,160,000
(2007: $6,140,000) was credited to the share premium
account. An amount of $1,990,000 (2007: $1,358,000)
has been transferred from the share-based compensation
reserve to the share premium account in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 1(n)(iv).

(ii)

RIFBERETZZTZRG
FR A RE AR AT EA4,540,000
& (=ZZZT 4 : 3,748,0000%) 2 BE A&
ERITE - 1% 1&@?#%@%9295000
TL(=ZZFZ+ & 7,077,000 7T )
#1,135,0007C ( = & F £ & : 937,000
TT) BERARK - K £8,160,0007T (=
T T+ F 6,140,000z ) Bl & A B 15
A EBR ° 1,990,000 L ( Z T £ F :
1,358,000 7T ) Z X E B 18 % ff 5 1(n)
(V)FTH 2 5T BR B IR {0 ZE 7 1B 6
EEREEZRMHEER -

o %
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(1)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve
The application of the share premium account and the
capital redemption reserve is governed by sections 48B
and 49H respectively of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Capital reserve

As part of the restructuring of the Group in February
1994, the Company disposed of a property to a former
subsidiary and consideration was received in the form
of cash and another property. A total gain, representing
the difference between the historical carrying value
of the property disposed of and the fair value of the
consideration received, resulted.

The gain arising from this transaction was divided into
realised and unrealised portions in the ratio of the amount
of cash and the fair value of the property received (“the
property”). The unrealised gain was taken to capital
reserve and is realised on depreciation of the property.
During the year, $4,087,000 (2007: $4,087,000) is
transferred from capital reserve to retained profits.

Legal reserve

The legal reserve has been set up by Shenzhen Vitasoy
(Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage Company Limited and
Vitasoja (Macau) Limitada in accordance with regulations
in the PRC and Macau respectively.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note

1(r).

Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve comprises the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in note 1(n)(iv).

25

(d)

BEARRNFEE @

fEEzME AR

(1)

(i)

(iir)

(iv)

(v)

R 10 )% 18 IR R & 7K & [0] f# 15
BOGEEEREAEBERREEZBED
Bl % B B R A& ) 55 48B K 49H &

T
BT e

Bt

ERAKER ﬂﬂ@i HiEET2
BEHz—®n AR — [ 51 Y /&8
AEHE-BYE " ﬁ@:’;l«xiﬁﬁﬁ%
—IEWMEIN o UL EL B - B
FEEWEES FREEEERRER
REZER -

ZERZZREBERE S RDE
(TMEDRREZEHSABEER
RABHEBH - REBEKRSDFAE
KNEE WRETEMERTERER -
RAEEFERN 4,087,007 ( =TT+
% :4,087,000t) BEERNEEERDT
RE & o

EE

ETE A BRI b (L BE) R & AR
BRR A RAEMT CRF) BER A A
RRBEHBERIRFZEPIRL -

& 5 fi# 1
ELRBEESREIMEEBT B RR
EEZHABELZE - ZHEEERE
MEIOmE z 85 BREE °

R0 BB
BROERBEREREERTASEE
BERIMARMARTEBERENA
A E - B R RRE TR R M EE1(n)Gv)
IS ARDEERZARREAZ S
BT T iR o
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(e)

Distributability of reserves

At 31st March, 2008, the amounts of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company are as
follows:

BNBEREERFRART 2T/ T N\FFER

25

(e)

143

General reserve — 2,261 2,261
Retained profits RE & A 534,943 504,256
537,204 506,517

After the balance sheet date the Directors proposed a final
dividend and a special dividend of 8.7 cents per ordinary
share (2007: 6.7 cents per ordinary share) and 10.0 cents per
ordinary share (2007: 10.0 cents per ordinary share) respectively,
amounting to $189,614,000 (2007: $168,668,000). These
dividends have not been recognised as liabilities at the balance
sheet date.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practices, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a debt-to-adjusted capital ratio.
For this purpose the Group defines debt as the total of bank
loans and obligations under finance leases, and adjusted capital
as all components of equity less unaccrued proposed dividends.

)

REBEBR ESRARBRHRES
BEABRSIUW(ZZEZLF : SREAR
6.7 flll) s Al B B = A & & AR10.04L (=
ZTEF: BREARICON) - BHEB
189,614,000 7T ( = T & 4+ 4 : 168,668,000
L) c BARENGBEALRERSAE

BARER

AEEEEREARZEZERRRER
SEERBELENE N BEBBER LR
BB AR AT 10 B2 B B AR R A9 K R iz & 3
RAEERE  HHEEZERRRERD
BEREthERERERENE -

AEBEEGEREHUEARBETRI R
R UHERERREBAEH TR
BEKFEREEEARATRZBD RRER
BB E TRAEKERBEZELCHER
REBEHFE -

REZXZNED  AEBEAABEEEHBR
RERESEREEARBE 2EE - 5Lt
B AEERKAERAEARTERLE
EHEGEB2HR KRAEREAASERZ
FrEMAKRIYBIERFTEZEBE
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 25 BEXRRHE @
(f) Capital management (continued) f) BEXERE@®
During 2008, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from REZZEZENF AEEZRBABAGY
2007, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at KRABREARAE EEFND10% @ KK
around 10%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group —EELFRYARNE AREFXFARS
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue Bt AEBEXSAZERKREIKRMS 2K
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt BE®E ZIHRO MBRRERLDER -
financing or sell assets to reduce debt. EENEHEREIHEEENREARE -
The debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31st March, 2008 and RZEENFR-_ETEEF=A=+—H
2007 was as follows: ZEEHERAEERLENT
The Group The Company
AER ARF
2008
—BEN\E
$'000
Fx
Current liabilities: HEEE
Bank loans (unsecured) RITER(EER) 47,190 27,005 - -
Obligations under finance leases mﬂﬁ%ﬂhZﬁi‘% 6,873 7,533 1,082 936
54,063 34,538 1,082 936
Non-current liabilities: FnBEE
Bank loans (unsecured) RITER(EER) 21,419 69,960 - -
Obligations under finance leases mﬂéﬁﬂhZ%% 29,146 27,773 4,533 5,637
50,565 97,733 4,533 5,637
Total debt BEEEE 104,628 132,271 5,615 6,573
Total equity W B 1,423,849 1,345,488 1,193,635 1,156,407
Less: Proposed dividends W EZzRE (189,614) (168,668) (189,614) (168,668)
Adjusted capital BARER 1,234,235 1,176,820 1,004,021 987,739
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio &EHEABRERILE 8% 11% 1% 1%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to AN A K E OB R A A & SF A 3 A AN

externally imposed capital requirements. ZERBE -
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26 gﬂﬁfﬁ?‘%gﬁﬁzwﬁrz

TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 4th
September, 2002 whereby the Directors of the Company were
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including Directors of any company in the Group, to take up
options to subscribe for ordinary shares of $0.25 each in the
Company. The exercise price of the options is determined by the
Directors of the Company and is the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing prices
of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised, but the Directors of the Company
are empowered to impose at their discretion any such minimum
period at the date of offer. The options are exercisable for a
period not to exceed 10 years from the date of grant. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one share in
the Company.

o
Nl

AARR_ZEZ_FALAMNBRK—HAB
ISR Bl AR EFERED
BBEAEEZER (BREANEEE N ER
RAZER)EMEREAZBARASMR
E{E025 T2 HEK - BEREZITEREHA
RAEZEE R NI=FFzRELHE
WM EREBHA(AREER) EBT B
EXGHERDA (TR 2 WHE :
(i REERHBHALEEREZXA
XTGP RmE : Rii)Bhz
HE -

BEESALOTRA BREREEHEND AT
£ EARAZEZERERENAHRK
BHMERRERFEHR - BRkEZTRE
PIrIEBEARHARBEF 2+ - BEE
BEZFAEADEERB —RARRRD °
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26 UM AE®R 22
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) T 5 @)

(@) The terms and conditions of the unexpired and unexercised () REZEAZABBRARTEBREZEX
share options at balance sheet date are as follows, whereby all RIGHEWNMT FTEABREBDUBRODZED
options are settled by physical delivery of shares: T aEE

2008 2007
—BF0\% “EELE
Contractual Remaining Remaining
life of Exercise | contractual Number contractual ~ Number of
Date of grant Exercise period options price life  of options life options
BREZ i B B feh £ R E
FHEH TiEH BHER BHEH Z¥E BHEH Z¥R
‘000 ‘000
i T
1/4/2003 1/4/2004 - 31/3/2013 10 years 1.688 5 years 4,416 6 yearsé 5,627
1/4/2004 1/4/2005 - 31/3/2014 10 years 1.904 6 years 3,962 7 yearsF 4,942
3/8/2004 3/8/2006 - 2/8/2014 10 yearsF 1.910 6 years & - 7 yearst 900
1/6/2005 1/6/2006 - 31/5/2015 10 yearsF 2375 7 years & 4,174 8 yearsF 6,584
5/6/2006 5/6/2007 - 4/6/2016 10 years 4§ 2.900 8 years 4,012 9 yearsF 5,262
18/7/2007 18/7/2008 - 17/7/2017 10 years 3.600 9 years 3,906 = =
20,470 23,315
Note: B 5
Except for the options granted on 3rd August, 2004, all the options are BRR-_ZTZNENA=ZBEREZEREIN - FTH
exercisable progressively and the maximum percentage of the options which A FATEZEREEB DR LIEN - SRR
may be exercised is determined in stages as follows: TEEREZBESL ERAOT ¢

Percentage of

options granted

EEREREZEN L
On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant BE BB —BFRHEE 25%
On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant B BB RAFRHE R another s 25%
On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant BB = AT HE another % 25%

On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant KB BB mBEg A% another % 25%
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b)

options are as follows:

R 5 (&)

BREZBE RMEFHITEBNOT :

2008 2007
—EFN\E —EBELE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
0 34 S B ¥ B A 4
fTEE Z¥ A TIEE ZEH
‘000 ‘000
T F
Outstanding at 1st April REOA—BHRTE 2.210 23,315 1.993 22,543
Exercised during the year NERITRE 2.049 (4,540) 1.890 (3,748)
Granted during the year RERK L 3.600 3,906 2.900 5,640
Forfeited on termination of AAEKR2EE
employment of eligible BB 1T A0 6 D8 IR
participants during the year 2.567 (2,211) 2.391 (1,120)
Outstanding at 31st March R=ZB=1+—BHEKTE 2.472 20,470 2210 23,315
Exercisable at 31st March R=RA=+—Hu{1{f 9,684 7,513

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was $3.414 (2007:
$2.930).

BETEZERERFERMNITER S 2 N
FHRKRE A344T(ZF T £ F 12930

) ©

o %
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted are measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the services
received is measured based on a binomial lattice model. The
contractual life of the option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the binomial
lattice model.
Fair values of share options and the related assumptions are as
follows:
Fair value at RitERMzARE
measurement date $0.356 $0.405
Share price AL $1.640 $1.880
Exercise price I E $1.688 $1.904
Expected volatility 8 R 18 35% 35%
Expected option life EEEREL NS 10 years# 10 yearsf
Expected dividends HHRE 7.50% 7.50%
Risk-free interest rate 4 3 B FI| & 3.91% 3.34%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility, adjusted
for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly
available information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option grants.

26 U BER T2
R (#)

(0 BREZAABEREBR
REBEUREBRERES ZRBENA R
B Eﬁ%afﬁ%h%Z@ﬁ@ﬁgo
Fr R & 2 At AR BEA BN B
B2 -BREZANFHAEZER
Z—HBAZ2H FHARETEZEHE
SAZEAMEBEX ZA -
BREZ ARERMEBARSKDOT :
$0.442 $0.522 $0.555 $0.579
$1.910 $2.375 $2.900 $3.600
$1.910 $2.375 $2.900 $3.600
35% 35% 30% 26%

10 years® 10 years® 10 years® 10 years%

7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
4.18% 3.52% 4.69% 4.69%

HHRERELREBEEE  TREAAR
EREHRAORE 2 ER AR TIAH

B -HHAREERELREEE FAHEAE
BERR2EPIHAARBZIGHHELEERXN
2@,

BREISRERBGEMRL - LEGS
EAFERFSRBORAE(RER LD ERE
)R EZREZY - REBRELENS
5 5 -
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27

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group's business. These risks
are limited by the Group’s financial management policies and
practices described below.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

The credit terms given to the customers vary and are generally
based on the financial strength of the individual customer. In
order to effectively manage the credit risks associated with
customers, credit evaluations of customers are performed
periodically. Trade receivables are due within 30 days from the
date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 14.7% (2007: 19.1%) and 51.9%
(2007: 55.5%) of the total trade and other receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet
after deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does not
provide any guarantees which would expose the Group to credit
risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in note 19.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

HEHPEREEERAR

27

—BTL /BT )N\FER
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 27 €T A @)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) "BE SRR @
The following table details the remaining contractual maturities TRANAEERARAREEBZ 2/
at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company's BEZETANIHER  HIRESY
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted AUMBRERE (BREZREHFE B
cash flows (including interest payments computed using FEEREEHBITZMEHEZFNE) AR
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the AEBEARREEZEEEREZREH
balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and the HAVEDHT ¢

Company can be required to pay:

The Group P
2008 2007
Z2R)\E ZERLE
Total More than ~ More than Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but contractual Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1yearor less than less than ~ More than Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than lessthan ~ More than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years amount cash flow  on demand PATEL 5 years 5 years
BENFRE  —£rE &4 mEH BLHREE  -EAY —£% mE#
kESE REiE BEX  BWEMN  BIER 154 | REEH ReRE REX  BRER  BEER ikl
$'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000
*r *r *r *r *r *r T T T T T i
Trade and other payables EREAR
AR 458,677 458677 458,677 - - - | 379533 379533 379533 - - -
Bank loans (unsecured) ROER (BER) 68,609 75,525 50,718 2,807 - - 96,965 107,764 28,667 79,097 - -
Obligations under REBREZEH
finance leases 36,019 44,858 9,560 1,321 20,689 3,288 35,306 45316 10,311 7,464 18,037 9,504
563,305 579,060 518,955 36,128 20,689 3,288 511,804 532,613 418511 86,561 18,037 9,504
The Company VNN

2008 2007
“2\E b 3243
Total More than ~ More than Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but contractual Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted ~ 1yearor  lessthan  lessthan  More than Carrying  undiscounted ~ 1yearor lessthan lessthan  More than

amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
BENARR  -&nE &4 mEH BANAER  -Erd —£% GEX

RESE REE REX  BREMN  BIER 154 | REEH ReiE ZEX  BRER  BEER i3

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Fr i Fr Fr Fr Fr i i i i r r

Trade and other payables EREAR
Hip R 204,383 204,383 204,383 - - - 189,521 189,521 189,521 - - -

Obligations under BAREZER
finance leases 5615 6,924 1,533 1,533 3,858 - 6,573 8,490 1,539 1,539 4,616 7%

209,998 211,307 205,916 1533 3,858 - 196,094 198,011 191,060 1,539 4,616 79
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(@

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-
bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group monitors
the level of its net fixed rate and variable rate borrowings and
manages the contractual terms of the interest-bearing financial
assets and liabilities. For this purpose the Group defines “net
borrowings” as being interest-bearing financial liabilities less
interest-bearing investments (excluding cash held for short-term
working capital purposes). The Group’s interest rate profile is set
out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s and the Company’s net borrowings (as defined
above) at the balance sheet date.

BHPEREEERAR —TET

27 £F T B )

(0

A%

151

AEBZAERBEIEREMEEER - &
AEMNERREEMNEETZEERAS
BoplAZREeERENEARREAFEE
MM XER - AEEEREFEERZEER
BEKFE REENSREERAELZ
BRGR - Bl REEYH[FEEEIZE
ERMESRHABRMERE (TEERE
RREBEAZRAZES) - AKREZHME
BRI ER T X)A -

(i)

WEL P

TRFAINGSEAARNEERRARAF
BE(MEER) 2FEEH :

The Group The Company
5 NG|
2008 2007 2008 2007
—E3)0\% “EEtE k- 31§ “EELE
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rate Amount rate Amount rate Amount rate Amount
BRAE &8 BRAE 2B EEAE £2E BRAE &8
% $'000F % % $'000F T % $'000F % $'000F T
Fixed rate borrowings: TEBE -
Bank loans RITER - - 6.90 1,565 - - = =
Obligations under BEREZ
finance leases &% 8.21 36,019 8.00 35,306 8.00 5,615 8.00 6,573
36,019 36,871 5,615 6,573
Net variable rate borrowings: FEEEE
Bank loans RITER 7.61 68,609 6.53 95,400 - - - -
Less: Other financial asset W Hthem
£E - - 207 (14,347) - - 2.07 (14,347)
68,609 81,053 - (14,347)
Total net borrowings FEERA®E 104,628 117,924 5,615 (7,774)

o %
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31st March, 2008, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease/
increase the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits
by approximately $518,000 (2007: $597,000). Other
components of consolidated equity would not be affected
in response to a general increase/decrease in interest
rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007.

(d) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through

sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency other

than the functional currency of the operations to which they
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United
States dollars, Euros and Australian dollars. As the Hong Kong
dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group considers
the risk of the movements in exchange rates between the Hong
Kong dollars and the United States dollars to be insignificant. In

respect of other currencies, management will consider hedging

significant exposure should the need arise.

27

(0

(d)

T A @

F = & B2 ()

(i)  BEEME DT
R-ZEENF=R=+—0 - HH
KEEEFTHKI0 T EFATA
Ema s ARRBTEZBRLT -
RNEBBKREE RN RSB B E
IR 1 i 49518,000 T ( — EE +
% :597,0007T) c e R AP 2

RN ZR R EREH T
4

o

=
o

b
&
i3

LA b SIURCE 93 4 T5 B A% ) R & g i 4
BH%LE VEARZEGEZER
TEAEZHAMERBEMETE - E#HXTH
10EESEEREHEETN—FE
HEEBIFHIM AT RE R A 2 A TR T R
BETZHE e —EEEEZ AN
ThiR FRAR R EE X3 1T -

SN EE 2 B2

AEEHRHZIERREIERAIUNAHE
Bz BN 2 G ETZ2EE - E
EHNERBRZEBKETERET BT RR
T HRBRES THE  WAKERE
BMEITZEREHREBEMN - gt H
BERmEs EEEERNTERZEHIE
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 27 €@ I A uwm
(d) Foreign currency risk (continued) (d) SMNER R (®)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk () B EAE

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a

currency other than the functional currency of the entity & E e o
to which they relate.

TRFAIAEERARARGEEH A
AZNERERBZDEERUINZE
BiEZOERBEEXBEMELZ

The Group P
2008 2007
—EFN\E —EEtF
United United
States  Australian States Australian
dollars dollars dollars dollars
EPW T ET BT
‘000 ‘000 '000 ‘000
SEoe Fx Tt F T
Bank deposits and cash RITFEREAR €
and cash equivalents ERESEEEH 7,621 4,109 3,257 4,039
Other financial asset HibemEE - - 1,834 -
Trade and other payables & {3 8% 5% K& H 4t J& £ 3¢ (1,134) - (1,360) -
Obligations under MEHE 2 &K
finance leases (2,033) - (1,447) =
Overall net exposure FEBE | R AR 4,454 4,109 2,284 4,039

o %
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk (continued)

The Company

27 €@ I A uwm

(d)y SNER B (@)
() EMEREREGE)

EANVNS|

United United
States Australian States Australian
dollars Euros dollars dollars Euros dollars
e B it R = BT BT
‘000 '000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
T T T T T Fi
Amounts due & s B /B 2 R FRIA
from subsidiaries 12,379 7,544 841 14,396 7,294 -
Bank deposits and  R{TEREBR S
cash and kB e EEHEA
cash equivalents 7,621 - 4,109 3,217 - 3,482
Other financial Hih A E
asset - - - 1,834 = =
Trade and FERTBR R R
other payables H &+ 3K (1,134) - - (996) - -
Obligations under @EMREZEH
finance leases (720) - - (840) - -
Overall net exposure % B2 % [ & 12 18,146 7,544 4,950 17,611 7,294 3,482
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits in
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the balance sheet date. The sensitivity analysis
includes balances between Group companies where the
denomination of the balances is in a currency other than
the functional currencies of the lender or the borrower.

BHPEREEERAR T

27 €@ I A uwm

(d)y SNER B (@)
(i) BB

TRITRGEEANRAKZEEHAEXN
[ f oz BE R AT BE & 3R 3 2 B Eh A B
75 8 B 1R i A S AR B i A 2 B A

B - GEE S
Kk - A B

refEsBanEz
BT AR A A K

AZDEEE AN EHETE »

The Group NE
2008 2007
—EEBNE —EELEF
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
Increase/ in profit Increase/ in profit
(decrease) after tax (decrease) after tax
in foreign and in foreign and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
R %t 1% 5 F R B % 0% R
RIRBER RAREEA
+H ERLEH tH
(T ) (F &) (F &)
$'000 $'000
Fx Fx
United States dollars e 5% (378) 5% (309)
(5%) 378 (5%) 309
Australian dollars BT 5% 1,225 5% 1,046
(5%) (1,225) (5%) (1,046)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at

FREDTDBRREXEINEER
BECAEARZAEFEZEHMT

AHAREEREBZEXREAR TR

the balance sheet date and had been applied to each of
the Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

RABHEMAZERB (CHEERNE) #

BT MERE -

o %
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)

(if) ~ Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange
rates over the period until the next annual balance sheet
date. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States
dollar would be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the United States dollar against
other currencies. Results of the analysis as presented in
the above table represent an aggregation of the effects on
each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and retained
profits measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the balance sheet date for presentation purposes.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007.

(e) Fair values

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed repayment terms. Given these terms it is not
meaningful to disclose fair values.

All other financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31st March, 2008
and 2007.

(f) Estimation of fair values

The fair value of the long-term structured deposit contract
(note 17) at 31st March, 2007 was estimated by discounted
cash flow techniques. Estimated future cash flows were based
on management’s best estimates and the discount rate was
a market related rate for a similar instrument at 31st March,
2007.

27
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(e)
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T A @
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Lt EsigE FﬂEKT FELE
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FREfT 2l o LUt S © Th k)
BEX Ty HBERTERETHE
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28 COMMITMENTS 28 EIE

R-ZZBEZNF

(a) At 31st March, 2008, the total future minimum lease payments (a)
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Al —TTL /T N\EFER

ZA=Z+—H REFTAHE
BReREeHEERRENZZEEENK

BEMT
The Group rE
2008 2007
—EFENE —EELF

Factory Factory
machinery machinery
E | and
Properties equipment Properties equipment
IE#aR TR RS
% R LES KR
$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
F T F T T T
Within 1 year —F R 31,891 520 29,655 846
After 1 year but within 5 years —&F#&ERER 15,852 587 21,751 956
After 5 years fFi& - - 60 47
47,743 1,107 51,466 1,849

The Company AN

2008 2007

—EFENE —EELHF
Factory Factory
machinery machinery
E | and
Properties equipment Properties equipment
IR R ITRHEER
IS B LYE S R
$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Fx Fx T T
Within 1 year —F R 2,806 - 1,484 -
After 1 year but within 5 years — & EREFER 1,526 - 1,010 -
4,332 - 2,494 =

The Group leases a number of properties and items of factory
machinery and equipment under operating leases. The leases
run for an initial period of one to eight years, with an option to
renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

AEBERBELLHEERBZANERSZ IR
cREFHEMF /Y —F
ENF O TABEREERESN EEMAE K
RAWEHFHE SEHETTEFEXE

TR 28 K 2

HE o

o%
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28 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 28 EIE (@)

(b) capital commitments outstanding at 31st March, 2008 not (b) R=ZZENE=F=+—8 *EHBR
RPBEZRNERNAEFBOT ¢

provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

The Group The Company
AEE PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—FEN\E —EELFE _—_TF/N\FE | —ZELHF
$'000 $000 $'000 $000
Fr T Fr T
Contracted for BT 4 12,379 6,180 840 221
Authorised but not BHRIEBRRELD

contracted for 142,892 75,099 128,474 53,437
155,271 81,279 129,314 53,658

29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29 HAREE

(a) As at 31st March, 2008, the Company has issued guarantees to (8) RzZzZTEN\F=A=+—8 A2AE#
banks in respect of banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries. BRTHENBARIZRITEREE M MR
The Directors do not consider it probable that a claim will be EHER -EFRBHME T—JF?—*‘{%FI’ﬁ%T$"
made against the Company under any of the guarantees. The AIERKEEZE IR  REEH - KA
maximum liability of the Company at the balance sheet date AEBEHZERTZEA 1?575 NN
under the guarantees issued is the facilities drawn down by the Rz R1EE43,69400 (=TT L F :
subsidiaries of $43,694,000 (2007: $40,488,000). 40,488,0007T ) °
The Company has not recognised any deferred income in HRERZARBIETEKR  ARAWE
respect of the guarantees as the fair value of such guarantee ez EREREREMETERA o
was insignificant.

(b) The Company has given undertakings to certain wholly-owned (b) ARAEAREMETE2EMB AR/
subsidiaries to provide them with such financial assistance as is EIR B A TR SR B & B IE -

necessary to maintain them as going concerns.
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions.

Transactions with related parties

()

(ii)

The Group has purchased milk products from a related
party in the PRC. The unit price of the milk products is
pre-determined in an agreement entered into between
the Group and the related party, and will be revised by
reference to the prevailing market price of similar products
in Hong Kong and the PRC. Total purchases from the
related party amounted to $2,517,000 (2007: $2,515,000)
during the year. The amount due to the related party as at
31st March, 2008 amounted to $94,000 (2007: amount
due from the related party of $74,000).

The products of the Group are distributed in Australia by
a related party and a management fee is charged for the
provision of services. The management fee is calculated
based on a pre-determined percentage of the gross
sales of products distributed by the related party. Total
management fee charged by the related party for the year
amounted to $8,561,000 (2007: $Nil). The amount due
to the related party as at 31st March, 2008 amounted to
$2,528,000 (2007: $Nil).

The above transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, in respect
of which the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

HEHPEREEERAR

—BTL /BT )N\FER
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30 EXEAEATRS

(a)

BRUBRREZAEREZRS REHI - K
SEEFYATERBEALRS -

HEEALZRS

@)

(ii)

AE@BMPA—BEFHEZBEEATRE
MBER G - MERNGZENEBDE—
MEAAEERZBEALT L ZHH
PHEAEE  TE2EFBERTPEA
HERZEAMMEELAER - FAMR
ZEE AT EE 2B M HEE2,517,000
T(ZZZT L4 :25150007T) c A=
TEENE=ZA=+—ARNZHEEA
+ 2 KB A0 T (=TT L FE
Wz B A & 2 FKI8 ¢ 74,0007T) ©

AEBZEMB —BEEEATRRNMN
D8H - ZA T IR R A AR S M E 1R
B -EEBARBLIETZXBE
ATHHERBIEEREZE D LG
B FRAZMEATKRERZERE A
58,561,000 (ZEFLF : F) o K
—EENF=A=t—HENT%H
BEALT2EHEEMBA25280005T (=
TTLFT)o

REBELEMRA - LR 5 HEREE
BERXS MARBRER BT L
MRABUAZEZRERTE o
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(b)

31

BHB - UBETHE)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30 EXEAEALERS
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) (#®)
Key management personnel remuneration (b)y BHBEEEAE
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, REBHEBEEAE NG (REMFETAR
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed BEEMA QA ESEN 2 HRIE LA KM FE8FT
in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed BERETFESSEESN2RE)MT -
in note 8, is as follows:
Short-term employee benefits REEEREF 26,342 24,251
Post-employment benefits BB 12 & T AN 739
Equity compensation benefits P& 72N 185 1E 42 1,139 1,735
28,192 26,725
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)). MRS BT ATE IRA | (RHFES®D)) °
NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET 31 BEFHABR2EERR
EVENT gxg
Subsequent to the balance sheet date the Directors proposed () BT eNLERRESERAERERE
a final dividend and a special dividend. Further details are BIIR B o E— L HBRMTI10HE -
disclosed in note 10.
On 13th March, 2008, Vitasoy Investment (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (b) R=ZENF=A+=H x&EEZ2%

("Vitasoy Singapore”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group
entered into a share purchase agreement with the shareholders
of Unicurd Food Co. (Private) Limited (“Unicurd”) to acquire
the entire issued share capital of Unicurd. The purchase
consideration is S$14,000,000. Unicurd is engaged in the
manufacture of soy food products in Singapore.

This transaction was completed in April 2008.

The Group has commenced assessing the financial impact of
the above acquisition but is not yet in a position to determine
the potential financial impact of the above acquisition on the
Group’s results of operations in future periods and financial
position at future date.

B ARMEMPIEE (M) BRA A
(T s mE ) BGE—Rm(FLA) BR
ARAI(HE—Rm]) 2BREFT L —ERMDE
Bz WKES _EuuZ%uBE?\%ﬁHX

7R o BE B X (B & ¥ A3 % 14,000,000 7T ©

RMmRHFMERESEEMEE -
HERXRZR_TETNFMEATK °
AEBEHBRAGH LMK E 2 HELE
ME 8 2R BE 2 B TE Ll U BB ¥ R & B A 1& A
MEEXEERABBRH M BRI ZEE
BF S 2 o
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32
(a)

33

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of adopting HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures, and the amendment to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements: Capital disclosures, certain comparative
figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in
disclosures in the current year and to show separately
comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed for the
first time in 2008. Further details of these developments are
disclosed in note 2(a).

As a result of the change in policy in note 2(b), rebates and
discounts of $584,325,000 which were included in “Marketing,
selling and distribution expenses” in the 2007 financial
statements have been reclassified to set-off with turnover.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Notes 15, 26 and 27(f) contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to defined benefit
retirement obligations, fair value of share options granted and
fair value of financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
respectively. Apart from the above, the Group believes the
following critical accounting policies also involve significant
judgements and estimates used in the preparation of the
financial statements:

Impairment of fixed assets

If the circumstances indicate that the carrying values of fixed
assets may not be recoverable, the assets may be considered
“impaired”, and an impairment loss may be recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of assets. These assets
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. When such a decline has occurred,
the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and
the value in use. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement relating
to level of sale volume, selling price and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of sale volume,
selling price and amount of operating costs. However, actual
sale volume, selling price and operating costs may be different
from assumptions which may require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of the assets affected.

HEHPEREEERAR

32

33

(a)

—BTL /BT )N\FER
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BB T

HRRBCEE M BRE LR ET75R A F
TA: BEIRKEEGHER)E 1R (&
uT$) [HBEHREZZH: EARAKE ] 8
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e YR _FTENFEARBEEREAZL
REBREBIRK - Az — T
B M 5 2(a) 4 BR o

7 EE

BRI E20) T 2 BREEE - WA AZT
THEYBEREIEE HERDHEER
Z2.584,325,000 7T | #1 & #7T 1 E & #1 5 8 A
BR & R EY o

315 3 R

|1ﬁ£15 26 & 27(H) % Bl & A B8 X FE 48 Fl
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AEFEEEEHREZERZIEHEE
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33

(b)

34

BRI LBEETE)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual values, if any. The Group reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the Group’s
historical experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group maintains an impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of the
debtors to make required payments. The Group estimates the
future cash flows based on the ageing of the trade receivables
balance, debtors’ credit-worthiness, and historical write-
off experience. If the financial condition of the debtors were to
deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than estimated.

Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts of
inventories with reference to aged inventories analysis, expected
future consumption and management judgement. Based on
this review, write down of inventories will be made when the
carrying amounts of inventories decline below their estimated
net realisable values. However, actual consumption may be
different from estimation and profit or loss could be affected by
differences in this estimation.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31st March, 2008 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

In addition, HKFRS 8, Operating segments, which is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009, may
result in new or amended disclosures in the financial statements.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
hFMBEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ASHERTE)
2008 2004
—EFN\E B 2E7 B “EENF
$'000 $'000
Fr 7T 7T T
Results EF
Turnover = - 2,416,384 2,109,136 1,961,983 1,848,750 1,770,259
Profit from operations 4 &5 | 300,677 250,515 233,775 197,032 151,252
Finance costs A& B AR (8,865) (8,068) (8,372) (9,042) (8,421)
Restructuring cost RN - - - (24,782) -
Compensation for traffic accident RBEIZEES - - - 765 1,464
Profit before taxation % %t Bl o A 291,812 242,447 225,403 163,973 144,295
Income tax FE#H (55,831) (41,135) (40,378) (40,403) (35,019)
Profit for the year KEE G 235,981 201,312 185,025 123,570 109,276
Attributable to: B
— Equity shareholders of the — KD AR
Company BAEA 211,208 173,901 172,076 120,982 114,793
— Minority interests — LEREER 24,773 27,411 12,949 2,588 (5,517)
Profit for the year REE % F 235,981 201,312 185,025 123,570 109,276
Assets and liabilities BERER
Fixed assets & & E 773,943 764,572 716,632 770,691 846,388
Bank deposits RITEX - - 22,768 38,427 93,397
Other non-current assets HIEma & E 7,576 22,941 18,341 3,212 1,875
Net current assets FERBEE 706,965 669,486 640,508 511,707 385,727
Total assets less current liabilities BEERERREBAR 1,488,484 1,456,999 1,398,249 1,324,037 1,327,387
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (64,635) (111,511) (89,315) (28,656) (36,067)
NET ASSETS FEE 1,423,849 1,345,488 1,308,934 1,295,381 1,291,320
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hEMBEHE (FE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABREETE)
2006 2004
—EEME
$'000
T
Capital and reserves BXRRE
Share capital A% 7R 252,894 251,759 250,822 248,482 246,457
Reserves & 1,052,490 1,002,602 999,546 999,230 1,000,083
Total equity attributable to RARRERE A
equity shareholders of the Company  J {5 # 25 1@ %8 1,305,384 1,254,361 1,250,368 1,247,712 1,246,540
Minority interests LEHBRREER 118,465 91,127 58,566 47,669 44,780
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,423,849 1,345,488 1,308,934 1,295,381 1,291,320
Earnings per share FREN
— Basic —ER 20.9 centsfll [17.3 centsfll  17.2 centsfli  12.2 centsfll  11.7 centsfll
— Diluted — s 20.8 centsfll |17.2 centsfll  17.1 centsfll  12.1 centsfill  11.6 centsfll

Notes to the five year summary:

(1)

(2)

In order to comply with HKFRS 2, Share-based payment, the Group adopted
a new accounting policy for employee share options with effect from 1st
April, 2005. The Group took advantage of the transitional provisions set out
in HKFRS 2, under which the new recognition and measurement policies have
not been applied to the following grants of options:

(a) all options granted to employees on or before 7th November, 2002;
and
(b) all options granted to employees after 7th November, 2002 but which

had vested before 1st April, 2005.

In order to comply with HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement, the Group changed its accounting policies relating to financial
assets with effect from 1st April, 2005. In accordance with the transitional
provisions of the standard, the changes in accounting policies were adopted
by way of an opening balance adjustment to retained profits as at 1st April,
2005. Figures in years earlier than 2005 are stated in accordance with the
policies before the change on a consistent basis.

hEMBRHEMT :
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www.vitasoy.com
www.vitasoy.com.hk
www.vitaland.com.hk
www.hkgourmet.com.hk
www.vitasoy-chn.com
www.vitasoy-usa.com

www.vitasoy.com.au

Vitasoyo

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
No.1, Kin Wong Street,

Tuen Mun, New Territories,

Hong Kong
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Tel &5 : (852) 2466 0333
Fax {8E : (852) 2456 3441



	COVER

	INSIDE FRONT

	CONTENTS

	DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT REPORT
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
	CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
	BALANCE SHEET
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
	NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
	INSIDE BACK

	BACKCOVER




